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Honorable Parish President and Councilmen Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana 

May 11, 1998 

The Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 1997 is submitted for your review. This report, which has been conlbined and condensed wherever possible to provide meaningful and manageable financial data, contains the audited financial statements for all of the operations of the Parish (the Reporting Entity) for which the Parish Council members have been detemained to be accountable. This report, which complies with all applicable legal requirements of the Jefferson Parish Charter, has been prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles and standards for financial reporting as promulgated by the (3ovemmental Accounting Stan- dards Board (GASB) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). It was prepared by the Accounting Division of the Finance Department. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures, rests with the Parish. We believe the data, as presented, are accurate in all material respects and are presented in a manner, which fairly sets forth the financial position and results of operations of the Parish. Further- more, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Parish's financial activities have been included. The Parish's independent certified public accountants, Rebowe & Company/Hanford M. Harrison and Kushner LaGraizc LLP have examined the accompanying financial statements, and their opinion re- sulting from their examination is included in this Comprehensive Annoal Financial Report. As part of their examination, the auditors performed a study and evaluation of the Parish's system of internal accounting controls as required by generally accepted auditing standards. Comments and recommenda- tions resulting from the assessment of the intemal accounting controls will be evaluated by management and will be implemented to the extent that the additional control objectives are cost beneficial to the Parish in relation to the concept of reasonable assurance that assets are properly safeguarded and that financial transactions are properly recorded. Implementation of prior years' recommendations has proven to result in improved internal accounting controls and increased administrative efficiency. The notes to the fmancial statanlents, which are an integral part of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, summarize the Parish's significant accounting policies, identify the entities included within this report and disclose additional information which is considered necessary for a fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements. 



The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson Parish for its comprehen- sive annual financial reports for the fiscal years ended December 31, 1986, through December 31, 1996. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily read- able and efficiently organized comprehensive annual fmancial report, whose contents conform to pro- gram standards. Such repOrts must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial and statistical. The introductory section includes an organization chart and this transmittal letter, which highlights significant aspects of financial operations during the year and particular financial issues faced by the Parish. The financial section includes the independent auditors' report, the financial statements and related notes. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. PARISH OF JEFFERSON Jefferson Parish is the second most populated parish in Louisiana representing some 10.53% of total state population. The population showed a slight decrease in 1997. Per capita income in Jefferson Parish continues to be higher than the majority of Louisiana's parishes and the state as a whole. In this thnc of economic uncertainty, particularly in states heavily dependent on the oil and gas industry, as in Louisiana, Jefferson Parish is an example of a sound, financially secure local government. The enviable pOsition in which the Parish finds itself, surrounded by parishes and cities in financial turmoil, was not achieved accidentally. Only because of the dedication and hard work of the Administration and Council along with responsible citizen involvement has Jefferson Parish been able to prosper and become a dynamic residential and business center. Although federal involvement at the local level has substantially decreased in the recent past and state assistance is essentially nonexistent, the Parish has nevertheless been challenged to maintain or improve current service levels, and we are succeeding. Jefferson Parish has a great deal to offer potential employers. It is located west of the City of New Orleans and is a wonderful collection of contrasts and similarities offering visitors and residents alike a kaleidoscopic view of a unique and fascinating region. It combines the vibrancs, of New Orleans, the colorful intensity of Cajun country, and the serenity of peaceful bayous. Future job growth in Jefferson Parish is expected to be concentrated most heavily in service businesses, especially professional services such as law, medicine, accounting, engineering and financial services. The oil and gas industry has shown considerable growth particularly on the Harvey Canal located on the West Bank of the Mississippi River. While Jefferson Parish offers all of the business amenities and services which commercial establishmenls look for, it also affords its residents a high quality of life-- with good schools, low crime rates and plenty ofrecreational activities. The LaSalle Tract, located on Airline Drive is home to the training facility of the New Orleans Saints National Football League team and Zephyr Stadium, a minor league baseball park, home to the AAA semi-professional New Orleans Zephyrs. The Tract has become a magnet for family recreational activities and 47 acres remain undevel- oped. 
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In addition, the Parish offers some of the finest medical care in the nation with world-renowned institu- tions staffed by pioneering physicians. The two parish-owned hospitals and five privately owned institutions contain 2,282 beds and provide a full range of services including acute care as well as specialiTzd services such as oneology, high-risk maternity, chemical dependency, burn cam and others. The hospitals employ 10,882 support personnel and are staffed by 2,869 physicians. Jefferson Parish is well on its way to becoming the future business and commercial hub of the Gulf South, but it has not forgotten its rich history nor neglected its abundant natural and scenic resources. It is a community where quality of life and progress go hand-in-hand. In an attempt to shed the label "bedroom community" which is so often applied to suburban areas on the perimeters of large cities, Jefferson has moved progressively forward with major office and shopping complexes springing up everywhere. There are no local personal or corporate income taxes'in Jefferson Parish. Furthermore, there are no state ad valorem (property) taxes, and local property taxes are among the lowest in the nation. For the tourist, Jefferson Parish is a popular home base from which to explore the fascinating environs of South Louisiana. Its modem, first class accommodations are competitively priced and offer a quiet, safe and affordable environment in which to enjoy the quaint charm and joie de vivre of the surrounding parishes. Jefferson is home to the Jean Lafitte National Park and the Bayou Segnette State Park, both of which are very popular with residents and tourists alike. While catering to family tourists, Jefferson Parish has an extensive collection of fine restaurants, many specializing in Creole and Cajun cuisine. Residents and tourists alike participate in the lively parades and celebration of the Mardi Gras season throughout Jefferson Parish. Jefferson Parish is Louisiana's largest parish encompassing some 370 square miles from Lake Pontehartrain in the north and the Gulf of Mexico in the south. It straddles the Mississippi River, which is 2,200 feet wide in the area with a bankside depth of 30 to 60 feet and a midstream depth, which attains 180 feet. The river is a great asset to the entire New Orleans Metropolitan area. It is the source of the drinking water supply. Approximately 310 billion gallons daily flow through Jefferson Parish, approximately the amount consumed daily in the continental United States. Water rates are among the lowest in the nation. The climate permits year-round outdoor activity for business as well as pleasure. It can be described as semi4ropieal with the surrounding water modifying the temperature and decreas- ing the range between extremes. Twelve institutions of higher learning are located in the New Orleans area and are easily accessible to Jefferson Parish residents. In addition, there are two theological institutions and several business, trade and technical schools that prepare students for various occupations. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES The Parish of Jefferson's system of government was established by its Home Rule Charter, which became effective in 1958. The Parish operates under a president-council form of government with seven Council members and the Parish President who are each elected for four-year concurrent terms. Voters approved numerous changes to the charter, which took effect in 1996. These include term limits for elected Parish officials, higher limits for purchases without Council approval and veto power for the Parish President. Vetoes may be overridden by a two-thirds vote of the Council. The Parish President is the chief administrative officer of the Parish, is responsible to the Parish Council for carrying out policies adopted by the Council, and is the supervisor of all Parish departments, offices, agencies and special districts. He has the power to appoint and remove, subject to the provisions ofthe 



Charter, all administrative officers and employees responsible to him, The Parish President submits the Parish budget to the Council for approval at least sixty days before the end of the fiscal year, December 3 I. The Council may create new offices or departments only upon the Parish President's recommenda- 
The Parish Council is tile legislative and policy-making body of the Parish, and may adopt such ordi- nances and resolutions as may be proper to fnnction. The Council consists of one councilper- son-at-large who is elected Parish-wide and is designated Council Chairperson, and six Councilpersons elected in geographic districts of the Parish. The Council annually elects one of its members to serve as vice-chairperson. The Council may levy and collect taxes, special assessments, service charges, license charges, fees and other revenues, and borrow money subject to limitations as provided by state law. The government provides many services including sanitation services, construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and infrastructure, recreational activities, library services, animal control and mass transit. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity present the primary govemment (the Parish) and its component units. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the Parish Council is financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing board, the ability of the primary govermuent to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship with the primary government (the Parish) is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The component units noted below are included in the Parish's reporting entity either as blended compo- nent units or as discretely presented component units because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the Parish. 
a. Blended Component Units Ambulance Districts Road Lighting Districts Drainage Districts Sewerage District Fire Districts Wate~,orks District Garbage Districts Communications District Playground & Recreation Districts Criminal Justice Coordinating Council The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish 
b. Discretely Presented Component Units Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District (JEDCO) Home Mortgage Authority Hospital Service District No. 1 (West Jefferson Medical Center) Hospital Service District No. 2 (East Jefferson General Hospital) 



able for these Districts due to the inability of the Parish Council to impose its will over the daily opera- tions. These officials prepare their own budgets, designate their own management teams and levy their own taxes or fees. While some financial burdens are placed on the Parish by these Districts, it is not considered significant enough to warrant their inclusion in the reporting entity. There are six municipalities x~hthin Jefferson Parish with varying degrees of dependence on the Parish. However, each municipality has its own charter and elected officials, and the results of their operations are therefore not included in this report. The voters of the incorporated towns and cities (Grand Isle, Gretna, Harahan, Kenner, Lafitte, and Westwego) participate in the election of the officials, and the citizens are eligible to run for election to Parish offices. YEAR IN REVIEW In 1990, the Parish purchased a large parcel of undeveloped land in a prime location on the East Bank known as the LaSalle Tract. This property has been developed into a minor league ballpark and is home to the AAA New Orleans Zephyrs. The training facility for the New Orleans Saints is located on part of the tract. A portion remains undeveloped at this time. A study is currently underway to determine the best use of the remaining 47 acres of prime property, with consideration being given to an arts center or other family oriented uses. One of the most critical issues facing the Parish is the expansion and upgrading of its wastewater facilities. In 1984, the Parish began this task and is currently 90% complete. The project consists of independent East and West Bank systems, each discharging la'eated sewage into the Mississippi River. The system will meet or exceed all Environmental Protection Agency guidelines. The year 1997 was one in which Jefferson Parish moved forward on many fronts. The Chamber of Commerce, long known as a catalyst for economic development, created a Jefferson Chamber of Com- merce for businesses in the parish. Zephyr Stadium was opened and attracted a total attendance of 507,164 for the New Orleans Zephyr's season. A land use study for the West Bank was completed. A new integrated computerizr.,d information management system for the parish's criminal justice agencies was installed to improve communications among all the agencies involved in the criminal justice system. A twenty screen state-of-the-art movie theater was opened on the East Bank, and ground was broken for a multi-million dollar Coca-Cola plant which will be located near the Elmwood Park business and industrial development, an area that continues to grow. In 1997, the Parish succeeded in securing a $47 million congressional appropriation for continuing flood control and drainage improvements. The Jeff 2000 Conference, a group ofbusiness, civic and government leaders created in 1996, recon- vaned and created committees to study the Parish. One of the most significant findings was that the Parish is in need of a new jail facility. Although agreement on the funding mechanism for the new jail was reached in 1996, the Jeff 2000 Criminal Justice Action Conunittee led to the development of a Criminal Justice Master Plan in 1997. This plan cells for the creation of a new entity to oversee imple- mentation and to coordinate operations among the Sheriffs Department, the District Attorney's office, the courts, and other law enforcement agencies. JEDCO Ocfferson Parish Economic Development and Port District) which was created by the Jefferson Parish Council, was reorganized in 1997. The priorities of JEDCO were refocused on improving the business climate and facilitating the success of Jefferson's existing businesses. Property values rose throughout the Parish and commercial occupancy ran at 95 percent to 100 percent. Several new hotels were built, increasing the number of first-class hotel/motel rooms to 6,000. The average oceupaney rate in 1997 was 75 percent. Demand for residential housing in Jefferson Parish 
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remained strong and prices rose accordingly. In 1997, 2,269 residential construction permits were issued, up 15 percent from 1996. Overall home prices increased 10.6% with the average home valued at $123,296. The Alario Center on the West Bank proceeded toward completion. The center is a $15 million devel- opment with 75,000 square feet of useable space. It will be used for amateur sports and is an ideal venue for regional, national and even international amateur sporting events. It will also be used to serve the West Bank as a place to host conferences, conventions, triode shows, graduations, concerts, Mardi Gras balls, and other events. It is slated to open in late1998 and is already scheduled to host the Louisi- ana Special Olympics, the Louisiana High School Athletic Association State Wrestling Tournament and the 1998 Biddy World Championships. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL The Finance Department is responsible for providing all Parish financial services including financial accounting and reporting, payroll and accounts payable disbursement functions, cash and investments management, debt management, budgeting, purchasing, contract administration and special financial analyses for Parish management. The Director of Finance, appointed by the Parish President, supervises the department's operations. Another responsibility of the Finance Department is the establishment and maintenance of an internal control structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regard- ing: 1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and 2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within this framework, and are believed to ade- quately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. Accounting records for governmental fund types are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues being recorded when available and measurable and expenditures being recorded when services or goods are received and the liabilities are incurred. Accounting records for proprietary fund lypes and similar trust funds are maintained on the accrual basis. In addition to the internal accounting controls noted above, the Parish maintains budgetary controls designed to ensure compliance with the legal provisions embodied in the annual operating budget. The Budget, which is approved by the Parish Council, includes the activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, and the waterworks and sewerage districts enterprise funds. The Finance Department must approve subsequent intradepartmental transfers of less than $15,000. The Parish Council must approve intradepartmental transfers of $15,000 or more, interdepartmental transfers and any increase or decrease in total appropriations. Management control of the Operating Budget is maintained at the departmental level. An encumbrance accounting system is also maintained as a technique of accom- plishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts are re-budgeted in the subsequent year at year-end. GENERAL FUND The Parish's General Fund is used to account for expenditures for traditional government services as well as all financial resources other than those required to be aceounted for in other funds. Sources of revenue for this fund are widely diversified and include ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, licenses, permits, fines and other sources as shown on the following page. 
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SOURCES OF FUNDS Ad valoreu| taxes Sales taxes Other taxes Licenses and permits lntergovermnental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures lnteresl Olher 
USES OF FUNDS Gcaleral government Peblie safety 1 lealth and welfare Culture and recreation Intergovernmental Total 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES & EXPEN[ (DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1997 % OF AMOUNT TOTAl, 
$ 2.67 21.11 3.30 8.70 0.75 4.94 2.84 1.38 3.04 $ 48.73 
$ 23.73 11.03 1.26 0.09 9.32 $ 45.43 

52 24 3 21 L~ 

AMOUNT 
$ 2.58 21.52 3.15 8.40 1.08 5.00 2.35 0.94 3.44 L48A6 
$ 22.47 9.27 1.35 0.12 8.79 

INCI "~ASE % OF (I~2RFA,~ TOTAl, OVER 1996 

54 22 3 2~! 

$ 0.09 (0.41) 0.15 0.30 (0.33) (0.06) 0.49 0.44 
$_O22 
$1.26 1.76 (0.09) (0.03) 0.53 

Overall, total revenues of the General Fund increased by $270,000. This increase of less than one percent is due to the fact that no new or increased taxes or fees were imposed in 1997. 
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Expenditures of the General Fund increased by $3.43 million. Major increases in costs associated with renovating and maintaining a growing number of older buildings under the control of the General Services and Procurement Department resulted in higher General Government expenditures. Small increases in other departments of the general fund also contributed to the growth. SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments or financing of major capital projects) that are restricted to expenditures for speci- fied purposes. Most of the Operating Funds of the Parish are categoriz~xt as Special Revenue Funds primarily because as the Parish developed, particularly on the West Bank of the river, separate taxing districts were formed to provide funding for various services such as, drainage, garbage, rcereation and fire. lu later years, many of the districts were consolidated. However, since property taxes collected from the taxing districts are still part of the revenue sources of mc~t of the funds described, those funds are still properly referred to as Special Revenue Funds. Total revenues for the Special Revenue Funds for 1997 increased over 1996 by $10.98 million. The total expenditures increased by $12.90 million for the same period. Revenue increases were due to many factors. The Parish applied for and received $5 million dollars more in grants in 1997 than in 1996. Additionally, 2 mills of library ad valorem taxes were rededieated to the operatiug fund from the capital project fund due to the fact that the East Bank Regional Library construction project has been completed and the monies previously earmarked for that project are now needed for the operation of the facility. The taxpayers saw no increase in taxes, but an additional $2.7 million was available in the Library special revenue fund. The rise in expenditures can be attributed to inflation and the availability of additional funds to provide more services to the public, particularly a grant from the Department of Transportation to purchase new buses and increased operating expenses of the library system due to the opening of the East Bank Regional Library. 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-ternl debt principal, interest, and related costs. During 1997, total revenues and total expenditures increased slightly. The increase is attributable to new debt issuance and advance refund- ings and defeasances. Total Fund Balances for all Debt Service Funds totaled approximately $52,043,000 at December 31, 1997. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the acquisition of capital facilities other than those accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. Expenditures for capital improvement projects in 1997 totaled approximately $46,290,000, a decrease of $24 million below the 1996 total. Projects showing the largest decreases were the West Napoleon Avenue im- provements, Library Capital improvements, Sewer Capital program, Drainage Capital program and LaSalle Tract improvements, all of which neared completion in 1997. Additionally, the Federal Aid Urban program expenditures increased approximately $3 million. These projects, coupled with in- creases and decreases in various other projects either nearing completion or whose work commenced in 1997 account for the net decrease in current year expenditures. ENTERPRISE FUNDS The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. In Jefferson Parish, the following funds are elassified as Enterprise Funds: Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 and Consolidated Watem,orks District No. 1. 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing on a cost-reimbursement basis of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies within the same gov- ernment or to other governments or not-for-profit organizations. In Jefferson Parish, the Central Ga- rage, Central Tire, Central Telephone, Computer Center, Parish Photographer, Central Printing, Engi- neering, Environmental and Water Quality Lab, Safety Division, and Self Insurance departments pro- vide such services to other departments and are thus classified as Internal Service Funds. The segrega- lion of these funds enhances the financial report's readability. TRUSTANDAGENCYFUNDS Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the Parish in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Jefferson Parish's Pension Trust Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retire- ment annuities and death and disability benefits to employees. The Jefferson Parish Deferred Compen- sation Agency Fund is used to account for the employees' tax deferred compensation plan consisting of optional investment funds. 
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CASH MANAGEMENT In the second quarter of 1997, Jefferson Parish employed the firm of Donaldson, Lufkin, Jenrettc In- vestment Management Corporation (DLJ) to serve as investment managers and to provide full invest- ment advisory services. In this capacity, DLJ makes all investment decisions in accordance with the Parish's written Statement of Cash Management and Investment Policies. Idle cash balances are invested on a daily basis at the best interest rates available within legal constraints imposed by State law. Investment securities are limited to those which are of the highest quality in- eluding, but not limited to, fully-collateralized time deposits in Louisiana banks and savings and loan associations, direct obligations of the United States government, obligations of United States govern- ment agencies, or the purchase of such investment securities under the terms of repurchase agreements. The primary objectives of the Parish's investment activities are safety, liquidity, yield and legality. For purposes of maximizing interest earnings, cash balances of all funds are pooled, except where separate cash and investment accounts are mandated by legal requirements. This year's investment activities have again provided a major source of revenue for the Parish. Interest earned on investments totaled almost $20.4 million in 1997. RISK MANAGEMENT Jefferson Parish is self-insured for general liability, auto liability, worker's compensation and unem- ployment insurance. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in an internal service fund to meet potential losses. In addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug free workplace program with mandatory drug screening for new employees and employees involved in on-the-job accidents, pre-employment physicals and the development of a risk control department have been implemented to minimize accident related losses. DEBT MANAGEMENT 
The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of a government's debt position to management, citizens, and investors. The data for the Parish at the end of 1997 were as follows: 

AMOUNT TO ASSESSED VALUE PER CAPITA Net direct General Obligation bonded debt $70,952,000 3.29% $157 
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Outstanding bonded indebtedness of the Parish at December 31, 1997, is summarized in the following table (in thousands): 
General Obligation & Special Tax ]]onds 
Revenue Bonds 

BALANCE A'I DECEMBER 31 1996 $354,280 
880 

Special Assessmenl Debt with Governmental Commihnenl 4.32 __ $355.S9~ 
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 ISSUES MATURITIES 1997 $81,270 $99,474 $336,076 
880 

332 
The general fixed assets of the Parish are those fixed assets used in the performance of general govem- mental functions and exclude the fixed assets of the Proprietary Funds and infrastructure items such as roads, bridges and drainage canals. As of December 31, 1997, the general fixed assets (excluding construction in progress) of the Parish amounted to $443,885,089. During 1997, the capitalization policy was modified to book only those assets with a value of $2,000 or more, up from $100. This resulted in a restatement of the January 1, 1997 balance. PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE We are constantly challenged to provide for future growth, economic development, environmental planning, and a higher quality of life. This requires a significant commitment on the part of everyone involved. The leadership of the Adntinistrative and Legislative branches of parish government along with responsible citizen involvenlent has enabled the Parish to survive. The opening of the Zephyr Stadium has stimulated growth and redevelopment on Airline Drive on the East Bank. The completion of the Alario Center on the West Bank projected for late 1998 should increase tourism and community participation in various sporting and cultural events to be held there. With the drop in unemployment rates, and the increased activities on the state level, we are optimistic that Louisiana as a whole and Jefferson Parish in particular has "turned the corner". ACKNOWLEDGEMENT The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated service of the entire staff of the Accounting Department, a division of the Finance De- partment. 1 would like to express my appreciation to all members of the Department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. 1 would also like to thank the Parish Council members for their consistent support and continued interest in planning and conducting the financial operations of the Parish in a responsible and progressive manner. Their support is greatly appreciated. 
R~j~t fully su~ 
Finance Director 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1996 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporling is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporling. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY* / HANFORD M. HARRISON KUSHNER LAGRAIZE H~.~ CI~IUI'IFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Members of the Parish Counc Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the enterprise funds or the Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish Pension Trust Fund which statements reflect total assets of $535,725,267 and $21,601,737, respectively, as of December 31, 1997, and total operating revenues of $30,506,693 and $4,946,994, respectively, for the year then ended. We also did not audit the discretely presented governmental and proprietary component units which financial statements reflect total assets of $9,157,299 and $1,123,797,196, respectively, as of December 31, 1997, and total operating revenues of $319,919, and $387,204,487, respectively, for the year then ended. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the enterprise funds, The Employee's Retirement System of Jefferson Parish Pension Trust Fund, and the discretely presented governmental and proprietary component units is based on the reports of other auditors. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-purpose financial statement 

Suite 810 3501 No/Ih Causeway Blvd Mclairic, Louisiana 70002 (504) 837-9116 * A hofcssion:d Coq~or;,tion 1027 Whitney Avenue Gretna, Louisiana 70056 (504) 368 2501 
guile 254 28(}0 Vclcran~ Mcmolia~ Blwl Mctairie, Louisiana 70002-6112 (504) 838 9991 



presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of December 31, 1997, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
As discussed in Note A-18 to the financial statements, Jefferson Parish implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 26 and No. 27 (for the Firefighters' Retirement System only) for the year ended December 31, 1997. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 11, 1998 on our consideration of Jefferson Parish's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general- purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 
REBOWE & COMPANY/HANFORD M. HARRISON A Professional Corporation Rebowe & Company 
KUSHNER LAGRAIZE, L.L.P 
Kushner LaGraize, L.L.P. 
Metairie, Louisiana May 11, 1998 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments with fiscal agent Investments Share of pooled assets Receivables, net of allowances for estimated uncollecgbles Interest Ad valorem tax Accounts Notes Special assessments Intergovernmental Leases Other Due from other funds Inventories Prepaid items Advances to other funds Advances to component units Advance to other governments Grant loan receivable Deposits and other assets Restdcled and designated assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Share of pooled assets Due from primary government Receivables Leases receivable Bond issuance costs [net] Mortgage loans receivable Properly, plant, and equipment [net] Other assets Other debits Amount available in debt service funds Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term debt 

December 31~ 1997 (in thousands of dollars 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE 
3,497 $ 141 $ 85 $ 19,079 - - 8,974 6,336 48,509 16,773 
2,785 892 
11,274 4,253 
300 3O0 2,347 

73,133 1,778 
15.367 
200 582 3,222 

254 11,637 458 619 6.845 

2O9 $ 39,641 55.711 1,434 $ 1,099 7,470 13 5,829 6,597 12 93 6,368 
212 3,710 47,622 5,591 
449.675 

34.075 

2(2 4 

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 31,984 $ 142,932 $ 64,724 $ 97,866 $ 535,725 $ 37,527 
[Continued] 



FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE ACCOUNTGROUPS TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLY] COMPONENT UNITS TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLY] TRUST AND GENERAL GENERAL PRIMARY REPORTING AGENCY FIXED ASSETS LONG-TERM DEBT GOVERNMENT GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY ENTITY 
42 $ - $ - $ 37.020 
188 

528.792 
37,305 $ 528,792 $ 

52,043 308,601 360,644 $ 

5,408 19,079 86,734 168,874 531 93,384 9,726 . 619 35,727 140 4,253 6,388 4 2O0 882 3OO 3,222 3,437 212 3,710 47,622 8,591 
980,808 4 52,043 308,601 1,837,499 $ 

3,222 2,753 845 

198.255 
8,179 59,927 5,242 91~ 4,579 9,668 
4,496 332,803 36 36,986 3,654 165,877 242,489 28.912 

401 9,157 $ 1,123,797 $ 

27,786 19,079 285,157 168,874 8,711 93,384 69,656 930 619 41,001 193 1,051 4,253 10,967 9,686 2O0 882 300 3,222 3.437 

52,043 309,002 2,970,453 



LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

JEFFERSON PARISHp LOUh~IANA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - [CONTINUED] December 31,1997 (in thousands of dollars) 

Liabilities Accounts payable Claims and judgements payable Contracts and retainage payables Notes payable Intergovernmental payable Due to other funds Due to component units Advances from other funds Advances from primary government Deposits Accrued interest payable Other payables and accruals Deterred revenue Mortgage note payable Revenue bonds payable - current Capital lease obligation - current Payable from restricted and designated assets Accounts payable Retainage payable Customers' deposits Accrued interest payable Other payables Deferred revenue Bonds payable General obligations and special tax bonds payable Revenue bonds payable Special assessment debt with governmental commitment Notes payable Mortgage note payable Capital lease obligation Pension payable - Judges' annuities Landfill poslclosure care costs payable Deterred compensation benefits payable TOTAL LIABILITIES Equity and other credits Investment in general fixed assets Contributed capital Retained earnings Reserved Unreserved Fund balances Reserved Unreserved Designated Unrtesignated TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS/ FUND BALANCE TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES SPECIAL DEBT GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE 

3,038 3; 
9,415 $ 385 $ 1,151 ~2~ 3,949 72 3,222 20O 163 3,731 * 5,282 74,292 

2,872 14,450 680 
18,302 18,302 

31 12.193 

92,550 12,681 

200 10,005 40.t77 
50,382 50,382 
51,467 576 
52,043 52,043 TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS $= 31,984 $= 142 932 $ = 64,724 $ The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, 

CAPITAL INTERNAL PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE 

73,611 15.773 
89,384 89,384 
97.886 $ 

723 $ 2 374 
3,538 5.879 
1,131 428 3,829 93 5,634 

21,631 
349,333 46,022 118.739 

164,761 514.094 
535,725 $ 

509 21,050 

459 6,490 9.019 

15,509 15,988 37,527 



FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE ACCOUNT GROUPS TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLY] COMPONENT UNI*[S TOTAL MEMORANDUM ONLY} TRUST AND GENERAL GENERAL PRIMARY REPORTING AGENCY FIXED ASSETS LONG-TERM DEBT GOVERNMENT GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY ENTITY 
$ 105 -$ 

15,704 15.796 

21,509 
21,509 21.509 

528,792 

15.377 

336,076 
332 153 1,051 7,645 
360.644 

$ 

528,792 528,7925 360,644 $ 

12,474 $ 21,050 9,403 

1,290,474 

19 $ 535 32 
882 
442 9 15 

5,445 44 14 
7,437 845 

875 875 1.729 

22,559 $ 314 14,552 
3,724 39,737 130 5,119 3.905 
3,764 
1,935 437,670 17,701 12,422 
563.532 
10,983 463.143 
86.139 
560,265 560.265 

35,052 21,050 9,403 849 18,317 4,253 3,258 20O 882 163 3,755 62,907 07,775 9 5,119 3,920 1,131 428 3,829 3,764 93 5,634 1,935 336,076 437,670 332 23,146 44 12,599 1.051 7,645 15,704 1.117.994 529,637 349,792 63,495 590,901 76,048 164,781 57,805 973.030 
1 837 499 $ 9J67 $ 1.123,797 $ 2,970,453 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUESf EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS Year Ended December 31,1997 ]in thousands of dollars] TOTAL TOTAL [MEMORANDUM [MEMORANDUM GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES ONLY) ONLY] SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL PRIMARY COMPONENT REPORTING GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS GOVERNMENT UNITS ENTITY Revenues Taxes $ Licenses and permits Inte[govemmerttal Charges for services Fines and torleitures Special assessments Interest income Miscellaneous 
41,787 $ I1,712 $ fl,262 112 3.412 4,745 TOTAL REVENUES 46.729 169,189 59,056 Other financing sources Bond proceeds PrOceeds of refunding bonds Operating transfers in Transfers from component unit Transfers from prima government Capitalized lease TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Curmr~t General government Public safety Public works Transit Hearth and welfare Culture and recreation EConomic d~velopment Urban redevelopment and housing Intergovernmental Cspital outlay Debt service Pdncipal retirement tnterest and fiscal charges Other TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

76.416 2; 10.217 3.771 314 
1.334 163 10.380 82,189 
50,063 179,569 132,245 

3.163 

33.740 60,341 13,962 20,044 23,950 3,937 
23.263 22,663 2,819 

17.269 7,236 77.629 1,119 " - 4.302 17.269 54,865 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 49~727 173,243 133.610 

5,835 4.109 32,918 2,852 20,547 
23.399 
56.317 

46,290 8,750 
8,750 
55.040 

186,768 $ - $ 8,737 47,546 24.117 96 3.276 112 14,976 56 15.358 168 300,892 2,852 78,418 34,555 1,314 163 117.302 418,194 

320 153 4; 
1.119 38 1,350 1,670 

301212 3.005 78+416 34.595 

419,864 

1.579 413,199 Excess ~defi.cJe ~cy]~ of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 336 6,326 (1,365) 1,277 6.574 91 Fund balances ~eginning of year. es resteled 17,966 44,01'~ 53.453 88+107 Residual equity trensfer - 45 (45) - END OF YEAR $ 18,302 $ 50,382 $ : 52,043 $ 89,384 $ The eccompany;ng notes ate an integmt part of this statement 
203,537 T 210.111 $ 

764 204.32 
875 $ 210,986 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ACTUAL AND BUDGET [BUDGETARY BASIS] - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES Year Ended December 31, 1997 [in thousands of dollars] 
Revenues Taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in Transfers from component unit Capitalized lease TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transit Health and welfare Culture and recreation Urban redevelopment and housing Intergovernmental TOTALEXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out Transfers to component unit TOTAL FINANCING USES TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Excess [deficiency] of revenues and other sources ove expenditures and other uses Fund balances Beginning of year, as restated 

GENERAL FUND ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON VARIANCE - GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET [UNFAVORABLE] 27,083 8,704 749 4,938 2,840 1,377 3,038 48,729 2O 1,314 
1,334 50,063 
23,725 11,030 1,264 86 9,320 45.425 
3,183 1,119 4.302 
336 17.966 Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR $ 18,302 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

(246) 1,278 37 (125) 1 945 (1,31,~) 
(1,314) (369) 7 (193) 
(7;) (261) 
(680) (65o) (911) 
542 (3,087) 
(2,545) $ 

10 

26,837 8,704 2,027 4,975 2,840 1,252 3,039 49,674 2O 
2O 49.694 
23,732 10,837 1,264 86 9,245 45,164 
2,533 1,119 3,652 48.816 
878 14.879 

26,214 8,836 2,338 4,954 2,433 794 3,030 48,599 20 
2O 48.619 
25,215 11,264 1,280 91 9,779 47.629 
2,600 1,119 3,719 51.348 

623 (132) (311) 21 407 458 9 1.075 

1.075 
1,483 427 1; 5 534 2.465 
67 67 2,532 

(2,729) 3,607 14.879 
15,757 $ 12,150 $ 3,607 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS TOTALS [MEMORANDUM ONLY] ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON VARIANCE - ACTUAL ON VARIANCE - GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET [UNFAVORABLE] BASIS BUDGET [UNFAVORABLE] $ 106,186 33 35,535 19,179 438 4,352 3,466 169.189 10,217 163 10,380 179.569 
33,740 60,341 13,962 20,O44 23,950 3.937 

(27,349) (289) (2,589) (30,227) (1,717) (163) (I ,880) (32,107) 

$ 06,186 33 8,186 19,179 438 4,063 877 
$ 103,516 32 7,699 18,256 367 3,059 297 138,962 133,226 8,500 8,595 
8,500 8,595 147.462 141,821 
30,545 58,523 5,792 4,271 22,780 
33,784 64,063 7,044 4,995 26,226 

670 $ 1 487 923 71 004 580 5,736 (95) 
(95) 5.641 
3,239 5,540 1,252 724 3.446 

133,023 $ 129,730 $ 8,737 8,868 10,213 10,037 24,154 23,210 3,278 2,800 5,315 3,853 3,916 3,327 188,636 8.520 
8.520 197.156 
23,732 41,382 58,523 5,792 5,535 22,866 9,245 155,974 (34,063) 121,911 136,112 14,201 167,075 

17,269 17,269 173.243 
6,326 44,011 45 $ 50,382 $ 

(318) (3!8) (34,381) 
2,274 (4,968) 
(2,694)$ 

16,951 16,951 17,033 17.033 138.862 153,145 
8,600 (11,324) 39,043 39,043 45 47,688 $ 27,7!9 $ 

82 82 14.283 
19,924 
45 19.969 $ 

181,825 8,615 
8,615 198,440 
25,215 45,048 64,063 7,044 6,275 26,317 9,779 183,741 

19,484 19,633 1,119 1,119 20,603 20,752 187.678 204.493 
9,478 (14,063) 53,922 53,922 45 63,445 $ 39,869 $ 

3,293 (131 176 944 478 1,462 589 6,811 (95 
(98 6,716 
1,483 3,666 5,540 1,252 740 3,451 83~ 16.666 
149 149 16.815 
23,531 
45 23,576 



 
JEFFERSON PARIS~f LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, SIMILAR TRUST FUND AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS Year Endod December 3t, 1987 [in thousands Of dollars) 

Operating revenues Charges for sales and Contributions Premiums Interest income Commitment fees Other TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES Operating expenses Personnel services Contractual services, supplies materials, arid other Bad debt expense Deprecialion and 8modization Interest and fiscal charges Servicing and insurance costs Sened{ payments Refunds Claims TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES OPERATINGINCOME Non-o,oeratin9 revenues (expenses) Taxes State revenue sharing Federal grants Interes~ income Interest expense Rental income from leases Const~uctlon sewer availability fees Other TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS Operating Iransfers in Opm'atlng lransfers Out Transfers lo primary government NET INCOME (LOSS) Add depreciation on property, plant, and equipment acquired by capital contributions that reduces contribuled capital Retained earnings/fund balance Begir~ning o1 year, as restated Unrealized gain(toss) on available for sale securities END OF YEAR 

$ 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES TOTAL FIDUCIARY [MEMORANDUM FUND~YPE ONL~ TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLYI INTERNAL PENSION PRIMARY COMPONENT REPORTING ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST GOVERNMENT UNITS ENTtl~/ 30,507 $ 18,309 $ 10.423 
30~507 12,108 22,225 12.904 
47,237 !6,730) 10,932 987 2,313 3,638 (85) 446 (2) 18,279 1,848 2,147 (35) 8.661 
9.196 151.904 

83 1,828 4,555 2365 16 (245) o . 4,326 2.865 
153 11.038 

$ 

$ 164~76! $= 15,509=$ = 2!,509 $ The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

13 

46,616 $ 1,235 19,422 663 

9,349 151,578 

365,635 21,570 
22,105 1.385 (1,141 22.349 43.919 
(1,314) 42.605 

1,765 201,779 $: 560,265 $ 

393.042 7.570 19,422 24,035 6 16.315 460,390 185,709 178,506 24,297 30,228 13,428 992 5,000 95 2,708 449,958 10.432 10.932 987 2.313 27.508 (35) f,385 445 (1,080) 42,456 52,888 2,163 (280) (1,314) 53.457 

1,765 762,044 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNtTS 

NCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) Adjustmenls to reconcile operating income (less) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities Net income from pension trust operations Depreciation and amortization Miscellaneous non-operating revenue Interest expense Interest received Loss on sale o1 assets Change in current assets - (increase) decrease Receivables Accounts Other Interest Inventories and prepaid expenses Other assets Change in current liabilities - increase (decrease) Accounts payable Deferred liabilities Other payables and accruals Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities Cash flows from noncapital financing activities Taxes State revenue sharing Federal grants Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Bonds redeemed Bonds issued Bond issuance costs Unrestricted contributions Transfers to primary government Community benefit sen/ices Proceeds from line of credit Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities Cash flows from capital and related financing aclivifles Taxes Principal payments - bonds Principal payments - capital leases Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, and equipment Payments made on construction in progress Construction sewer availability fees Interest pa]yrments Taxes for debt service on bonds Acquisition of capital assets 

Year Ended December 31, 1997 [in thousands of dollars} 
INTERNAL ENTERPRISE SERVICE 

$ (16,730} $ 2,727 $ 

10.998 
5,268 (880) (4,6201 (3,951) 446 (35) 

409 63 
lol 13; 
(507) .553) 1,550) 1.177 
16 (245) 

TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLY) PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

13,313 63 

10.769 
5,266 (880) (5,275) (3,951) 446 (35) 

TOTAL [MEMORANDUM ONLY COMPONENT REPORTING UNITS ENTITY 
21,570 $ 7,567 
16,109) 25,906 9,831 (2,013) 136 
11,308) 10,612 (6) 99 90O 1,612 (5) 1,955 21,609 43.179 

(3,310) (2,461) 21 (14,4391 1 (45,027) 

5,268 (4,190) (2,461) (5,27fi) 21 (3,951) 446 (14,474) 1 (45,027) Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (3,972) (455) (4,427) (65,215) (69,642) [Continued] 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS . [CONTINUED) Year Ended December 3~, ~997 )in thousands of dollars] 

Cash flows from investing activities Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments $ Purchases of investments Purchase of other assets Payments received on direct financing lease Lease rentals Gain loss on sale of investments nterest rece ved Acquisition of mortgage loan Principal receipts from mortgage loans Proceeds from real estate owned 

TOTAL TOTAL [MEMORANDUM IMEMORANDUM ONLy] ONLY I INTERNAL PRIMARY COMPONENT REPORTING ENTERPRISE SERVICE GOVERNMENT UNIT ENTITY 20,611 $ - $ 15,626) 
367~ t.70~ 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities _ 8.363 ' 1,765 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 
Reconciliation to combined balance sheet Cash and cash equivalents Share of pooled assets Res(dc(ed and designated assets Cash and cash equivalents Share of pooled assets Totat per Combined Balance Sheet Less cash and cash equivalents of Pension Trust Funds Total per above 

10,376 46,363 2,258 _ 31817 

20,611 $ 1,754,611 $ 15,825) (1,744,975) (1,o6g~ 273 897 5,342 505 18,989 (18,014) 18,263 - 45 
12,633 78,180 
29,525 6.981 39,6fi3 19.614 18,049 ~ 96,229 $ 56 738 $ 34 075 $ 90 813 $ 25 030 $ 115 843 

$ 
56,736 34.075 
$, 56,7365. 3~075 $ Noncash investing, capilal, and financing actlv~fies Gain (loss) of properly, plant and equipment $ Disposal[acquisition of properly plant and equipment Increase in contributed capital Disposal (acquisitions of property plant and equ pment through capital contributions $ 
-$ -$ E.35~ 1~" [6.350) _ (1 !) 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement, 
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$ 

1,434 $ 21,783 $ 41,545 212 4,496 47 622 60,813 26,279 _ - (1 ,g4g) $ 25,030 $ 
- $ - $ 6,351 ~[~361~ $ 

23.217 41,545 4,708 47~22 
115,843 
6,361 (6,361) 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31. 1997 NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's (the Parish) system of g9vernment is established by its Home Rule Charter which became effective in 1958 and was revised in 1995 to be effective starting 1996. The Parish operates under a president-council form of government. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity present the primary government (the Parish) and its component units. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government (the Parish) are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
The component units discussed below are included in the Parish's reporting entity either as blended component units or as discretely presented component units because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the Parish. 
a. Blended Component Units The following are legally separate entities from the Parish, however, the entities are governed by the same elected council that governs the Parish. For financial reporting purposes, these entities are reported as if they were part of the Parish's operations. 
Ambulance Districts Drainage Districts Fire Districts Garbage Districts Playground & Recreation Districts 

Road Lighting Districl Sewerage District Waterworks District Communications District Criminal Justice Coordinating Counci The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish, an entity legally separate from the Parish, is governed by a seven member board of trustees. Only one of the trustees is appointed by the Parish Council. The other six trustees are employees of the Parish, three of which serve on the board based on their positions with the Parish and three of which are elected at large by the membership. For financial reporting purposes, the Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish is reported as if it were part of the Parish's operations because its purpose is to finance and provide a retirement system for the employees of the Parish and because its exclusion would render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31, t997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) b. Discretely Presented Component Units The component units' columns in the combined financial statements include the financial data of the Parish's four other component units. These units are reported in separate columns apart from the primary government to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Perish. 
JEDCO was created to oversee the development and promotion of economic development activities within the Parish. JEDCO is governed by a 13 member board. Thirteen business organi;~ations have been designated to provide a list of nominees to the Parish Council. The Parish Council appoints one member from each list. JEDCO is considered to be fiscally dependent on the Parish because its major funding source for operations comes from the Parish's dedication of occupational license tax revenues. JEDCO must also submit an annual budget to the Parish Council for approval. 

Home Mortqaqe Authority: The Jefferson Parish Home Mortgage Authority is a public trust created in accordance with state statutes with the Parish named as the beneficiary. The Authority is authorized to undertake various programs to assist in the financing of housing for persons of low to moderate income within the Parish boundaries. The seven trustees of the Authority are appointed by the Parish Council and may be removed at will Although the Parish does not have the authority to approve or modify the operational and capital budgets of the Authority, the Parish does have the authority to veto, overrule or modify certain decisions of the trustees. 
Hospital Districts No. 1 and No. 2: The two Hospital Districts were organized in accordance with state statutes to provide the citizens of the Parish with acute care hospital services. Hospital District No. 1 services the West Bank of the Parish and Hospital District No. 2 services the East Bank. Each of the Hospital Districts is governed by a 9 member board. Each of the seven councilmen of the Parish appoint a member to the respective boards. The remaining two positions are appointed by the Parish Council from a list of nominees submitted by the Hospital staff. All board members serve at the pleasure of the Parish Council during their terms. 

Presented below are condensed financial statements of each of the four discretely presented component units. Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained directly from their administrative offices, as listed below, 
Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District Hospital District No. 1 3445 N. Causeway Boulevard, Suite 300 West Jefferson Medical Center Metairie, Louisiana 70002 1101 Medical Center Boulevard Marrero. Louisiana 70072 
Jefferson Parish Home Mortgage Authority 1221 Elmwood Park Boulevard, Suite 505 Harahan. Louisiana 70123 
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Hospital Service District No. 2 East Jefferson General Hospila 4200 Houma Boulevard Metairie, Louisiana 70011 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Current assets Restricted assets Due from primary government Other Bond issuance costs, net Mortgage loans receivable Property, plant & equipment (net) Other 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET - COMPONENT UNITS DECEMBER 31, 1997 (in thousands of dollars) 

Amount 1o be provided for long-term debt Total assets and other debits LIABILITIES Current liabilities Other Advance from primary government Payable from restricted assets Long-term debt Total liabilities EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS Investment in general fixed assets Retained earnings reserved unreserved Fund balance reserved unreserved Total retained earnings/ fund balance Total equity and other credits Total liabilities, equity, and other credits 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS PROPRIETARY FUNDS JEFFERSON PARISH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT HOME HOSPITAL HOSPITAL AND PORT MORTGAGE DISTRICT DISTRICT DISTRICT AUTHORITY NO. 1 NO. 2 TOTAL 
1,936 3.222 
845 2,753 401 91157 

$ 1,052 882 -- 5,503 7,437 
845 
875 
875 -- 1,720 

$ 9,157 

$ 34,049 $ 75,832 $ 198,663 $ 308,544 
3,854 165,877 99 15 

36 36 241,079 133,206 374,285 3,654 165.877 77,893 9,208 164,497 19.689 242,489 28.912 
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$ 9,034 
181,230 190,264 
10,983 2,447 

$ 24,328 1,817 159,450 185,595 
$ 56,678 3,882 127,113 187,673 
$ 90,040 5,699 467,793 563,532 
- 10,983 185,402 275,294 463,143 33.015 53.124 86.139 

13,430 218,417 328,419 580,265 13,430 218,417 328,419 560,265 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN'[ING POLICIES (Continued JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY COMPONENT UNITS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 (in thousands of dollars) 

Revenues Other financing sources Transfers from primary government Total revenues and other financing sources Expenditures Current Debt service Other financing uses 
Total expenditures and other financing uses 
Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 
Fund balance - beginning of year 
Fund balance - end of year 

JEFFERSON PARISH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
$ 320 231 1,119 
1,670 
1,310 229 40 
1,579 
91 
784 
$ 875 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued 

Operating revenues Operating expenses General and administrative Depreciation and amort{zation 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY COMPONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 1997 (in thousands of dollars) 

Operating income (loss) Nonoperating revenues (expenses) Income (loss) before transfers Transfers to primary government Net income (loss) Retained earnings/fund balance Beginning of year, as restated Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities End of year c. Related Organizations 

HOME HOSPITAL HOSPITAL MORTGAGE DISTRICT DISTRICT AUTHORITY NO. 1 NO. 2 TOTAL $ I 15,270 $145,357 ~ 226,578 $387,205 14,748 671 126,290 9,157 198,685 _ 16,084 339,723 25,912 15,419 135,447 . 214,769 365,635 149) 9,910 11,809 21,570 10,736 - 11,613 22,349 149) 20,646 23,422 43,919 
(149 
t3,579 
(636) . (678) (1,314) 20,010 
196,642 1,765 
22,744 
305.674 
42.605 
515.895 1,765 

The Parish Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other organizations, but the Parish's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments. The Parish Council appoints the board members of both the Jefferson Parish Human Services Authority and the Jefferson Parish Housing Authority. The majority of funding for the Jefferson Parish Human Services Authority comes from the State. In 1997, the Parish provided $1,477,232 in financial support to the Jefferson Parish Human Services Authority. The Jefferson Parish Housing Authority did not receive financial support from the Parish in 1997. d. Jointly Governed Organizations The Parish, in conjunction with Orleans, St. Tammany and St. Bernard Parishes has created Iho Regional Planning Commission (RPC). The RPC's board is composed of 21 members, five members from each of the participating Parishes plus the Director of the State Depedmeol of Highways. The Parish appropriated $139,602 as an operating grant to the RPC for 1997. An additional $9,132 was paid to the RPC for providing oversight on the regional Multi- Purpose Cadastre project. The Parish also funded three transportation related studies during 1997 totaling $120,000. FUND ACCOUNTING The Parish uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance end to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self.balancing set of accounts. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN'TING POLICIES (Continued Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types". Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside petites (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behaIf of other funds within the government. When these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension trust fund, a nonexpendable trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The terms "nonexpendable" and "expendable" refer to whether or not the government is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the government holds on behalf of others as their agent. 3, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balanco sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. In accordance with Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting" it is the policy of the Padsh's proprietary funds to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. As allowed by GASB Statement No. 20, the Parish has elected not to apply to its proprietary activities the pronouncements other than those issued by GASB after November 30, 1989. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and agency funds. Under this method revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The Parish considers ad valorem (properly) taxes revenue in the year for which they are levied. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due. Those revenues suscopfible to accrual are chain store taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses, fines, interest revenue and charges for services. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 22, sales taxes collected and held by merchants and the intermediary collecting governments at year end on behalf of the Parish government also are recognized as revenue. Permits are not suscoptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) The Parish reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the Parish before it has e legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Parish has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 4. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (except for Federal and State grants), and Proprietary Funds. Budgetary data for the Federal and State Grant Special Revenue Funds end the Capital Project Funds are not presented since these funds are budgeted over the life of the respective project or grant and not on an annual basis. Formal budgetary accounting is not employed for Debt Service Funds because effective control is alternatively achieved through the indenture provisions of the bonds and certificates. The level of budgetary control is at the fund/department level and expenditures may not exceed bud9eted approprialions. Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year end. Budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (except Federal and State grants), and Proprietary Funds are legally adopted through council "ordinance" on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that (1) shared revenues received from other governments are recognized when received in cash, (2) expenditures represented by unpaid invoices which are received after the year-end budgetary cut-off are accrued, (3) losses resulting from claims end litigation are recorded when paid instead of when the liability arises, and (4) advances are recognized as operating transfers when made. 5. ENCUMBRANCES Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies ere recorded in order to reserve that portion of the appJiceble appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. In 1997, Jefferson Parish changed its accounting policy and encumbrances now lapse at year-end. Encumbrances outstanding at December 31, 1997 represented by purchase orders contracts and other commitments were approximately $3,825,000. It is the Parish's intention to honor these encumbrances under authority provided in the subsequent year's budget. 6. CASH. INVESTMENTS AND POOLED ASSETS The Parish follows the practice of pooling its cash and investments in order to maximize earnings potential All funds of the Parish participate in the pool except for the Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust and the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund. Total cash, investments, end accrued interest on investments of the Pool are reported in all funds as "Share of Pooled Assets". Funds with a negative "Share of Pooled Assets report the advance as an interfund payable and the General Fund, which has been determined to be the receivable fund by management, reports an off-setting interfund receivable. Interest earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to each individual fund based on its month end "Share of PcoIod Assets" balance. Cash and cash equivalents reported on the Combined Balance Sheet include amounts in demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date parchased, whether restricted or unrestricted. For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the proprietary funds, each fund's "Share of Pooled Assets" is also considered to be a cash equivalent. Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for investments in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, and The Employees' Retirement System which is reported at market value. 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued Louisiana statutes permit the Parish to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or cedificates, or other obligations of the U. S. Government and agencies of the U. S. Government, which are federally sponsored, and certificates of deposit of state banks, organized under the State of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the state of Louisiana, or in mutual or trust fund institutions which are registered and which have underlying investments limited to securities of the U. S. Government or its agencies. 7. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the Combined Balance Sheet. 8. ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS Noncurrent podions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation. 9. INVENTORIES The cost of materials and supplies acquired by the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. The inventory of such materials and supplies at December 31, 1997, would not be material to the financial statements. Proprietary fund type inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined by the first-in, first-out method except for the Sewerage and Waterworks Districts Enterprise Funds which are stated at average cost. 10. PREPAID ITEMS Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 1997, are recorded as prepaid items. 11. RESTRICTED ASSETS Included in restricted assets are: 1) The "Customer Deposits" account, which is used to segregate water meter deposits used to pay any outstanding water bills when customers discontinue service, and 2) The "Construction Fund" account, which is used to segregate those resources accumulated by collection of sewer availability fees and transfers from the operating fund to be used for capital improvements and renovations. 12. FIXED ASSETS General Fixed Assets Fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets account group. In 1997, the Parish increased its threshold on capitalizing fixed assets in the general fixed asset account group from $100 to $2,000. As a result of this change in accounting policy, a restatement of the general fixed assets has been reported in 1997. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no histodcal records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized, but improvements that add to the value of assets are capitalized. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value only to the government. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated 
24 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued Proprietary Fund Assets Fixed assets ere capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Also, assets are capitalized for those acquired through capital contributions. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable. Depreciation of these assets is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives may be found in Note G. Depreciation expense applicable to those fixed assets acquired through capital contributions is closed out to the related contributed capital accounts rather than retained earnings. It is considered preferable under the matching concept, as receipts of these fixed assets have been recorded as additions to contributed capital. Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is calcolated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period. 13. COMPENSATED ABSENCES Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned in the Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds. Such amounts are not accrued in the governmental funds, as the amount left unpaid at lhe end of lhe fiscal period would not be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Expendable available financial resources as used in this context constitutes the unexpended portion of the amount budgeted for the year. The unpaid portion relating to the governmental funds at December 31, 1997, is accrued in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. The Parish's policy is to accrue both vacation and vested sick leave including salary related costs (Medicare and Social Security). 14. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion Of such obligations is reported in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. 15. FUND EQUITY Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received Capital grants or contributions from developers, customers or other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources. 16. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, ere reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers, All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 17+ TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Tote1 columns have been provided on the combined statements for the primary government and the reporting entity as a whole. These columns are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns does not present financial position and results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31, 1997 
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued 18. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS For the year ended December 31, 1997, The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish Pension Trust Fund has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 25 entitled "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contributions Plans." The new statement establishes financial reporting standards for defined benefit pension plans and standards for the notes to the financial statement of defined contribution plans. The standards in this Statement apply for pension trust funds included in the financial reports of plan sponsors or employers as well as for the stand-alone financial reports of pension plans or the public employee retirement systems that administer them. Among other provisions, the statement requires that investments be reported at fair value and that the net appreciation or depreciation in the fair value of investments be reported on the Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets. As a result of this change in accounting principle, Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits at January 1, 1996 were increased by $640,171. Also, there was a net reduction of $63,355 in Plan Net Assets for the year ended December 31, 1996. For the year ended December 31, 1997, the Parish has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 26 entitled "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Healthcare Plans Administered by Defined Benefit Pension Plans." The new statement establishes financial reporting standards for postemployment healthcare plans administered by state and local governmental defined benefit pension plans. It is an interim Statement pending completion of the GASB's project on accounting and financial reporting of other postemployment benefits by plans and employers. This Statement requires defined benefit pension plans that administer postemployment healthcare plans to present certain financial statements and notes, all in accordance with the pension plan reporting standards, including the format for presenting certain optional historical trend information. The implementation of this statement had no effect on the current or prior period financial statement or footnote disclosure requirements. For the year ended December 31, 1997, the Parish has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 27 entitled "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers" for the Firefighters Retirement System. This new statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of pension expenditures/expense and related liabilities, assets, note disclosures, and if applicable required supplementary information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. Employers that participate in single-employer and agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans are required to measure and disclose an amount for annual pension cost on the accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures/expense on the modified acorual or accrual basis. The implementation of this statement had no effect on the current or prior period financial statements of the Parish. Only footnote disclosure requirements will be affected for the Firefighters' Retirement System and Hospital District No. 1 and 2 (Component Units). 19. USE OF ESTIMATES The Parish uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used. NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY BUDGET The procedures used by the Parish in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are as follows a. Not less than 60 days before the end of the fiscal year, the Parish President recommends to the Parish Council a proposed operating budget. The budget is prepared by fund, function, and activity, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the ensuing fiscal year. b. The proposed budget is summarized and advertised and, within 30 days thereafter, public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. c. "The operating budget is then legally adopted through council "ordinance" at the fund/department level 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued d. The administration may make supplemental adjustments and transfers between line-items within a fund/depadment without Council approval as long as the adjustment is less than $15,000 and the total expenditures of the fund/department are not changed. If the adjustment is greater than $15,000, the Council need only approve it through a "resolution". Resolutions do net hold the weight of law. For any adjustments which change the bottom-line of a fund/department (i.e. the legal level of control), the Council must approve the change through an "ordinance". During the year, several supplementary appropriations were made. A reconciliation of the originally adopted budget to the revised budget (including supplemental appropriations through December 31, 1997 is presented below: 
General Fund Revenues and other financing sources Expenditures and other financing use Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses 
Revenues and other financing sources Expenditures and other financing uses 

INCREASE ORIGINAL . REVISED (DECREASE) $ 46,608,192 49,634,588 $ 48,618,396 51,347,495 $ 2,010,204 1,712,907 
$142,238,579 150,486,936 $141,820,789 153,145,521 $ (417,790 2,658,585 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses $ ~8,248,357) $(11,324,732) $ 3,076,375 The accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -Actual and Budget (Budgetary Basis) - General and Special Revenue Fund Types present comparisons of the legally adopted budget, with actual data on the budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a reconciliation of the resulting basis, timing, and entity differences in excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses for the year ended December 31, 1997, is presented below: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) Adjustments Basis differences To adjust expenditures for unpaid invoices To adjust expenditures for capitalized assets Timing differences To adjust for encumbrances Entity differences To record excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses for nonbudgeted funds Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) 
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SPECIAL GENERAL REVENUE 
$ 877,847 $ 8,600,424 
(22,263) 998,347 275,318 
(389,361) (1,145,061) 
(405,427) 336,114 (2,125,158 $ 6,326,552 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) NDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURE The following funds/departments had expenditures in excess of appropriations for the year ended December 31, 1997 
General Fund Miscellaneous Public Safety County Agent Clerk of Court Special Revenue Criminal Justice Ambulance District #1 Ambulance District #2 Tourism 

EXPENDITURES (BUDGETARY BASIS) APPROPRIATIONS EXCESS 
$, 29,808 41,346 667.507 
495,696 271,362 146,845 130,585 

$ 12,368 40,398 643.779 
479,081 269,796 141,848 130.000 

$ (17,440) (948) (23,728) 6,817) 1,566) 4,997) (585) Expenditures exceeded appropriations due to the following reasons: 1) expenditures were charged to this function when costs budgeted for 1997, which were expected to be reimbursed, but were not. The 1998 budget was prepared correctly; 2) due to higher than budgeted telephone charges; 3) expenditures that were budgeted in 1998 were inadvertently approved for payment in 1997; 4) administrative salaries included a clerical person previously funded through a grant. The grant expired and was not re-applied for in a timely manner prior to year-end, thereby causing excess expenditures for these salaries. The grant has since been applied for and has been awarded; 5) professional and technical expenditures exceeded appropriations in both the Ambulance District #1 and Ambulance District #2 due to an increase in revenues collected. The contracts call for payments to a contractor based on revenues cellected, therefore the collection of revenues in excess of budget resulted in expenditures going over budget. Funds balances were not adversety affected; 6) higher than anticipated advertising costs in first year of department operations. The following funds had deficits in fund balance/retained earnings at December 31, 1997 
Special Revenue Parkways Department Landfill Division 
Internal Service Parish Photographer 

DEFICIT IN FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS $ 21,256 52,361 73,617 
$ 934 The fund balance deficits in the Special Revenue and Internal Service funds are expected to be eliminated from future revenue sources. NOTE C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS At year end, the carrying amount of the Parish's cash and cash equivalents was $4,085,021. The bank balance of the deposits was $7,776,758 and is categorized as fonows: Amount insured by the FDIC or conateralized with securities held by the Parish's agent in the Parish's name Amount collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the Parish's name Total Bank Balance 
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$ 7,700,710 
76,048 .~7,776,758 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued Investments at year end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the parish/Component Unit at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Parish/Component Unit or its agent in the Parish's/Component Unit's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the Parish's/Component Unit's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which the secudties are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the Parish's/Component Unit's name. CATEGORY 
U. S. Government Agencies U. S. Government Securities U. S. Instrumentality securities (FNMA, FHLB, etc.) Municipal bonds Corporate bonds Other 
Fixed annuities Mutual funds Louisiana Asset Managemenl Pool (LAMP) Totallnvestments 

CARRYING MARKET 1 2 3 AMOUNT VALUE $ 766,457 $ 16,828,962 5,503,553 
247.318.667 354,494 3,732,533 

Per Combined Balance Sheet Investments Restricted investments Investments included in pooled assets Total per above 

$ 766,457 $ 766,457 22,332,515 22,322,192 
247,318,667 354,494 3,732,533 13,514 $274,518.180 
9,057,426 19,951,222 

247,602,579 354,494 3,732,533 13,514 $274,791,769 
9,057,426 19,951,222 2,904,009 -- 2,904,009 

$ 86,734,427 3,709,484 215,986,926 
The fixed annuities of $9,057,426 are owned by the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, $2,358,847 o1 the mutual funds are owned by the Parish's Pooled Account, $10,946,323 are owned by the Pension Trust Fund, and $6,646,052 are owned by the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund. The $2,904,009 invested in LAMP is owned by the Parish's Pooled Account. These amounts are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form and are not categorized. In January 1994, the Parish issued $21,530,000 Louisiana Public Facilities authority Revenue Refunding Bonds to effectuate a "cross over" refunding of the outstanding Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds - 1989 (see note H). The proceeds of the new bond issue were placed on deposit with an escrow agent. Since a defeasance has not yet occurred, the Parish is required to carry these assets on its books. However, under the terms of the escrow agreement, the escrow agent has custody and control of the funds. Therefore, these funds are reported on the Combined Balance Sheet of the Parish as investments with fiscal agent but are not included in the deposit and investment risk categorizations shown above. As of December 31, 1997, the balance on deposit with the escrow agent was $19,078,892. 



NOTE D-POOLED ASSETS 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 

A reconciliation of total cash, investments and accrued interest on investments in the Pooled Assets Fund is presented below Pooled Assets Cash end cash equivalents Investments Accrued Interest Total Pooled Assets Fund Type General Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Project Enterprise Internal Service Total Equity less: Advances Total Equity in Pool 

$ (1,535,557) 215,986,926 2,044,171 $216,495,540 Eguity in Pool $ 10,589,031 48,508,870 16,772,562 55,710,944 55,091,418 34,075,222 220,748,047 _(4,252,507) 
NOTE E - RECEIVABLES Receivables at December 31, 1997 consist of the following (in thousands of dollars): 
Receivables: Interest Taxes Accounts Special assessments Intergovernmental Other 

Advances $ ~ 3,948,548 72,304 231,655 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL INTERNAL GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE SERVICE FIDICIARY TOTAL 
2,785 892 11,274 
$ 73,133 1.778 15,387 
$ 254 11,637 458 619 6.845 
$ 76 $ 
2,229 

13 5,829 6,597 12 93 
188 $ 531 93,384 9,726 619 - 35,727 47 140 Tetalreceivables $ 14,951 $ 90,278 }19,813 $ 2,305 $ 12 544 $ 1 $ 235 9140,127 All receivables are considered colle~ible as of December 31, 1997, accordingly, an allowance for estimated uncollectibles is not considered necessary. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE E - RECEIVABLES The Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 and the Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 consider unbilled receivables at year end to be those amounts for services received by customers in the current year, but not actually billed by the Districts until the following year. Unbilled receivables amounted to $1,469,119 and $1,792,661 at December 31, 1997 for each respective District. These amounts ere included in the accounts receivable balance of the Enterprise Funds shown above. In t996, as part of a cooperative endeavor agreement, the Parish loaned $800,000 to the Jefferson Parish Coroner's Office for the purpose of completing construction on the Jefferson Parish Forsenic Center. The loan, which was authorized by the Parish Council Resolution No. 83123, was to be paid back in January, 1997, from the 1996 property tax collections. In May, 1997, the Parish Council amended the cooperative endeavor agreement authorizing the repayment to be spread over three years. The new repayment schedule required $200,000 to be paid in 1997 and $300,000 to be paid in 1998 and 1999. Therefore, as of December 31, 1997, $300,000 has been recorded as an intergovernmental receivable and $300,000 as an advance to other government. In 1996, a borrower under the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Section 108 Guaranteed Loan Program defaulted on two loans which were funded by notes issued by JEDCO (a component unit) and secured by property and future Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) entitlements from HUD. The outstanding balance on the loans is $5,980,000 at December 31, 1997. Upon default, JEDCO entered into lease purchase agreements with a lessor/buyer for the properties acquired as a result of the default. The future lease payments under these lease-purchase agreements are $2,946,200 resulting in a potential liability for outstanding notes of $3,033,800 plus accrued interest of $203,821 less cash on hand of $15,930. As of December 31, 1997, JEDCO has recorded a due from primary government of principal and interest from the Parish for $3,221,692 and correspondingly, the Parish has recorded a due to component unit with an offsetting grant loan receivable from future HUD entitlements. Presently, the Parish is negotiating with HUD the terms of the loan repayment so that the impact from the loss of future entitlements to the Parish's Community Development Block Grant programs is minimized. NOTE F - RESTRICTED ASSETS 
A breakdown by account of the restricted and designated assets is as follows (in thousands of dollars) 

Customer deposits Construction fund 
CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
$ 24,123 
CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 
$ 3,922 29,090 

TOTAL 
$ 3,922 53,213 
.$57,135 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE G - FIXED ASSETS The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group during the year (in thousands o1 dollars): 
Land Buildings Improvements other than buildings Vehicles Machinery & equipment Construction n progress Total general fixed assets 

BALANCE JANUARY 1 (AS RESTATED) ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS $ 38,644 181,246 
17,169 27,306 173,592 67,399 
505,356 

$ 479 54 
89 3,368 2,294 27,079 
33,363 

(3,109) (772) 

TRANSFERS BALANCE COMPLETED (TO) FROM DECEMBER 31 CONSTRUCTION OTHER FUNDS 1997 

Construction in progress is comprised of the following (in thousands of dollars): 
General Government Fire Sewerage Drainage Parks and Recreation Library Transit Health Unit 

EXPENDED TO PROJECT DECEMBER 31, AUTHORIZATION 1997 $ 24,810 1,646 74,326 38,063 4,562 2,523 16,390 340 
$ 15,067 569 33,765 30,046 2,270 31 3,081 87 

$ - 1,810 
392 1.174 

~ (6,055) 
(6,055) 
REQUIRED FUTURE COMMITTED FINANCING $ 9,743 1,087 40,561 8,017 2,291 2,492 13,309 253 
2,321 37 3,759 357 1,434 9.992 

$ 39,123 183.110 
17,650 28,748 175,254 84 907 
$528,792 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE G - FIXED ASSETS (Continued) The following is a summary of proprietary and fiduciary fund-type fixed assets at December 31, 1997 (in thousands of dollars): 

Buildings Improvements other than buildings Machinery and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Land and band improvements Construction in progress NET 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 $ 6,056 
396,696 7,617 410.369 
(82,032) 328.337 
11,730 4,158 $344,225 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS INTERNAL PENSION DISTRICT SERVICE TRUST NO. 1 TOTAL FUNDS FUND $ 8,027 
154,053 5,413 167,493 
(65,729) 101.764 
1,743 1,943 $105,450 

$ 14,083 
550.749 13,030 577,862 
(147,761) 430.101 

$ 1,052 
17 5,302 6.371 
(4,034) 2.337 

$ 
34 34 
(30) 4 

13,473 6,101 $449,675 $ 2,337 $ 4 The ~llowingestimatedusefullives(inyears)areused ~rcomputingdepreciationandamodization: ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Buildings Improvements other than buildings Machinery and equipment 

CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO.1 20 
10-50 5-10 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS INTERNAL DISTRICT SERVICE NO. 1 FUNDS 
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50 
25 5-10 

PENSION TRUST FUND 15-20 
10 5-10 3-10 



NOTE H ~LONG-TERM DEBT BONDS AND CERTIFICATES 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31, 1997 

Long-term debt at December 31, 1997, includes the following serial bonds (in thousands of doffers): RANGE OF ANNUAL 
DESCRIPTION General Obligation & Special Tax Bonds Special Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991 A Special Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 B East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding and Improvement Bot~s, Series - 1997 Sales Tax Drainage Bonds - Series 1991 Sales Tax Drainage Refunding Bonds-Serles 1997 East Jefferson Park District - Series A - 1989 LeSalle Tract Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 1996 LaSalle Tract Revenue Bonds Series A - 1996 LaSalle Tract Revenue Bonds Series B - 1996 First Parish Court Building Revenue Bond - Series 1994 Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds - 1989 Louisiana Public Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding ~s-~994 Road District #1 Sub #1 Road District #1 Sub #1 Refunding Series 1993 Consolidated Road District A Sub #1 Refunding Series 1991 New Prison Playground District #11 Playground District #12 Playground District #13 Playground District #14 Playground District #15 Playground District #15 Fire District #7 East Bank Consolidated Sewerage District Drainage Improvement Refunding Bonds-Series 1997 Drainage Improvement Refunding Bonds-Series 1993 

FINAL AMOUNT INTEREST MATURITY AMOUNT OUT- RATES DATE_ FROM TO ISSUED STANDING. 
6.25-6.75 12/01/06 $ 9,795 $16,345 $163,360 $115,075 6.25-6.75 12101/06 
4.00-5.90 12/01/19 5.70-6.00 11/01/01 3.75-5.00 11/01/11 7.10-7.40 10101/09 
3.80-5.35 11/01/15 4.95 11101115 6.95 11101115 5.60-6.50 11/01/13 7.35-7.40 08101199 
4.25-5.00 7.00 08/01/'i0 03/01/98 4.15-5.20 03101/08 6.00-8.75 .05 5.00-6.80 .05 .05-6.25 ,05-5.90 5.00-6.80 .05 .05 
03101105 10115198 05101101 01115198 11/01/01 01101102 05/01101 07/15/99 07115/99 .05-6.00 11/01/01 6.15 09101105 4.30-5.25 09/01/06 

2,645 
159 2,075 125 125 
215 75 45 51 995 
1,550 1,150 275 485 50 25 370 140 65 35 80 290 525 4,160 85 

4,410 48,990 31,050 
435 5,735 2,455 54,610 5,735 9,040 4,455 37,550 37,550 270 3,000 
465 5,940 175 2,225 135 1,515 124 1,455 

2,255 
5,700 2,140 1,460 1.316 1,065 26,000 20,725 

2,450 21,530 25,880 2f,530 1.150 2,430 20,645 19,640 755 7,185 8,5OO 35 400 3,900 170 2,100 80 1,000 40 550 90 1,000 310 3,500 
4,870 50 120 370 610 355 145 170 600 635 8,000 2,320 5,250 37,985 37,985 6,705 8,940 8,645 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
DESCRIPTION 
Fourth Jefferson Drainage District Drainage District #9 Drainage District #9, Sob #1 Consolidated Waterworks District No. 2 

RANGE OF ANNUAL FINAL AMOUNT INTEREST MATURITY AMOUNT OUT- RATES DATE FROM TO ISSUED STANDING 
.05 4.75-6.65 .05-6.30 10115198 05101101 07/15/04 5.00-7.25 01/15/01 

Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment Paving Lien Ordinance #139 Lien Ordinance #152 Lien Ordinance #154 Sewerage East Bank Consolidated Lien Ordinance #1018 Lien Ordinance #1021 Lien Ordinance #1022 Water Lien Ordinance #30 Lien Ordinance #33 

6.00 7.10-7.25 6.75 6.00 7.10-7.25 6.75 
11/01/03 10/01/00 07/01/06 11/01/02 10/01/00 07101/06 6.00 11101/03 6.75 07]01/06 

50 380 160 530 
$ 10 4 2O 2 5 4 2 

Additional information pertaining to the foregoing bonds and certificates is as fallows: 
1. Special Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

- 9,000 470 4,500 240 3.000 50 1,690 1.385 645 8,350 2,345 $526,325 $336 076 
$ - $ 151 $ 62 192 12 201 181 32 9 151 15 47 42 21 8 4 3 $ 799 ~ 332 

2. Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds In 1997, the Parish defeased $3,900,000 of the 1992 A and B Series Occupancy Tax Bonds by issuing $5,735,000 in Series 1997 bonds. The bonds are secured by and payable from the one percent hotel occupancy tax levied and collected on the occupancy of hotel rooms located on the East Bank of the Mississippi River within the Parish of Jefferson. At December 31, 1997, $5,735,000 of such bonds were outstanding and $464,477 was available in the Debt Service Funds to service the debt. 3. Sales Tax Drainage Bonds In 1997, the Parish defeased $35,135,000 of the Sales Tax Drainage bonds, Series 1991 by issuing $37,550,000 in Series 1997 bonds. The bonds are secured by 2/3 of 1/2 of 1% sales tax collected in the unincorporated areas of Jefferson Parish. At December 31, 1997, $46,590,000 of such bonds were outstanding and $3,261,758 was availabte in the Debt Service Fund to service the debt. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCEAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued 

The $7,645,385 postclosure care liability on phases in operation at December 31, 1997 is made up of the following: 
Total estimated postclosure care costs Estimated capacity used Cumulative liability Less amount recognized Liability at year end 

PHASE I EXPANSION $7,645,385 100% 7.645,385 
PHASE II $1,968,000 100% t ,968,000 1,968,000 

TOTAL $9,613,385 

The amounts noted above are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care in 1997. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. The Parish is currently operating under financial assurance guidelines established by The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. While Phase II is not subject to these raquirements, the Parish has established a trust acoount to accumulate monies to pay for the postclosure care costs. At December 31, t997, $141,182 are held for these purposes. Judges' Annuities The parish is responsible for paying retirement benefits to First and Second Parish Coud judges, and their surviving spouses, who served on the bench prior to 1987 and, had opted not to participate in the Parish Employees' Retirement System. These benefits are paid from the General Fund. At the discretion of the Parish, it anticipates funding the benefits through the purchase of annuities. Based on actuarial calculations made, $3,322,165 is required as of December 31, 1997, The Parish has purchased $2,271,548 of annuities as of December 31, 1997, leaving an unfunded amount of $1,050,617, which is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT The following is a summary of the Parish's long-term debt transactions for the year ended December 31, 1997 (in thousands of dollars): RC)Nr)F; AND CERTIFICATES SPECIAL GENERAL ASSESSMENT TOTAL OBLIGATION DEBT WITH GENERAL & SPECIAL GOVERNMENTAL OTHER LONG-TERM REVENUE TAX _ COMMITMENT DEBT DEBT BONDS TOTAL Balance at January t, 1997 Bonds and certificates $354,280 Capital leases Compensaled absences Landfill postclosure costs Pension payable - Judges' annuities "354.280 Bonds/cedificates issued 81,270 Bonds/certificates retired (23,124) Bonds/certificates called/refunded (76,350) Capital leases increase (payments) Additional compensated absences Additior',al landfill poefc~osure costs Pensions payable - Judges' annuities 

$432 
432 
(41 ) 

$ $ 354,712 14,623 7,120 928 22,671 81,270 (23,183) (76,391) ~63 163 754 754 525 525 123 123 

$ 880 
~86 (~8o) 
$355,592 14,623 7,120 928 378,263 81,270 (24,063) (76,391) 163 754 525 123 Balenceat December 31, 1997 $336,076 ~ ~ $36064. 4 ,~ ~60,644 Annual debt service to maturity on bonds and certificates, including interest of $128,441,000 are as follows (in thousands of dollars): SPECIAL YEAR ENDfNG DECEMBER31, 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2007 2008-2012 2013-2017 2018-2020 

Less amount representing interest 

GENERAL OBLiGATiON & SPECIAL TAX $ 47,572 68,259 45,908 45,935 41,018 175,234 36,437 5,078 982 464,420 1283,3~44 $ 336,076. 

ASSESSMENT DEBT WiTH GOVERNMENTAL COMMITMENT 70 67 63 51 48 130 

TOTAL GENERAL LONG TERM DEBT $ 47,642 66,326 45,971 45,986 41,063 175,364 36,437 5,078 _ 982 429 464,849 97 -- 128,441 $ 332 ~ 336,408 There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The Parish is in compliance with all si9nificant limitations and restrictions. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE H - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) ADVANCE REFUNDING n 1997 and in prior years, the Parish defeased certain special tax and other bonds by piecing the proceeds of the new bonds into an rrevecable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the iability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Parish's Financial Statements. 

Issue Date Amount Issued Average Interest Rate 
Amount Average Interest Rate 

EAST BANK HOTEL DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT OCCUPANCY TAX REFUNDING SALES TAX REFUNDING BONDS AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS DRAINAGE REFUNDING SERIES 1997 SERIES 1997 BONDS SERIES 1997 September 1, 1997 December 1, 1997 December 1, 1997 $37,985,000 6.15% DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT REFUNDING BONDS SERIES 1987 $37,275,000 
Net proceeds Principal amount of new debt issued $37.985.000 Original issue discount (310,000) $37,675,000 Issuance Cost Net Proceeds (245,586 $37,429,414 Additional monies from Sinking/Reserve Funds $ 5,072 Increase (decrease) in future Debt service payments Economic Gain (less) $ (2,179,478) $ 1,555,943 

$ 5,735,000 $37,550,000 5.26% EAST BANK HOTEL OCCUPANCYTAX BONDS SERIES A & B 
4.76% SALES TAX DRAINAGE BONDS SERIES 1991 $ 3,900,000 $35,135,000 6.99% $ 5,735,000 (70,945) $ 5,664,055 
6.50% $37,550,000 (390,981) $37,159,019 {124,708) ~) 5,539,347 $36,670,278 $ 1,372,500 $(1,350,797) $ 224,733 $ 380,629 $ (3,154,221 $ 2,380,593 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 The debt outstanding at December 31, 1997 related to these defeasances is as follows (in thousands of dollars): General Obligation & Special Tax Bonds Drainage Improvement Refunding Series 1987 East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds Series A & B Sales Tax Drainage Bonds Series 1991 Total Current year Prior Years General Obligation & Special Tax Bonds Special Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series A of 1986 Special Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series B of 1986 LaSalle Tract Revenue Bonds - Series 1990 Road District No. 1 Sub-Road District No. 1 Total Prior years Total Defeased Debt NOTE I - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES Due from (to) other funds al December 3'T, f997 consist of 1he forrowing 
General Fund Special Revenue Health and Human Services Grants Department of Justice Grants Housing and Urban Development Grants Department of Labor Grants Streets Department Debt Service Consolidated Sewerage Lien Ordinances Capital Project Parishwide Drainage- 1991 Bond Issue Total Due from (to) component units at December 31, 1997 consist of the following: 
General Fund Special Revenue Housing and Urban Development Grants Component Unit Hospital District No. 2 Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port Dislrict Total 

RECEIVABLE FUND 

$ 37,275 3,900 35 135 

$ 95,510 25,835 5,555 18,185 145 085 
PAYABLE FUND $4,252,507 $ 

RECEIVABLE FUND 
35,968 3,221,692 $3,257,660 

387,020 488,790 489,163 801,237 782,338 72,304 
231,655 ~4,252,507 PAYABLE FUND $ 35,968 
3,221,692 
~3,257,660 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE I - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) Advanced from (to) other funds at December 31, 1997 consist of the following 
Special Revenue East Bank Consolidated Playground District Lafreniere Park Recreation District Total 

RECEIVABLE FUND 
$ 2O0,O00 

PAYABLE FUND 
$ - 200,000 

Advances from (to) component units at December 31, 1997 consist of the following: RECEIVABLE FUND General Fund Special Revenue Housing and Urban Development Grants Component Unit Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District Total 

$ 300,000 581.506 
$ 881,506 

PAYABLE FUND 

881,506 $881,506 NOTE J - RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCES/RETAINED EARNINGS The nature and purpose of the reservations and designations of fund balances/retained earnings are as follows: Reserved for iudqes' annuities - This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, prepaid judges' annuities, because it does not constitute an available, expendable resource of the fund. These annuities were purchased to provide for the future retirement benefits of the First and Second Parish Court judges. constitute an available, - This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, advances to other funds, because it does not spendable resource of the fund. term debt. - This represents the amount of fund balance available to pay the principal balances of the Parish's general long- Reserved for continqencies - This reserve was established in response to litigation filed against the Padsh's Consolidated Water Lien Ordinances Debt Service fund. The fund balance is being reserved pending settlement of the litigation. Reserved for construction - This represents unexpended balances of bond proceeds and sewer availability fees which are restricted for construction and improvements to the water and sewer systems. - This represents amounts restricted for payment of self-insurance claims Reserved for employees' retirement systems - This represents the amount of fund balances in the various employee retirement Pension Trust funds. These amounts are restricted for the payment of benefits and administrative costs of the plans. Desiqnated for subsequent year's expenditures - This represents the portion of fund balance available for appropriation which has been designated by the adopted 1998 budget ordinance, sewerage which was collected during 1997 but - This represents the portion of the 2/3 of 1/2 of 1% sales tax, dedicated to drainage and not yet allocated to the respective funds. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE J - RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCES/RETAINED EARNINGS (Continued) Designated for debt service - The designation of the Debt Service fund balance represents the portion of fund balance in excess of the amount reserved to make principal payments. The amount designated in the General Fund relates to the estimated amount required to service the debt of the EImwood Building bonds. This amount represents a portion of fund balance designated for future construction DesiFlnated for landfill improvements - This represents the accumulated balanco of "tipping fees" generated by the Jefferson Parish Landfill. This amount is being designated for construction of an oxidation pond and other treatment facilities. Reserved, designated and undesignated fund balances and retained earnings at December 31, 1997, were as follows: UNRESERVED Primary Government: General Fund: Judges' annuities Advances Subsequent year's expenditures Future distribution to other funds Debt service Construction Uncommitted Special Revenue Funds: Advances Subsequent year's expenditures Uncommitted Debt Service Funds: Debt service Contingencies Capital Projects Funds: Construction Landfill improvements Uncommitted Enterprise Funds: Construction Uncommitted Internal Service Funds: Self-insurance Uncommitted Fiduciary Funds: Employees' retirement system Total Primary Government Component Units: Debt service Employees' retirement system Uncommitted Total Component Units Total Reporting Entity 

RESERVED DESIGNATED UNDESIGNATED 
$ 2,271,548 600,000 
2,871,548 200.000 

2,857,823 592,767 6,000,000 5.000.000 14,450,590 10.005.651 200,000 10,005,651 50,466,832 1,000,0OO 51,466,832 
46,021,562 46,021,5~2 6,489,983 6,489,983 21,509,528 128,559,453 
10,983,000 86.139.484 97,122,484 ~225,881,937 

575.828 575,828 72,517,349 1.093.060 73,610,409 

98,642,478 

980,211 980,211 40,176,6& 40,176,658 
15,773,235 15,773,235 118,739,276 118,739,276 9,019,501 9,019,501 
184,688,881 
464,017,7i8 464,017,718 3648,706,599 



NOTE K - AD VALOREM TAX 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 

The Parish levies an ad valorem tax on real property as of November 15 of each year to finance the budget for the following year. The tax is due and becomes an enforceable lien on the property on the first day of the month following the filing of the tax rolls by the assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December 1). The tax is delinquent 30 days after its due date. Taxes are levied based on property values determined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's office. All land and residential improvements are assessed at 10 percent of its fair market value, and other property at 15 percent of its fair market value. Taxes are billed and collected by the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Department which receives a certain millage for its services. The taxes remitted by the Sheriff's Department to the Parish are net of assessor's commission and pension fund contribution. Ad valorem taxes are recorded as revenue of the period for which levied, thus the 1996 property tax which was levied to financo the budget for 1997 was recorded as revenue for the year 1997. The 1997 property tax which was levied to finance the budget for 1998 is recorded as deferred revenue. The number of mills levied for maintenance and operation, debt service, and capital improvements for the Parish end its various specie districts is as follows: NUMBER OF MILLS 997 BUDGET MAINTENANCE DEBT SERVICE AND AND CAPITAL .OPERATION IMPROVEMENTS Jefferson Parish (excluding City of Kenner) Jefferson Parish (Kenner) Jefferson Parish Library Jefferson Parish Health Unit Juvenile Detention Home Public Improvement Bonds (drainage) Garbage District #1 Garbage District #2 Garbage District #6 Consolidated Road District A Sub #1 Road District #1 Sub #1 Consolidated Road Lighting Road Lighting District #7 East Bank Consolidated Fire District Fire District #3 Fire District #4 Fire District #5 Fire District #6 Fire District #7 Fire District #8 Fire District #9 Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 East Bank Consolidated Playground District West Jefferson Consolidated Community Center and Playground District (formerly Districts 1 and 2) Playground District #10 Playground District #16 Fourth Drainage District Consofidafed Drainage District #1 (also includes all of old District #7) Drainage District #9 Drainage District #9 Sub #1 Ambulance District #1 Ambulance District #2 Transportation System Transportation System-Elderly and Handicapped 

2.11 1.05 6.43 2.09 3.69 4.57 4.75 4.84 4.66 4.64 22.89 13.27 16.55 13.61 14.16 19.61 19.76 9.27 .50 4.66 8.98 
9.69 9.56 9.27 .40 4.69 4.85 1 i.03 9.27 1.85 .92 

4.22 
9.09 10.66 
3.07 
5.80 .78 
11.26 .04 3.60 2.19 4,22 

998 BUDGET MAINTENANCE DEBT SERVICE AND AND CAPITAL OPERATION IMPROVEMENTS 
2.11 1.05 6.43 2.09 3.69 4.57 4.75 4.84 4.66 4.64 22.89 13.27 16.55 13.61 14.16 19.61 19.76 9.27 .50 4.66 8,98 9.69 10.00 9.27 6.00 4.69 4.85 1 i.03 9.27 1.85 .92 

4.25 
8.12 10.63 
3.12 
5.80 ,81 
8.74 
2.23 4.61 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE L - SALES TAX At December 31, 1997, the total sales tax levied in Jefferson Parish was 8 3/4 percent. The state sales tax is 4 percent of this 8 3/4 percent. SaJes taxes, except sales tax on motor vehicles, are collected by the Sheriff of Jefferson Parish (a separate entity) and he receives commission of 9 1/2 to 11 percent Of the amount collected. The sales taxes on motor vehicles are collected by the State of Louisiana which remits to the Parish its share. "the remaining 4 3/4 percent collected in Jefferson Parish is distributed as fonows 

1954 
1966 198t 

1 1/2 percent is levied by the Jefferson Parish Scboor Board. The Jefferson Parish School Board is a separate legal entity for which the Parish is not accountable and is not included in this report. 1/4 percent is levied by the Jefferson Parish Sheriff, The Jefferson Parish Sheriff is a separate legal entity for which the Parish is not accountable and is not included in the report. 3 percent is levied by the Jefferson Parish Council. Of the 3 percent levied by the Jefferson Parish Council, 1/2 percent is dedicated to the Jefferson Parish School Board and 1/6 percent is dedicated to the Jefferson Parish Sheriff. The Parish of Jefferson has effective use of 2 3/8 percent sales taxes, minus the 11% commission. The taxes are described below and are included in this report. 1/2 percent sales tax collected from unincorporated areas is dedicated solely for the purpose of constructing and maintaining public roads, highways and bridges within the unincorporated areas of the parish. 
1/2 percent sales tax collected from unincorporated areas is for general purposes determined by the Council 112 percent sales tax is collected and distributed as follows: 1/3 of 1/2 percent collected parishwide is dedicated for operation and maintenance of Parish drainage facilities. 213 at t.12 percent collected from u~,iP, corparated areas is dedicated for operation, maintenance, end capital improvements of drainage and sewerage facilities. 

1984 1 percent sales taxes is collected and distributed as fonows Of the one 'percent collected in unincorporated &teas {with the exception of the Towe of Jean Lafitte) 716 perceet and a~t of the tax collected within the Town of Jean Lafitte, is dedicafed to the purchase, construction, acquisition and improvement of the Capital Sewerage Program. The remaining 1/8 percent of tax collected within the unincorporated areas of the PaSsh is paid over to the Jefferson Parish Sheriff to provide funds for law enforcement purposes. The Sheriff is a separate legal entity, and is not included in this financial report. 
NOTE M - INDIRECT COSTS Indirect costs fees are based on a study conducted annually by a eafiooa}Jy recognized consulting firm. A CentraJ Services Cost Allocation Plan is generated which allocates support services (purchasing, accounting, personnel, building maintenance, etc.) provided by the General Fund to the varioas Parish departments/funds. These costs are recorded as expenditures in the other funds and as a revenue in the General Fund. Support services allocated for 1997 amounted to $759,5~0 for grant programs and $3,~57,B33 for other ~ands. 
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NOTE N-INTEREST COST 
JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 

No interest cost was capitalized during the year ended December 31, 1997. Interest expense incurred during the year was as follows (in thousands of dollars): 
nterest expense 

CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
NOTE O - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 

The Parish maintains two Enterprise Funds which provide water and sewer services. Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997 is as follows (in thousands of dollars): 

Type of Service Operating revenues Depreciation and amortization expense Operating income (loss) Shared revenues Tax revenues Operating transfers in (out) Net income (loss) Current capital contributions and transfers Property, plant and equipment Additions Transfers in (out) Net working capital Total assets Total equity 

CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
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Sewerage $12,554 8,560 (14,571) 313 4,918 2,094 (2,945) 6,350 167 12,698 5,806 381,448 373,368 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL Waterworks $17,952 $ 30,506 4,344 (2,159) 674 6,014 18 6.606 
4,220 (193) 12,593 154,277 140,728 

12,904 (16,730 987 10,932 2,112 3,881 6,350 4,387 12,505 18,399 535,725 514,094 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE P - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL During the year, contributed capital increased (decreased) by the following amounts (in thousands of dollars): 

Balance 111197 Additions Contributions of fixed assets Depreciation Balance 12131197 
NOTE Q ~ RISK MANAGEMENT GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE WATERWORKS DISTRICT DISTRICT NO. 1 NO. 1 TOTAL NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS $ 335,171 $ 17,009 $ 352,180 $ 590 
6,350 (8,414) $ 333,107 (78~) $ 16,226= 6,350 (9,197) 23 1_(1~) 

All funds of the Parish, except for The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish, participate in the program and make payments to the fund based on maeagement's estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. These interfund "premiums" are reported as quasi-external transactions. At December 31, 1997, the outstanding claims liability was $20,472,648, which includes an estimated liability for incurred but not repoded claims of $5,022,867, The estimated claim liability is determined by the third-party administrator based on historical information and anticipated payments. These liabilities are based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, "Accounting and Financial Repoding for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues" which requires that a liability for claims be reporled if information prior to the issuance of lho financial statements indicates that it is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount for the year ended December 31, 1996 and December 31, 1997 were: 
1996 1997 

BEGINNING OF YEAR LIABILITY $19,865,973 22.408.388 
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CURRENT YEAR CLAIMS AND ESTIMATES $ 5,618,001 2,172,567 
CLAIM PAYMENTS $(3,075,586) (4,108,307) 

BALANCE AT YEAR END $22,408,388 20,472,648 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE Q - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued HEALTH INSURANCE The Parish provides health and accident insurance to its employees exclusively through health-maintenanca organizations (HMO's) and point-of-service organizations (POS). Under these types of programs, the Parish pays initial premiums based on the level of the employee's participation and has no further fiabildies on any claims. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION The Parish is self-insured for unemployment claims filed with the state. To account for and finance these claims, the Parish has established a Unemployment Compensation Fund (an internal service fund) whereby each fund contributes .45 percent of its annual payroll into the fund. In 1995, the contribution was temporarily suspended until such time additional funding is needed to cover outstanding claims. These inlerfund "premiums" are reported as quasi-external transactions. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount for the year ended December 31, 1996 and December 31, 1997 were: 
1996 1997 

CURRENT YEAR BEGINNING OF CLAIMS AND YEAR LIABILITY ESTIMATES $ 156,672 193,977 NOTE R - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES FUTURE COMMITMENT - DRAINAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
$ 99,536 535.787 

CLAIM PAYMENTS $ (62,231) (152,471) 
BALANCE AT YEAR END $ 193,977 577,293 

In 1972 an independent contractor constructed a drainage canal, levee, and pumping facilities located in Consolidated Drainage District No. 1. Pursuant to resolutions No. 17519 and No. 20268 adopted by the Jefferson Parish Council, the Parish must reimburse the contractor for the costs of construction, which amounted to $425,000, out of the proceeds of future bond issues of Consolidated Drainage District No. 1. The resolution provides that the funds reimbursed from each bond issue shall be equal to that portion of the bond issue supported by the assessments on the property being drained by the pumping station until the contractor is fully reimbursed. As of December 31, 1997, no payments have been made to satisfy this commitment. FUTURE COMMITMENT - CORPS OF ENGINEERS The Parish entered into an agreement with the United States Army Corps of Engineers in January 1994 to conduct a study to alleviate rainfall flooding and improve the water quality of storm water runoff. The total cost is estimated to be $8,100,000, of which the Parish's share is 50%. The Parish may contribute up to 25% of their share in the form of in-kind services. As of December 31, 1997, the Parish has disbursed $800,000, of which $166,002, plus $39,041 of interest earned, is in escrow at a Depository Bank. LITIGATION The Parish is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally from personal injury, property damage, and construction claims. The Parish Attorney and the outside administrator of the Parish's Risk Management Fund have reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the Parish and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the Parish. As a result of such review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable," "reasonably possible," and "remote" contingencies, as defined in National Council on Governmental Accounting Statement 4 for Claims and Judgments. No loss contingencies have been categorized as "probable" thus no accrual has been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. The Parish's "reasonably possible" loss contingencies at December 31, 1997 for which an amount of liability can be estimated, approximates $6,100,000. FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS The Parish receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements. The programs are audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1996 and also subject to further examination by the grantor agency. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE R - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) The food stamp program is operated by the Parish under an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Health and Human Resources. Under this program, the Parish is responsible for the issuance of food coupons to eligible participants in the parish. "rhe value of food coupons on hand, received, and issued is not recorded in the accompanying statements. Parish involvement in the program ended in September, 1997. Activity for that time period fol]ows: Balance at January 1, 1997 Received during year Issued during year Ba]ance at December 31, 1997 MANAGEMEN"[ CONTRACT - CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
$11,263,630 23,040,898 (34,3045=~828) 

Additional payments required under this agreement include 1) management fee of $100,00O annually; 2) cost incentive fee equal to 25 percent of any underrun in total operations and maintenance costs paid annually up to $100,000; 3) performance incentive fee based on mathematical computation as provided in the agreement up to $100,000. ARBITRAGE REBATE 
LINE OF CREDIT - LAFITTE AREA WIDE SEWERAGE FACILITY 
NOTE S - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN The Parish offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all Parish employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Parish (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of the Parish's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Parish in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. The Parish's legal counsel believes that the Parish has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Parish believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. Investments are managed by PEBSCO. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participant. NOTE T - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 
The Parish provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees as authorized by Resolution No. 74791. Substantially all employees who reach normal retirement age while working for the Parish are eligible. The cost of these benefits are recorded as expenditures when the premiums are paid. At December 31, 1997, 745 retired employees were receiving health care benefits which totaled $1,222,543 and life insurance premiums paid to 857 retired employees totaled $27,081. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE T - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued 

NOTE U - PENSION PLANS THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF JEFFERSON PARISH (The Parish Plan) 

The Board issues a publicly available 8naocial report ~.hat includes financial st~,tements and required supplementary informatk3n for the Parish Plan. The financial report for year ended December 31, 1997 may be obtained by writing to: The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish, 1331 Metairie Road, Metairie, LA 70002 or by calling 504-831-4040. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Parish Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Contributions from Jefferson Parish and parish employees are recognized as revenue in the period in which employees provide services to Jefferson Parish. Contributions made to the Parish Plan by Jefferson Parish, the employer, are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Pension benefits and refunds of employee contributions are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Parish Plan. Investment income is recognized as earned by the Parish Plan. Method Used to Value Investments - All investments of the Parish Plan are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Concentrations of Credit Risk - The Parish Plan had 49.8% of plan net assets invested in one mutual fund, Other than this mutual fund, no investment in any one organization, other than the U. S. Government, represented 5% or more of plan net assets. 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued) Covered Payroll The Padsh's total payroll for all employees for the year ended December 31, 1997 amounted to $88,419,519. Total covered payroll under this plan was $21,170,519. Membership Current membership in the Parish Plan is comprised of the following as of December 31, 1997 Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them Active plan participants-vested 
Funding status and progress 

841 497 1.338 
The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusled for the effects of projected salary increases, esfimaled to be payabJe Jn the luture as a resuJt of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to (i) help users assess the Parish Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, (ii) assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and (iii) allow for comparisons amount public employee retirement plans. Because the standardized measurement is used only for disclosure purposes, the measurement is independent of the methods used to determine contributions to the Plans. The pension benefit obligations for the Parish Plan were determined as part of actuarial valuations made as of December 31, 1997. Signif~cent actuarial assumptions used to determine the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligations are summarized as follows: 
Rate of return on the investment of present and fulure assets Projected salary increases due to: Inflation Merit or seniority Post-retirement benefit increases 

PARISH PLAN 
8.00% 3.25% 2.75% N/A The standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation for the Parish Plan is compdsecJ of the following as of December 31, 1997 PARISH PLAN Pension benefit obligation: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees not yet receiving benefits Current employees: Accumulated employee contributions Employer-financed vested Employer-financed nonvested Total pension benefit obligation Net assets available for benefits, at cost or amortized cost (market value - $21,316,874) Unfunded pension benefit obligation 

$24,094,192 2,478,277 2,575,812 _~3216,909 32.367.190 18,915,801 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31, 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued) Contributions required and made The funding policies of the Parish Plan provide for contributions ~t actuarially determined rates that are sufficient to pay benefits when due. The contribution rates of the parish Plan are determined using the entry age normal cost method, with the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being funded over a 40 year period. The Parish Council authorizes the contribution rates each year. Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute pension contribution requirement are the same as those used to determine the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation. Contributions required and made for the Parish Plan is comprised of the following as of December 31, 1997: PARISH PLAN Contribution required: Normal cost Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
Contributions made Employer Employee 
Contributions made as a percentage of annual covered payroll: Employer Employee "TTen5 ~nf oTrna~.ion Historical trend information for the Parish Plan is as follows: 
Net assets available for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation: i997 1996 1995 Unfunded (assets in excess of) pension benefit obligation as a percentage of annual covered payroll: 1997 1996 1995 Employer contributions to the pension plan as a percentage of annual covered payroll: 1997 1996 1995 

$ 266,748 9192~373 ~21 $1,082,203 155,812 $ 1,238 0~15 
5.11% .74% 
PARISH PLAN .(DECEMBER 31) 
58.4% 56.6% 55.3% 
63.5% 64.3% 62.2% 
5.1% 4.7% 3.9% 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule of Funding Progress 
Actuadal Valuation Date 1995 1996 1997 

Actuarial Value of Assets $17,163,066 18,405,917 20,043,550 
Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded (AAL) AAL Entry AeL (UAAL} $31,557,582 32,488,152 32,946,135 $14,394,516 14,082,235 12,902,579 

Funded Ratio Covered Percentage Payroll 54.39 $22,317,135 56.65 21,476,026 60.84 21,170,519 

UAAL as% of Covered ~ Payroll 64.50 65.57 60.95 Trend Information Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits when due. Six-year trend data in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25 may be found in lhe Supplementary information section of The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish December 31, 1997 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Ten-year historical trend information in accordance with GASB Statement No. 5 is presented in the supplementary information section of this report, PAROCHIAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF LOUISIANA (The State Plan) Plan Description The Parochial Employees' Retirement System Board of Trustees (The Board) administers the Parochial Employees' Retirement System (the State Plan), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan established by the Louisiana legislature as of January 1, 1953, by Act 205 of 1952. The State Plan was revised by Act No. 765 of 1979, effective January 1, 1980, to create the Plan A and Plan B fund to replace the "regular plan" and the "supplemental plan". Plan B Fund replaced the "regular plan". The State Plan is operating pursuant to LSA-R.S. 11:1901 through 11:2015. The State Plan covers employees who were hired subsequent to December 15, 1979, Under the State Plan, a member is eligible for normal retirement if the participant has at least 30 years of creditable service regardless of age, or 25 years of creditable service end is at least 55 years old, or 10 years of creditable service and is at least 60 years old. The monthly retirement benefit is equal to three percent Of the member's average monthly compensation for any 36 months of consecutive service in which compensation was highest, multiplied by years of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of the member's final compensation. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree. Under certain conditions, upon the retiree's death, benefits are payable to the retiree's surviving spouse and minor children. Covered Payroll The Perish's total payroll for all employees for the year ended December 31, 1997 amounted to $88,419,519. Total covered payroll under this plan was $70,794,621. Membership Membership data for the State Plan is not available by individual employer Funding Status and Progress The State Plan does not conduct separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obligations for individual employers. At December 31, 1996, the total pension benefit obligafion was $857,931,079, net assets available for benefits were $756,122,800 and unfunded pension benefit obligations were $101,808,279. These amounts were determined as pad of actuarial valuations made as of December 31, 1996. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued) The total pension benefit obligation is based on the actuarial value of credited projected benefits. This pension valuation method reflects the present value of estimated pension benefits that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed to date and is adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits. A standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation was intended to enable readers to (i) assess the funding status on a going-concern basis, (if) assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and (ill) make comparisons among other plans. Because the standardized measurement is used only for disclosure purposes, the measurement is independent of the methods used to determine contributions to the Plan. No changes in actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly affect the valuation of the pension benefit obligations occurred during 1997. "the contributions of the State Plan are established by State Statutes. Contributions made for the year ended December 31, 1997 are as follows: Employer Contribution percentage Covered payroll percentage Amount Employee Contribution percentage Covered payroll percentage Amount 
Trend Information 

7.75% 7.75% $ 5,487,415 9.50% 9.50% $ 6,725,441 ~12,212,856 
Historical trend information is presented in order for a reader to assess the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become due. Ten year historical trend information for the State Plan in accordance with GASB Statement No. 5 is available in a separately issued Parochial Employees' Retirement System December 31, 1998 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Plan Description The Firefighters' Retirement System Board of Trustees administers the Firefighters' Retirement System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan covering firefighters employed by an municipality, parish, for fire protection district of the State of Louisiana. The plan was created under the provisions of LRS 11:2251 through 11:2269. 
The Firefigbters' Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial sfatements and required supplementary information. The financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 may be obtained by writing to: Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwoed Dr., Baton Rouge, LA 70809 or by calling 504-925-4060. 

Covered Payroll The Padsh's total payroll for all employees for the year ended December 31, 1997 amounted to $88,419,519. Total covered payroII under this plan was $9,490,128. Membership Membership data for the Firefighters' Retirement System is net available by individual employer 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Accounting - The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized in the period in which the employee is compensated for services. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable. Method Used to Value Investments - All investments are fixed income securities and common stock and are reported at fair market value based on quoted market prices. Concentrations of Credit Risks - The System has concentrations of investments in U. S. government and agency securities as well as bonds and stocks of U. S. corporations. The value end colleefibility of these investments is dependent on the normal market conditions that impact these types of investments as well as the continued existence and solvency of those entities. Funding Policy - Contributions for all members are established by statute at 8.0% of earnable compensation. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitled by the participating agency. According to state statute, contributions for all employers are aetuerial~y determined each year. For the year ended Juno 30, 1997, employer contributions were 8.6% o1 member's earnings. Funding Status and Progress The Firefighters' Retirement System does not conduct separate measurements of assets as a pension benefit obligation for individual employers. At June 30, 1997, the total pension benefit obligation was $498,264,885, net assets available for benefits were $475,344,743 and unfunded pension benefit obligations were $22,926,142. These amounts were determined as part of actuarial valuations made as of June 30, 1997. The total pension benefit obligation is based on the actuarial value of credited projected benefits. This pension valuation method reflects the present value of estimated pension benefits that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed 1o date and is adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits. A standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation was intended to enable readers to (i) assess the funding status on a going-concern basis, (it) assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, end (iii) make comparisons amount other plans. Because the standardized measurement is used only for disclosure purposes, the measurement is independent of the methods used to determine contributions to the Plan. No changes in actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly affect the valuation of the pension benefit obligation Occurred during 1997. Contributions Required and Made The contributions of the Firefighters' Retirement System are fixed at 8% of their covered salary. The Parish's contribution rate is set at 9%. The Firefighters' Retirement System also received funds from insurance premium taxes each year as appropriated by the Legislature. This income is used as additional employer contributuions. Contributions made for the year ended December 31, 1997 are as follows: Employer Contribution percentage Covered payroll percentage Amount Employee Contribution percentage Covered payroll percentage Amount 

9.00% 9.00% $ 854.I'i3 
8.00% 8.00% $ 759,194 $1,613,307 Required Contributions - The Firefighters' Retirement System made 100% of the following required contdbut{ons: Year 1997 1996 1995 $15,341,86f $12,528,250 $ 6,689,178 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE U - PENSION PLANS (Continued Trend Information Historical trend information is presented in order for a reader to assess the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become due. Seven year historical trend information for the Firefighters' Retirement System in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25 is available in a separately issued Firefighters' Retirement System June 30, 1997 financial report. NOTE V - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS Fund balances/retained earnings and General Fixed Assets at the beginning of the year have been restated to reflect changes in classifications of certain funds and to correct errors as follows: Adjustment An error in the 1996 financial statements overstated revenues of $121,054 and overstated expenditures of $123,9'12 which [esulted in the decrease in fund balance of the following funds: Special Revenue Miscellaneous Grants $ 2,258 
An error in the 1990 financial statements overstated/(understated) revenues/expenditures which resulted in an increase/(decrease) in fund balance of the following funds: Capital Projects Road District #1, Sub. #1 Federal Aid Urban East Bank Consolidated Playground Capital Improvements $ (14,695) (109,768) 1,215 Property, plant and equipment was reduced in various Enterprise and Internal Service funds due to a change in the capitalization threshold resulting in a restatement of fixed assets. The restatement resulted in a reduction of retained earnings of the followiog funds: Enterprise Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 nternal Service Central Garage Central Tire Central Telephone Computer Center Parish Photographer Central Printing Engineering Environmental and Water Quality General Liability 

$ (311,75~) (287,175) 
(236,544 (1,679 (7,200 351,917 (2,242 (8,764 (118,192 (155,713 (21,479 Due to implementation of GASB No, 25, investments are required to be reported at fair value and that the net appreciation/depreciation in fair value be reported in current year operafions. The change resulted in an increase in fund balance of the following funds: Trust and Agency Pension Trust Fund $ 640,171 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE V - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued The effect of these changes on fund balance/retained earnings at January 1, 1997 is summarized below: 

ADJUSTMENTS 1 2 3 4 Total 

FUND TYPE GOVERNMENTAL SPECIAL REVENUE $ 2,258 

Fund balance/retained earnings As previously reported As restated 

CAPITAL PROJECT ENTERPRISE 
(t23,248) 

INTERNAL SERVICE 
(598,926) (199,896) 

FIDUCIARY TRUST AND AGENCY $ 
__ 640,171 2,258 (123,248) (598,926) (199,896) 640,171 

44,008,556 $ 44,010,814 _ 88,229,63! 152,502,980 $__88,t06,383 $151,904,054 11,229,727 $11,029,831 1._1~8004,054 1~/8,644,225 The effect of these changes on excess revenues over expenditures for the year ended December 31, 1996 are as follows Adiustments 1 2 3 4 
Increase Special Revenue Funds of $2,258 Decrease Capital Projects funds of $123,248 The restatement of fixed assets had no effect on excess revenues over expenditures Increase Trust and Agency funds of $640,171 

In addition, property, plant and equipment was reduced due to a change in the capitalization threshold from $100 to $2,000. The increase in the threshold resulted in a reduction in fixed assets reported in the General Fixed Asset Account Group of $12,025,075. 
NOTE W - AVAILABILITY OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL REPORTS FUND Enterprise Funds Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Pension Trust Fund The Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS Financial reporting standards require footnote disclosure on diseretely presented component units considering both the unit's significance relative to the total discretely presented component units and the nature and significance of the unit's relafionship to the primary government (the Parish). As such, the following disclosures are presented. 1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS The bank balances at year-end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of credit risk assumed by the Component Units at year-end. Category A includes balances which are insured or collateralized with securities held by the Component Unit or by its agent in the Component Unit's name. Category B includes balances collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the Component Unit's name. Category C includes balances which are uncollateralized or for which the securities pledged are held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the Component Unit's name. The carrying amount of the deposits ere also noted. 

Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District Home Mortgage Authority Hospital District No. 1 Hospital District No. 2 

(In thousands of dollars) CATEGORY 
$ 301 4,971 9,103 301 

B TOTAL TOTAL BANK CARRYING C BALANCE AMOUNT $ 332 $ $ 633 $ 595 4,971 4,971 9,103 7,937 _ 12,766 13 067 13,371 Totals ~$~4_,_676 ~ 332 $ 12,766 ~ $ 26,874 Investments at year end ere categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Component Unit at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Component Unit or its agent in the Component Unit's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's lrusl department or agent in the Component Unit's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investrr+ents for which the securities ere held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the Component Unit's name. (In thousands of dollars) CATEGORY 
U. S. Government Securities Mutual funds Fixed income funds Equity funds Guaranteed investment contracts Other Total Investments reported on Combined Balance Sheet 

1 2 $ 402,645 $ 26,590 
CARRYING MARKET 3 AMOUNT VALUE $ 2,034 $ 431,269 $ 436,442 23,586 10,295 26,540 30,587 8,949 

23,586 10,295 26.540 30,587 ~9~ 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued The following is a breakdown of the carrying amount between the component units by credit risk category: (In thousands of dollars) CATEGORY 
Home Mortgage Authority Hospital District No. 1 Hospital District No. 2 Total 2. RECEIVABLES 

1 2 3 TOTAL $ 175,506 227,139 $ - $ 2,034 26.590 $ 2,034 202,096 227,139 
NOTES RECEIVABLE At year end, the Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District had $930,047 of notes receivable. These notes consist of loans which were made to businesses located in Jefferson Parish pursuant to the provisions of Title I of lhe Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and Title IX of the Public Works and Economic Development Act of 1965, as amended. The loans were made from the special revenue and agency funds established solely for this purpose. Funding for Community Development loans was provided by Jefferson Parish from its CDBG fund with funds received from Housing and Urban Development ("HUD"). In September 1997, HUD suspended all lending of grant monies for JEDCO pending resolution to repayment plan for loans defaulted under its Section 108 Guaranteed Loan Program. Funding for the Economic Development Act loans was provided by grants from the U. S. Department of Commerce, State of Louisiana and Jefferson Parish. The loans are payable in monthly installments consisting of principal and interest at rates of 5% to 10% over periods ranging from four to twenty years. All loans are collateralized by a combination of mortgages on property and life insurance policies, and continuing or personal guarantees of the owners of the businesses to which made. LEASE PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 

Year ending December 31 1998 1999 2000 2001 
1008 Elmwood Park Blvd. $ 100,510 95,485 90,710 1,723,495 

1209 Distributors Row $ 92,500 91,000 89,500 663 000 
The payments due in the year 2001 include final balloon payments due on August 1, of $1,637,320 for 1008 Elmwood Park Blvd. and $475,000 for 1209 Distributors Row. The lessee has an option to acquire the leased properties at the conclusion of the lease term for the sum of $1.00, or at any time by prepaying all rents due under the leases. 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 3t. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) MORTGAGELOANSRECEIVABLE At year end, the Jefferson Parish Home Mortgage Authority had $165,877,000 in mortgage loans receivable relating to its single-family mortgage programs. These mortgages take the form of whole mortgages or fully modified mortgage pass-through certificates (GNMA certificates) and FNMA certificates. A breakdown of the receivable by program year is as fellows (in thousands of dollars): 
pROGRAM YEAR 1982 1984 1985/1994R 1987 1986 1989 1990 1991 1993 1994 1995 1996 

TYPE Whole Mortgage Whole Mortgage Whole Mortgage GNMA Certificate GNMA Certificate GNMA Certificate GNMA Certificate Whole Mortgage GNMA Certificate GNMA & FNMA Certificate GNMA & FNMA Certificate GNMA & FNMA Certificate 

INTEREST RATE RECEIVABLE 12.990% 10.800% 10.220% 9.125% 8.800% 8.500% 8.450% 7.625% 9.957% 7.990% 7.190% 6.730% 

$ 131 3,284 2,397 12,595 21,485 26,049 12,762 26,353 21,989 9,265 11,558 18,014 $165,87_7 The principal and interest payments for all of the programs are either secured by first liens, GNMA certificates backed by certain qualifying loans or are guaranteed by the U. S. Government or the Federal National Mortgage Association. 3. LONG-TERM DEBT BONDS AND CERTIFICATES Long-term debt of the Component Units at December 31, 1997, includes the following serial bonds and certificates (in thousands of dollars): RANGE OF ANNUAL 
DESCRIPTION Revenue Bonds Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series 1982 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bond - Series 1984 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series 

1985 1987A 1988A 

FINAL INTEREST MATURITY RATES DATE FROM 
12.61 09/01/14 $ 5 9,80-11.00 09/01/15 14 9.37-t0,80 05/01/17 8.59 08/01/19 12,813 7.60 -8.30 04/01/20 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series 1989A 7.10-7.87 12/01/21 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series 1990A 7.00-8.10 09101/23 Collateralized Mortgage Obligations - Series 1991A Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Series 1993A 6.35-8.29 09/15/12 4.45-6.00 12101124 9.50 05/01117 6,75-7.55 12/01/26 

60 

320 2,460 1,390 274 1,000 1,932 730 

AMOUNT AMOUNT OUT- TO _ ISSUED STANDING 
$ $19,175 $ 3 460 31,750 1,039 26,000 253 38,600 12,813 21,560 50,000 23,165 19,225 50,000 26,085 7,370 25,000 12,785 25,829 59,485 26,113 11,114 28,350 21,996 3,242 1,932 5,495 11,635 9,370 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31, 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) RANGE OF ANNUAL 
DESCRIPTION Tax-Exempt Agency Mortgage Backed Securities-Series 1995A Tax-Exempt Agency Mortgage Backed Securities-Series 1996A Tax-Exempt Agency Mortgage Backed Securities-Series 1997A Total Home Mortgage Authority West Jefferson Medical Center (Series 1986) West Jefferson Medical Center (Louisiana Public Facilities Authority, Series 1988) West Jefferson Medical Center (Series 1993) Total Hospital District No. 1 East Jefferson General Hospita (Series 1985) East Jefferson Genera/Hospita (Series 1993) Total Hospital District No. 2 

FINAL AMOUNT INTEREST MATURITY AMOUNT OUT- RATERS _ . DATE FROM TO ISSUED STANDING 5.45-6.65 12101/26 5.25-6.15 06/01/28 4.90-5,85 12/01/28 
2,000 875 1.650 
4,300 12,500 11,620 8,000 18,425 18,265 5,295 20,100 17,395 $394,462 $182,834 3.50-4.00 01/01/26 $48,000 $ $ 48,000 $ 48,090 

7.90 12/01/15 4.30-5.40 01101/19 735 1.055 4,490 70,000 45,665 4,215 55,265 52,300 $173,265 $145,965 
Various 12101115 $55,000 $ $ 55,000 $ 55,009 3.10-5.70 07/01/16 1,935 5,020 64,575 60,925 $119,575 $115,925 Total all component units $687,302 $444,724 Annual debt service to maturity, including interest of $442,028,000 are as follows (in thousands of dollars): 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2007 2008-2012 2913-2017 2018-2022 2023-2027 2028-2032 
Less amount representing interes 

HOME MORTGAGE AUTHORITY $ 14,271 14,283 14,146 13,681 13,656 72,138 102,721 99,972 69,236 26,656 14,097 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO.l___ $10,853 10,732 10,849 11,650 11+775 64,331 59,945 35,831 13,502 55,546 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 TOTAL $ 5,310 60,309 5,310 5,309 5,310 26,551 26,548 21,234 
445.857 285,014 155,861 263,023 182,834 139,049 $145,965 39,956 ~115,925 

$ 30,434 85,324 30,305 30,640 30,741 163,020 189,214 148,037 82,738 82,202 14,097 886,752 442,028 $444,724 There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The Component Units are in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) ADVANCE REFUNDING In prior years, the Component Units defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds into irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Component Unit's Financial Statements. The debt outstanding at December 31, 1997 relating to defeasances is as follows (in thousand of dollars): Revenue Bonds East Jefferson General Hospital 1975 Series Revenue Bonds $ 4,790 West Jefferson Medical Center 1979 Series Revenue Bonds 28,415 West Jefferson Medical Center 1985 Series Hospital Revenue Bonds 15,000 West Jefferson Medical Center Louisiana Public Facilities Authority 10,500 Jefferson Home Mortgage Single Family Mortgage ReVenue Bonds-Series 1979A 56,989 Jefferson Home Mortgage Compound Interest Revenue Bonds-Series 1985 . 1,131 Total Defeased Debt $115,916 NOTES In 1991, JEDCO issued short term notes for $4,500,000. The proceeds of the notes were loaned to a manufacturer in accordance with Hud Section 108 Loan Guarantee program. In July 1991, the short term notes were refunded with long term notes. The long term notes are payable over a period of 10 years with interest payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 8.56% to 8.74%. At December 31, 1997, the notes had an outstanding balance of $3,765,000. In 1994, JEDCO issued short term notes for $2,625,000. The proceeds of the notes were loaned to a manufacturer in accordance with Hud Section 108-2 Loan Guarantee program. In August 1995, the short term notes were refunded with long-term notes. The long-term notes ere payable over a period of 10 years with interest payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 8.08% to 8.27%, At December 31, 1997, the notes had an outstanding balance of $2,215,000. In 1991, West Jefferson Medical Center and Subsidiary (Hospital District No. 1) signed a promissory note for $20,000,000 at a variable rate for 15 years with Louisiana Public Facilities Authority in connection with the purchase of equipment and capital improvements. The note is collateralized by the pledge of the revenues of the Medical Center as provided in the loan agreement. At December 31, 1997, the note had an outstanding balance $17,066,000. In January 1990, East Jefferson General Hospital (Hospital District No. 2) signed a promissory note for $2,680,000 at 7.5% for 10 years in connection with the purchase of medical clinic buildings and the land on which they are situated. At December 31, 1997 the promissory note had an outstanding balance of $1,015,344. The note is collateralized by a mortgage and vendor lien on the medical clinic buildings and on two parcels of land purchased. Annual note payments to maturity, inctuding interest of $7,638,000, are as follows (in thousands of dollars): YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3~ 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2007 
Less amount representing interest 

JEDCO $ 1,351 1,016 2,012 2,253 355 698 7,685 1,705 $ 5,98O 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 $ 2,845 2,849 2,850 2,847 2,845 8,54Q 22,776 5,776 $17,o00. 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 TOTAL $ 391 390 391 $ 4,587 4,255 5,253 5,100 3,200 9,238 31,633 7,638 $23,995 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) GENERAL DEBT The Hospital District No. 1 has an agreement with an outside firm to manage the information systems function. Future commitmenls under this arrangement total $2,596,090 until September, 1998. The Hospital District No. 2 has a capital lease obligation on various facilities and equipment. The outstanding balance on these lease obligafions at December 31, 1997 was $12,767,581. In addition, JEDCO has an accrued liability for compensated absences of $18,371, operating lease obligations of $1,130,473 and capital lease obligations of $29,524 at December 31, 1997. 4. PENSION PLANS Employees of the Parlsh's two hospital districts are participants in separate single-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by each of the respective hospitals. EAST JEFFERSON GENERAL HOSPITAL RETIREMENT AND SAVINGS PLAN (The East Jeff Plan) Plan Descriptions The Pension Committee is the administrator of the East Jefferson General Hospital Retirement and Savings Plan (The East Jeff Plan) and, under Louisiana R.S. 46:1068, is authorized to establish and maintain actuarially sound pension and retirement systems making contributions from hospital service district funds. The Plan was established for the purpose of providing retirement benefits for substantially all employees of East Jefferson General Hospital. The East Jefferson General Hospital Retirement and Savings Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial report for year ended December 31, 1997 may be obtained by writing to: East Jefferson General Hospital, Administration Department or by calling 504-454-4000. Employees of the East Jefferson General Hospital who are at least 21 years of age with a least one year of credited service are eligible to participate in the plan. Plan benefits ,zest after five years of credited service. Employees 52 years of age or older w~th at least 10 years of service may retire and receive an annual benefit at normal retirement the benefit accrued through December 31, 1988 plus for each year after 1988, benefits accrued equal .75 percent of the participant's annuals earnings up to a designated "breakpoint" and 1.25 percent of annual pay in Social Security taxable wage base increases, so will the breakpoint. The annual retirement benefits are payable monthly for life. If a participant dies after becoming vested, the surviving spouse will receive a monthly benefit from the plan commencing when the participant would have qualified for early retirement, unless the spouse elects to defer payments to a later date. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Accounting - The East Jeff Plan's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which the employee is compensated for services performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Interest and dividend income is recognized when earned. Method Used to Value Investments - Investments of the East Jeff Plan are reported at fair value, short-term investments are reported at cost and insurance contracts at contract value, which approximates fair value. Long-term Contracts - The East Jeff Plan has entered into guaranteed investment contracts with life insurance companies investing contributions during specified periods of time at guaranteed interest rates. Generally, the accounts are increased by contributions for the period specified and ieterest earned net of expenses. The accounts are reduced by withdrawals charged by each company. Various agreements exist with terms through September, 1999 and net interest rates ranging from 5.24% to 7.56%. The contract values are reported to the East Jeff Plan by each life insurance company. Concentrations of Credit Risk - There is not concentration of credit risk in investments held by the East Jeff Plan. Covered Payron Total payroll for all employees for the year ended December 31, 1997 amounted to approximately $86,409,000. Total covered payroll under the East Jeff Plan was $71,380.919. 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X ~ SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) Membership Current membership in the East Jeff Plan is comprised of the following as of December 31, 1997 Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits but not yet receiving them 817 Active plan padicipants-vested 1,916 2,733 Fu~ding Status aru3 Progress The amount shown as the pension obligafion in the following table is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted beginning January 1, 1997 for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the Plan, is the actearial present value of credited projected benefits. The measure is intended to help users assess the East Jeff Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis end assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Significant actuarial assumptions used in 1997 include a rate of return on the investment of present end future assets of 8.5% per year compounded annually and a combined projected salary increase attributable to inflation of 2.50% and seniority/merit of 2.50% per year compounded annually. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation Annual required contribution $1,417,503 Adjustment to annual required contribution __ 197,497 Annual pension cost 1,615,000 Contributions made (t ,357,257) Increase in net pension obligation 257,743 Net pension obligation beginning of year Net pension obligation end of year 6,289,961 ~L6,547,704 Contributions Required and Contributions Made The funding policy of the Plan provides for actuarially determined periodic employer contributions at rates that, for individual employees, remain fairly constant over time so that sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits when due. The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the Unit Credit actuarial cost method. The Plan is being funded based on its normal cost, as actuarially determined, reduced by amounts sufficient to amortize an overfonded amount from prior years over a ten-year pedod. The Hospital made contributions of approximately $1,357,000 in 1997 and is fully funded according to Internal Revenue Service funding limitations. A total of $6,548,000 has been accrued as a pension liability through December 31, 1997. Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the contribution required are the same as those used to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation. Required Contributions Fiscal Year Endinq 12/31/95 12131196 12/31/97 
Annual Pension __Cost (APC) $1,700,000 1,650,000 1,615,000 

Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100 100 
Net Pension _.Oblination $4,956,000 6,290,000 6.548.000 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOU]SIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule of Funding Progress 
Actuarial Valuation Date 1/1996 1/1997 1/1998 

Actuarial Value of ,dssets $18,032,105 19,753,066 24,007,805 
Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded (AAL) AAL Entry Aqe (UAAL} $17,168,899 19,580,983 22,268,371 $ (863,206) (172,083) (1,739,434) 

Funded Ratio Covered Percentage Payroll 105.0 $59,044,867 100.9 65,128,769 107.8 71.380,919 
UAAL as% of Covered Payroll 0 0 0 Trend information Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulafing sufficient assets to pay pension benefits when due. Six-year trend data in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25 may be found in lhe SuppJementary Jnformafion secfion of the East Jefferson General Hospital Retirement and Savings Plan, December 3t, 1997 Report, RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF WEST JEFFERSON MEDICAL CENTER (The West Jeff Plan Plan Description The Pension Committee administers the Retirement Plan for Employees of West Jefferson Medical Center (The West Jeff Plan) and, a Louisiana Attorney General opinion, empowered this hospital service district to create this non-contributory pension plans for officers and employees and to completely fund the plan with district funds. The West Jeff Plan covers substantially all employees of West Jefferson Medical Center who meet certain length of service requirements and is funded through employer contributions and investment earnings. The Retirement Plan for Employees of West Jefferson Medical Center issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial report for year ended December 31, 1997 may be obtained by writing to: West Jefferson Medical Center, Administration Department or by calling 504-349-1110. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Acooun{in9 - The West Jeff Plan's financial statements are prepared using the acorual basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee services are performed. Method Used to Value Investments - The assets of the West Jeff Plan are invested in various fixed income, equity and short-term money market funds managed by a Trustee. Investments are carried at fair value as reported by the Trustee. Concentrations of Credit Risk - The fair value of individual investments that represent 5% or more of the Plan's total net assets as of December 31. 1997 is as follows: Federated U. S. Government Trust Institutional Fund Vanguard Fixed Income Securities Fund Federated Growth Strategies Fund SEI S&P500 Index Fund Marquis Treasury Securities Money Market Fund 
$ 6,551,116 3,743,852 2,031,060 19,954,008 5.722.567 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued 

Covered Payroll Total payroll for all employees for the year ended December 31, 1997 was approximately $49,814,000. Total covered payroll under the West Jeff Plan was $37,269,213, Membership Current membership in the West Jeff Plan is comprised of the following as of December 31, 1997: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 366 Active plan parScipants-vested 1 3_~ZZ77 1!743 Funding Status The amount shown below as pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 1998 and represents a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the West Jeff Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and make comparisons with other plans. Annual Pension cost and net Pension Obligatiom Annual required contribution Adjustment to annual requ]red cenlribufion Annual pension cost Contribution made Increase in net pension obligation Net pension ob]igation beginning of year Net pension obligation end of year 
$ 911,398 
911,398 (911,398) 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8.5% per year, compounded annually, and projected salary increases based on merit of 5% per year. Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are the same as those used to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation. Required Contributions Fiscal Year Endinq Annual Pension Cost (APC) 12131195 $1,419,308 12/31/96 12131/97 1,140,375 911,398 

Percentage of APC _Contdbuted 100% 100 100 
Net Pension _ Obligation 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) December 31. 1997 NOTE X - SELECTED DISCLOSURES ON DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule of Funding Progress 
Actuarial Valuation Date 111995 1/1996 111997 

Actuarial Value of Assets $19,388,000 23,743,000 28,228,006 Trend Information 

Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded (AAL) AAL Entry Aqe (UAAL) $25,934,315 27,596,935 29.532.330 $ 6,346,315 3,853,935 1,304,330 
Funded Ratio Covered Pementaqe Payroll 75.5 $36,983,844 86.0 38,038,967 95.6 37,269,213 

UAAL as% of Covered Payroll 17.2 10.1 3.5 
Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits when due. Six-year trend data in accordance with GASB Statement No. 25 may be found in the Supplementary information section of the Retirement Plan for Employees of West Jefferson Medical Center December 31, 1997 Report. 5. HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM REIMBURSEMENTS Both Hospital districts participate in the medicare and medicaid programs as providers of medical services to program beneficiaries. For the year ended December 31, 1997, approximately 45 percent of Hospital District No. l's patient service revenues and 44 percent of Hospital District No. 2's patient service revenues were derived from patients covered by the programs. Revenues derived from the Medicare and Medicaid programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the fiscal intermediary and the Department of Health and Human Services. At December 31, 1997, final reviews and settlements for periods ended through December 31, 1991 have been made for Hospital District No. 1 and through December 31, 1992 for Hospital District No. 2. The management of each district does not anticipate any significant adjustments by the fiscal intermediary for the years not yet reviewed. 6. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS East Jefferson General Hospital Retirement and Savings Plan financial statements for 1996 has been restated to record income earned for 1996 not previously recorded. The effect of the restatement was an increase in the net assets held in trust for pension benefits for 1996 by $432,347. 
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GENERALFUND 
The General Fund is the principal fund of the Parish, and is used to account for the financial resources and expenditures not accounted for in any other fund. 



Cash and cash equivalents Share of pooled assets Receivables Ad valorem tax Accounts Intergovernmental Due from other funds Advances to component units Advance to other governments Deposits and other assets TOTAL ASSETS 
Liabilities Accounts payable Intergovernmental payable Due to component units Deposits Other payables and accruals Deferred revenue TOTAL LIABILITIES 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET December 31. 1997 
ASSETS 

LIAB1LIT!ESAND FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance Reserved for judges' annuities Reserved for advances Unreserved Designated for subsequent year's expenditures Designated for future distribution to other funds Designated for debt service Designated for construction Undesignated TOTAL FUND BALANCE TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

72 

$ 

$ 

3,497,067 6.336.524 2,785,329 892,081 11,274,459 4,252,507 300,000 300,000 2.348.548 31.984.515 
1,431,886 3,037,822 35,968 162,750 3,731,652 5,282,088 13.682.166 
2,271,548 600.000 2,857,823 592,767 6,000,000 5,000,000 980,211 18.302.349 $ 31,984,515 



Revenues Taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

JEFFERSON PARISH~ LOUISIANA GENERALFUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESINFUNb BALANCE ACTUALAND BUDGET(BUDGETARY BASIS) 

TOTAL REVENUES Other ~mancing sources Operating transfers in Transfers from component units 

Year Ended December 31.1997 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON VARIANCE- GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) $ 27,062,842 $ 8,703,517 749,O30 4,938,353 2.840,255 1,377,184 3,038,085 48,729,266 
20,000 1,314,162 

(246,281) $ 26,836,561 $ 26,214,027 $ 200 8,703,717 8,835.888 ,278,202 2,027,232 2,337,694 35,960 4,974,313 4,953,958 0 2.840,255 2,432,645 (124,847) 1.252.337 793,738 1,237 3,039,322 3,030,450 
O 1.314,162) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,334,162 (1,314,162) 

622,534 (132,169) (310.462) 20.357 407,610 458,599 8.872 49,673,737 48,598,396 1,075,341 
20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 20.000 20,000 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 50,063,428 (369,691) 49,693,737 48.618,396 1,075,341 Expenditures Current General government Public safety Health and welfare Culture and recreation Intergovernmental TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out Transfers to component units 

23.724,700 11,030,427 1,264,088 86,327 9,319,896 
7,457 193,867) (169) (127) (74,718) 
23,732,157 10,836.560 1,263,919 88,200 9.245.178 
25,215,525 11,263,579 1.280,377 90,509 9.778.921 45,426,438 (261,424) 45,164,014 47,628,911 

3,182,933 1,118,943 (65o,ooo) o 2.532.933 1,118,943 2,599,641 1.118.943 

1,483,368 427.019 16,458 4,309 533,743 2,464,897 
66.708 0 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 4,301,876 (650,000) 3,651,876 3,718.584 66,708 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 49,727,314 (911,424) 48,816.890 51,347,495 2,531.605 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 336,114 541,733 877,847 (2,729.099) 3,806,946 Fund balance Beginning of yea END OF YEAR 17,966,235 (3,087,311) 14,878,924 14,878,924 $ 18,302,349 $ (2,545,578) $ 15,758,771 $ !2,149,825 $ 
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Taxes Ad valorem Alcoholic beverage Chain store Franchise Fees - Cable TV Sales Severance TOTAL TAXES Licenses, permits and fees Licenses Occupational Alcoholic beverages Electrical Gas ~nsuren~e Mechanical Plumbing Homebuilder 
Permits and fees Building Electrical Gas Mechanical Plumbing Taxi Garage Sale Environmer~tat Zoning fees and appeals Other 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) Yoar Ended December31,1997 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON VARIANCE- GMP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FA~/OPJkBLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 
$ 2,674,517 $ 304,164 255,393 2,237.228 21,111.103 500.437 

05 0 0 0 (246,281) 0 
2,674,517 304,164 255,393 2,237,228 20,864,822 500,437 
$ 2.680,780 $ 359,090 239,175 2,093,940 20,350,132 500.000 

(6.263) (45.836) 16,218 143,288 514,690 437 27.082,842 (246,281) 26,836,561 26,214,027 622,534 
5.194,334 396,645 42,100 43,100 1.579,276 30,200 19,200 24.600 7.329,455 492,126 250,409 94,516 76,302 119,982 105,654 10.180 7,409 24.733 192,760 1.374.062 TOTAL LICENSES. PERMITS AND FEES 8,703,517 Intergovernmental State revenue sharing State grant Other 395,532 90,142 263,356 0 0 1,278,202 

5,194,334 396,645 42.100 43.100 1,579,276 30,200 19,200 24.600 
5.361,000 380,000 49,439 36,210 1,558,000 26,050 19.074 25.350 

166,666) 16,645 (7,339) %890 21,276 4,150 126 (750) 7,329,455 7,455,123 (125,668) 492,~28 25o.4o9 94.516 76.3o2 119.982 lO5,854 lO,18o 7,400 24,733 192,76o 1,374.262 8.7o3,717 395,532 99,142 1,541,558 

459,434 268,476 I05,OO0 85,491 111,297 99,559 10,000 8,500 24,000 199,906 1,380,763 8,835,886 395,532 75,000 1,867,162 

22,692 (18,067) (10,484) (9,189) 8.685 6,295 180 (1,100) 733 (6,246) (6,501) (132,169) 0 15,142 (325,604) TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 749,030 7,278,202 . 2,027,232 . 2,337,694 (310,462) Charges for services Grass cutting Indirect costs Other TOTALCHARGES FOR SERVICES 
Continued] 

94,597 4,727,343 116,413 
4.938.353 

0 0 35.960 94,597 4,727,343 152,373 45.000 4,783,942 125,014 49,597 56,599) 27.359 35,960 4,974,313 4,953,958 20,35? 
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Fines and forleitures Bond forfeitures Court fines Court cos.Is and fees Other 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) - (CONTINUED) Year Ended December 31,1997 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON VARIANCE- GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET ~UNFAVORABLE~ 
$ 120,250 $ 2,379,773 163,595 _ 176,637 TOTALFINES AND FORFEITURES 2,84.0L255 Interest income Miscellaneous Oil and gas royaifies Rental income Other income TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in Transfers from component units TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

0 
$ 120,250 $ 2,379,773 163.595 176.637 

50,000 $ 2,090,000 145,810 146.835 
70,250 289,773 17,765 29.802 2.84Oj255 _2,432,645- __ . 407~610 1,37_71~18484 _ ,(124,847) 1,252~337 __ 793,738 __ 458j5599 2,128.696 0 2,128,696 2,069,t02 59.594 395,353 o 395,353 470,000 (74,647) 5~036 ~237_ _ 5152,27373 _ 4~348 __ 23~925 3:038,085 48,729.266 944.471 

20,000 0 
=_ IL3~ 1E~2 (1,314,162) 

3.039.322 __ 3,030j450 __ __ 8~872 49.673,737 48,598,396 
20,000 20,000 0 0 
20.000 
1.075.341 
0 0 

TOTALREVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ~.5~083~28 ~ (369j691) $_ 4%693.737 $ 48~61B~396 $ 1!075~41 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUIS(ANA GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
Year Ended Decenlber31,1997 
ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BA~IS VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BASIS BUDGET _~UNFAVORABLE) CURRENT EXPENDITURES GENERAL GOVERNMENT Legislative Council $2 647,061 $ ~__.(12,493) $. 2,634,568 $ 2,793 458 $ 158,890 TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 2,647J61 (12,493~ 2,634,568 Judicial Law First Pariah Court Second Padsh Court Justice of the Peace Pre-trial Release of Prisoners Domestic Relation Division Pro-Tom Judge M(scel(aneous Judicia{ TOTAL JUDICIAL Executive Parish President 

1,643,412 1,427,161 1,192,241 148,306 156,885 152,488 52,293 2,239,038 
(12,523) (2,767) 72,869 (23) O O 0 19.475 
1,630,889 1,424,394 1,265,110 148,283 158,885 152,488 52.293 2,258,513 

2.793.458 158,890 1,676,879 1,467,122 1,317,426 152,725 158,991 174,702 52,302 2,586.t39 7 011,824 __ 77,031 __7,088,855 _ 7,588,286 1.421,693 (1.087) 1,420,606 TOTAL EXECUTIVE 1,421.693 (1,087) 1,420,806 1,420,976 Etectlons Voter Registralion Elections 198.306 120,363 (398) 197,9~ 213,373 (4,691) 115,672 __ 120,~ TOTAL ELECTIONS 318,669 (5,089) Financial Administration Finance Director Planning Accounting 8, Payroll Personnel Purchasing Human Resource Management Property Management Internal Audit Budget Director Planning Advisory Board 

278,569 1,150,243 1,007,502 848,691 395,365 724,731 5,141,949 54,390 109,358 147,405 

(82) (3,646) (380) (320) (3,814) (3,347) (58,347) 0 0 (82) 

313,580 
278,607 1,146,597 1,007,122 848,371 391,551 721,384 5,085,602 54,390 109,356 147,323 

333.373 
296,027 1,165,902 1,835,253 868,t82 439,073 741,774 5.660.641 87,t20 113,190 __ 153,268 -. 

45,990 42,728 52,316 4,442 2,106 22,214 9 327,626 497.431 370 370 
15,465 4,328 19,793 
17,520 19,305 26,131 19,811 47,522 20,390 575,039 32,730 3.834 5,945 TOTAL FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 9,858,201 (67,998) _ 9,790,203 10,550,4~ _ _ 770,227 General Services Legislative Delegation 32,827 O Central Printing 6,162 (6,162) Surplus Property" 93,549 (177) One-Stop Development Services 169,440 (1,435) Photo Lab 38 (38) Miscellaneous General Services 2.165,236 _ ___ 24,905 TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES 2,487,252 TO3"AL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 23,724,700 

[Cc~linued} 

32,827 0 93,372 168,005 0 2.1~,H1 2.484.345 
39,234 6 I14,838 171,675 O __2,195,26~ 

6,407 0 21,458 3,670 O 5,122 
-_ 2,521,082 _ __ 38,457 7,457 = 23 732,157 25,215,525 
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PUBLIC SAFETY Zoning Appeals Constables Volunteer Fire Inspection & Code Enforcement Taxi Cab Bureau Emergency Management Correctional Center Medical Unit Correctional Center Operation Home Detention Weed Corltrol & Lot Fill Dangerous Buitding Abatement Miscellaneous Public Safety 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) * (CONTINUED) 
ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 

Year Ended December 31.1997 
ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 

$ 117,218 $ (949) $ 144,178 0 821,994 (296) 3,305,248 (9,563) 102,953 0 722,829 (44,487) 1,239,267 (2,191) 3,142,912 (39,745) 409,784 , (71,609) 616,514 (4,326) 377,7f6 ~20,693) 20,614 Lo) 

116,269 $ 144,178 821,696 3,295,685 102,953 676,342 1,237,076 3,103,167 336,175 612,166 357,023 29.608 

119,959 $ 145,522 823,961 3,420,277 104,632 737,700 1,261,472 3,187,305 414,985 671,447 363,951 12,368 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY _ 11,030,427 __ (]93,667) __ IO,836,560 11,263,579~ HEALTH AND WELFARE County Agent 41,623 Serviceman's Assistance 23,154 Jeff CAP 258.161 Miscellaneous Health and Welfare 941,150 (277} (26) 0 134 TOTAL HEALTH AND WELFARE 1,264,088 (169) CULTURE AND RECREATION Special Events 86,327 (127) __. TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 86,327 

41,346 23,128 258,161 941,284 40,398 23,422 264,481 __ 952,078 ,263,919 1,280,377 
86,200 86,200 ~o,5~ 90.509 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) 3,690 1,344 2,263 124,592 1,679 59,358 24,396 84,138 76,810 59,261 6,928 __ ~,44o) 427,019~ (948) 294 6,320 !o,7_92 16.458 
4,3o9 4,309 TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES . 36,105,542 (186,706) . 35,918~836 _ 37,849,990 1,931,154 INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES District Attorney District Courts Juvenile Court Clerk of Court 4,045,3~ 2,937,019 1,645,455 688,038 20,531) TOTALINTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES 9,319,896 (74,716) 

4,042,434 2,888,697 1,646,540 667,507 9,245,178 
4,477,279 3,009,306 1,648,558 643,779 

434.845 120.608 2,018 (23,728) 9,778,921 533,743 TOTAL EXPENDITURES _ 45~425,438 (261,424) _ 45,164,014 47,628,911 2,464,897 OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out Transfers to component units 3,182,933 1,116,943 (650,000) 2,532,933 2,599,641 0 1,118,943 _ 1,118,943 ~,708 0 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES _ 4L301_,876 (650~00(3) 3,651,876 ~ +3,716,584 66,708 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES $ 49,Z27j~4 $ (9~24) $ 48,615,690" $ 
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51,747L495- $ 2.531.605 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA GENERALFUND SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERSIN & OUT YearEnded December31,1997 

OPERATING TRANSFERS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM IN Health and Human Services Grants Special Revenue $ $ Department of Justice Grants Special Revenue Housing and Urban Development Grants Special Revenue Miscellaneous Grants Special Revenue Community Services Special Revenue Tourism Special Revenue West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue 20,000 Public Works Capital Program Drainage Capital Program Civic and Senior Centers Capital Project Emergency Management Capital Project 
TOTAL 

COMPONENT UNIT TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District Component Unit Hospital District No. 1 Component Unit Hospital District No. 2 Component Unit 
TOTAL 

78 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 611,561 21,163 271,240 491,102 520,362 130,000 
182,505 650,000 250,000 55.000 $ 20,000 $ 3.182.933 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 
636,518 677.644 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 
$ 1.118.943 

$ 1,314,162 $ 1.118.943 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenues (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or revenues for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. State Grants accounts for State reimbursement received to fund various programs which include in- service training and equipment purchases. Health and Human Services Grants accounts for Federal reimbursement received to fund various social programs which include Head Start, Child Support Enforcement, Low-income Energy Assistance and Community Services Block Grant. Department of Justice Grants accounts for Federal reimbursement received to fund various law enforcement programs which include Truancy Programs, Special Prosecution, Crime Victim Assistance and non-secure detention. Heusin~l and Urban Development Grants account for Federal reimbursement received to fund development of viable urban communities, decent housing and suitable living environment, and expanded economic opportunities. DePartment of Labor Grants account for Federal reimbursement received to fund establishment of programs to prepare youth and unskilled adults for entry into the labor force Department of Transportation Grants accounts for grant proceeds from FTA to finance the construction and/or renovation of transit facilities and the acquisition of transit buses. Miscellaneous Grants account for Federa include Retired Senior Volunteer Project Stamp, and Environmental Projects. reimbursement received to fund various grants which Weatherization Assistance, Child Care Feeding, Food 
Criminal Justice coordinates the activities of the public and private agencies parish criminal justice system. Ambulance District # 1 accounts for the emergency medical transportation Ambulance District # 2 accounts for the emergency medical transportation 

nvolved in the city- 
special tax levy within the district to fund the cost of 
special tax levy within the district to fund the cost of 

Juvenile Services accounts for the special tax levy required to cover the cost of providing various services to juveniles who are illegal offenders. Emer.qency Communications accounts for the special service charge collected in Jefferson Parish to cover the cost of providing one three-digit telephone number to dial for any emergency. East Bank Consolidated Fire District accounts for the specia tax levy within the district to cover the cost of providing fire protection including rescue, fire prevention, arson investigation and hazardous material responses. 
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Fire District No. 3 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Fire District No. 4 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Fire District No. 5 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Fire District No. 6 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Fire District No. 7 accounts for the district special tax .levy to maintain fire protection service within the 
Fire District No. 8 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Fire District No. 9 accounts for the special tax levy to maintain fire protection service within the district. Streets Department accounts for the special sales tax levy to maintain and improve streets within the unincorporated area of the parish and major streets in the municipalities. Parkways Department provides all necessary services, including but net limited to, mowing, gardening, Jitter and trash pick-up on parish roads of the unincorporated area of the parish, major streets in the municipalities and rights-of-way to beautify the parish. Consolidated Road Li~lhtin.q District accounts for the specia within the district. Road LightinF1 District No. 7 accounts for the specia the district. 

tax levy to provide street and road lights 
tax levy to provide street and road lights within 

Garbaqe District No. 1 accounts for the special tax levy and service charges collected to provide garbage collection and disposal serv?ces within the district. Garbaqe District No. 2 accounts for the special tax levy and service charges collected to provide garbage collection and disposal services within the district. Garbage District No. 6 accounts for the special tax levy and service charges collected to provide garbage collection and disposal services within the district. Landfill Division provides all necessary services far the operation and maintenance of the Jefferson Parish Landfill. Consolidated Drainage District No. 1 accounts for the special tax levy required to administer, direct, coordinate and implement major drainage programs, direct operations of construction and maintenance of major and minor canal systems, flood control and levee systems, drainage ditches, crossdrains and street subsurface drainage system within the district. 



Fourth Jefferson Drainacle District accounts for the special tax levy required to administer, direct, coordinate and implement major drainage programs, direct operations of construction and maintenance of major and minor canal systems, flood control and levee systems, drainage ditches, crossdrains and street subsurface drainage system within the district. Drainaqe District No. 9 accounts for the special tax levy required to administer, direct, coordinate and implement major drainage programs, direct operations of construction and maintenance of major and minor canal systems, flood control and levee systems, drainage ditches, crossdrains and street subsurface drainage system within the district. Draina,qe Pump Stations accounts for the special sales tax levied for drainage maintenance and operation and capital appropriated to operate, maintain, and improve the thirty-eight pump stations throughout the parish drainage system. Transit Operations accounts for Federal reimbursement and a special tax levy received to assist in financing the acquisition, construction and improvement of facilities and equipment in mass transportation services, and the payment of operating expenses to improve or continue such service by operation, contract or otherwise. Transit - Elderly and Handicapped accounts for a special tax levy financing the acquisition, construction and improvement or facilities and equipment and the payment for maintenance and operations for transportation services to the mobility impaired, physically disadvantaged and elderly. Animal Shelter accounts for a portion of the special tax levy for health services to respond to calls for assistance with animal problems and provide shelter for abandoned small animals. Mosquito Control accounts for service charges collected to cover the cost of controlling mosquitoes Health Unit accounts for a portion of the special tax levy used to promote health and prevent disease among the residents of the parish. Human Services Authority accounts for a portion of the special tax levy used to operate menta health, mental retardation and substance abuse programs in the parish East Bank Consolidated Playground District accounts for a special tax levy to provide broad based recreation programs and facilities for the entire east bank unincorporated area of Jefferson Parish. West Bank Consolidated Play~lround District No. 1 accounts for a special tax lew to provide broad based recreation programs and facilities for the west bank unincorporated area of the parish. Alado Center accounts for the revenues designated by the State legislature, namely the Boomtown Belle Riverboat gaming and hotel/motel tax collected on the West Bank to provide for operating and maintaining a Multi-purpose Recreation Complex. Playground District No. 10 accounts for a specia facilities for participants in that district. Plavaround District No 6 accounts for a specia n that district. facilities for participants 
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tax levied to provide recreational activities and 
tax levied to provide recreational activities and 



Lafreniere Park Recreation District accounts for a service charge collected from east bank residents to provide and maintain an open green space for both active and passive recreation and leisure pursuits. Library accounts for a special tax levy to provide books, periodicals, state documents, 16mm films, video cassettes, art prints and other materials to meet the educational, informational, cultural and recreational needs of the residents of the parish. Community Services provides a!l necessary services for the Gaming Regulatory Division, Office of Citizen's with Disabilities, Culture and Recreation miscellaneous, and Community Services - Council. Tourism* represents hotel/motel occupational tax collections dedicated for tourism related purposes Off Track Bettinq accounts for monies received from the off track betting parlor on the West Bank Appropriations are made by Council resolutions as projects are identified. Video Poker accounts Appropriations are made for revenues from video poker machines within Jefferson Parish by Council resolutions as projects are identified. West Bank Tourism represents hotel/motel occupational tax collections on the West Bank dedicated for tourism related purposes. West Bank Riverboat Gaminq accounts for revenue from the Boomtown Belle Riverboat located in unincorporated Jefferson Parish. Expenditures are restricted to the unincorporated areas of the West Bank. Appropriations are made by Council resolutions as projects are identified. West Bank Riverboat Monitorin.q provides monitoring of the Boomtown Belle Riverboat for maximum revenue collection 
*Created in 1997 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNb BALANCES SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS WITH ANNUAL BUDGETS - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS 

Revenues Taxes $ Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December31.1997 TOTAL - ALL FUNCTIONS ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
106.186,508 $ 33,095 8,185,731 19,178,655 438,253 4,062,974 8789~5252 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 
O 0 0 30 O 0 15 
$ 100,186,508 $ 33,095 8,185.731 19,178,685 438,253 4,062,974 87B~967_ 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET ~U NFAVORABLE) 
103,515,582 $ 2,670,926 32,390 705 7,699,052 486,679 18.255,377 923,308 367,220 71,033 3,058,633 1,004,341 297,007 ~960 TOTAL REVENUES 138,962,168 45 138,962,213 133,225,261 5.736.952 Other financing sources OpeTatir~ transfers in 8,400L634 ioo.ooo 8~500,634 8.595,528 (94~894) TOTALREVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 147,362,802 __ 1Q0~045 147j462,847 14~820j789 _ 5~642,058 Expenditures Public safety PubUc works Transit Health and welfare Culture and recreation TOTAL EXPEND(TURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

30,833.305 58.320~07 5,476,163 4,325,014 23jO4,897 
(288,152) 202,753 315,870 (54,454) 
30,545,153 58,823,560 5,792,033 4,270,560 22,779,~ 1 

33.784,278 64,062,902 7.043,797 4,994,B01 26,2272~233 _ 
3,239,125 5,539,342 1,251,764 724,341 3~447.322 122,059,886 (148,669) 121,911,217 136,113.111 14,201,894 

1~5!,20=6" _-- l~0Og. __ 16~95~06 ~ 17,032j410 _ 81,204 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES f36j01/j092 -- ~48j669) 138,862,423 _.153,'f45,521 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 8,451.710 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year, as restated 37,336,032 Residual equity transfer 44,943 END OF YEAR 
148,714 1,707,840 0 

14,283~098 
8,600,424 (11,324,732) 19,925,156 39,042,872 39,042,872 O O 44,943 $ === 45.831~685 $ 1 ,~56.55.4 $ _~ 47~688.239 $ 2L718,140 $ 19,970.O99 
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Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON G~AP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS 
$ O $ _t 5o.ooo 150.000 0 55,000 55.000 0 277,309 672 890 483,877 O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 483.877 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

330,610 49,597 9,261 27,789 57,938 34,829 25 2.206 512.255 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 5,235 

0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 
0 0 1,375 (45) (19,689) (1,027) 0 (2,206) (21,592) 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 517,490 __ ~21,592) Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

(33,613) 76,o52 0 
21,592 
(275) 0 

05 150.000 150,000 0 55,000 55,000 0 277,309 672 896 483,877 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 
05 150,000 150.000 0 46,000 46,000 0 252,220 3OO 0 448,520 
0 

483.877 448,520 
330,610 49,597 10.636 27,744 38,249 33,802 25 0 490.663 
5,235 

315,185 49,953 14.098 27.798 25,236 35,706 0 3,254 471,230 
7.851 

0 0 0 0 g,ooo 9,000 0 25,089 372 898 35,357 0 
35,357 
(15,425) 356 3,462 54 (13,013) 1,904 (25) 3,254 (t 9,433) 
2,616 495,898 _ _ 479,081 (16 817) 

12,021 
75,777 O ~2,439 $ 21,317 $ 63756 $ 
(30,561) 75,777 0 45,216 $ 

18.540 
0 0 18,540 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Misoellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Persona] Services Salades Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December 31.1997 AMBULANCE DISTRICT #1 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
$ 257,253 $ O 257,253 5,888 0 5,888 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS 

0 O 16,245 0 279,386 
0 279.386 
0 O O ,362 0 0 O 0 271,362 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 271,362 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

8,024 
43,937 O $ 51j961. $ 

05 O O 0 O O 

0 
O 0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

BASIS 
257,253 $ 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 248.381 $ O 257.253 248,381 5,688 O 5,688 0 0 16,245 0 279,386 
O 279,386 
O O 0 271,362 0 0 0 0 271.362 
O 
271,362 

5,888 O 5,888 0 0 18.598 0 269,867 
0 269,867 
0 O 0 269,796 O O O 0 269.796 

9,519 
0 0 O 1,566) 0 0 O 0 

0 0 
269.796 

8,024 71 43.937 43,937 O 0 $ . 51,961 $ 44,008 $ 
7,953 
O O 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovemmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 AMBULANCE DISTRICT #2 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAp TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET $ 143,704 $ 0 143.704 0 0 O O 0 3,447 0 

05 0 0 0 O 0 

147.151 0 
0 0 TOTALREVENUESAND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 147.151 O Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

O 0 0 145,845 0 0 O O 146,645 
O 
146&45 
0 0 

0 
0 
0 
0 0 

143,704 $ O 138,848 $ 0 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 4,856 0 143.704 138,646 4,656 0 O O O O 3,447 O 147,151 

0 
147.151 
O O O 146,845 0 0 0 0 146,845 
6 

0 0 
0 0 3,000 0 141,848 
O 
141,848 
0 0 0 141,848 0 0 0 0 141.848 
0 

0 O O 0 O 447 O 5,303 
O 
5,303 
O O 0 4,997) O O 0 0 (4,997) O 

146,845 141,848 (4,997) 
0 0 
0 
0 0 0 0 306 $ O $ 306 $ O $ 306 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovemmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31,1997 JUVENILE SERVICES ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 5,102,463 $ 0 5,102,463 90,764 90.764 164,595 0 444,112 14,j2o TOTAL REVENUES 5,816,054 Other financing sources Operating transfers In 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ 5,816,05..~_ Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

2,919,173 488,787 224.728 626,573 205,688 134.963 143,786 45.384 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4.788,082 Other financing uses Operating transfers out _ _817,938 

05 0 0 O 0 O 

0 0 

5,102,463 0 5,102,463 90,764 0 90.764 164,595 0 444,112 14.120 5,816,054 

$ 4,931,034 $ 0 4,931,034 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE 

90,764 0 90,764 98,744 0 383,886 
5,509,813 

171,429 O 171,429 0 0 0 65,851 O 60,226 8,735 306.241 O 0 O 
O 5,816,054 5,509,813 306,24 
0 (97) (20,768) (775) (2,971 ) 1,175 (1,672) (3,338) (28,446) 
0 

2,919,173 488,690 203,960 624,796 202.717 136.158 t42,114 42,026 4.759.636 
817,938 

3,026,192 557,689 232,207 677,075 237,812 161,885 142,717 87,327 

107,019 68,999 28.247 52,277 35,095 25,727 603 45,301 5,122,904 363,268 
8! ~,0(~_.. _ (7,938) TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 5,606,020 (28,446,) 5,577,574 5,932,904 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 210,034 28.446 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

5,535,302 0 (5,516) O 
238,480 
5,529,784 0 

355~330 
(423,091) 661.571 
5,529,784 0 0 0 $ 5745,3_36 $ 229~92828 $ 57.7668j264 $= 5,106.693= $ 661j571 

93 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscenaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December31,1997 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
05 0 0 0 O 0 3,885,305 0 324.567 2.022 4,211,894 

0 $ O O 0 0 0 
05 0 0 0 0 0 3,885,305 0 324,567 2,022 

05 0 0 O O 0 3,224,008 O 199,423 0 O 4.211.894 3.423.431 
0 0 O O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ _ 4j211j_8.9,~ Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

199.219 32,223 (39,115) 938,256 175.056 691,162 75 115.896 

0 
0 (15) (678) 3,265 (70.228) 2.876 O ~,545) 

4,211,894 __ 3,423.43!. 
199,219 32,208 (39,793) 941,521 184,828 694,038 75 k 11,351 

177.791 34,414 130,577 1,166,552 697,068 808,835 830 877.119 2.112.772 (169.325) 1.943,447 3,893,186 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 2,612,772 (169,325) 2,443,447 Excess (deficiency)ofrevenues and other,sources over expenditures and other uses 1,599,122 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued) 

5,135,844 0 $ 6734~966 $ 
169.325 
(82.663) O 

500.000 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) O 0 0 0 0 0 661.297 0 125.144 2,022 788,463 
O 
788.463 
(21,428) 2.206 170,370 225,031 592,240 114,797 755 865.768 1.949.739 
0 

4.393.186 1,949,739 
1,768,447 (969,755) 
5,042,981 5.042.981 O 0 76.462 $ 61811.428 

2,738,202 
0 0 $ 4 0~226 $ 2,738,202 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interestlncome Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

YearEnded December3t.1997 EAST BANK CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT ACTUAL GAAP 
$ 14,517,449 $ 0 14,517,449 586,936 0 586,936 0 0 557,205 42,932 15,704,522 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 O 0 0 

14,517,449 $ 0 14,101,004 $ O 14,517,449 14,101,004 586,936 0 586.936 0 O 557,205 42,932 

587,069 0 587,069 0 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE _(UNFAVORABLE) 416,445 0 416,445 (I 33) 0 (133) 0 0 395.417 161.788 13,500 29,432 15,704,522 15,096,990 
O O O O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES t5.704,522 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

10.698.893 2,304,353 145.915 396,641 145,794 527,355 2,433 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,859,921 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 0 

0 15,704,522 15,096,990 
0 10,698,893 10.905,206 (6) 2.304,347 2,631,481 (27,544) 118,371 210,323 109 (3,121) 1,161 48 _ (39,436) (68389) 
0 

396,750 142,673 528,516 2,481 599.101 
420,762 340,799 606,276 4,715 618,210 

607,532 
0 
607.532 
206,313 327,134 91,952 24,012 198,126 77,760 2,234 19.109 14,791,132 15,737,772 946,640 

0 0 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES _ 1'~,85.9,72!_ _ ~68,789) 14,791,132 15,737,772 946,640 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 844.601 68,789 913,390 (640,782) 1,554,172 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 
2.545,807 O $= 3~390j408 $ 

(46.090) 0 22.699 
2.499,717 2,499,717 0 0 0 0 $_ 3~4!3,107 $= 1.858,9:35 $ 1,554,172 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - pUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #3 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS 
$ 693,358 $ 0 693,358 131,752 0 131.752 272,648 0 23,088 O 

05 0 0 O 0 O 

1,120,846 0 

693,358 $ O 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 

674,011 $ 0 693,358 674,011 131,752 O 131,752 272,648 0 23,088 0 1,120,846 
0 0 0 

131,784 0 131.784 273,587 O 16,820 0 1,098,202 
0 

1 g,347 O 19,347 (32) 0 
(939) O 6,268 0 24,644 
0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1 120,846 ~ __ 1,120,8~ _ 1,096,202 24,644 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased ServLces Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital oufiay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

0 0 O 021,170 0 628 0 0 

O 0 0 

1,021,798 0 0 0 TOTALEXPENDITURESAND OTHER FINANCING USES 1.021.798 0 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

99,048 
49,004 0 

0 O O 1,021,170 0 628 O O 1,021,798 0 

O 0 0 1,021,609 O 628 0 0 1,022,237 0 
1,021,798 1,022,237 
99,048 
49,004 0 
73,965 
49,004 0 $ ~,~18,052 $ O $_ 148~O52 $_ 122,969 $ 

O 0 0 439 O O 0 0 439 0 
25,083 
O 
25.083 





JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #5 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 1,025,427 $ O 1,025,427 89,026 0 89,026 0 O 31,784 2,822 

05 0 0 1,025,427 $ 1,004,258 $ 0 O 1,025,427 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 21,169 0 1,004,258 21,169 O 89,026 89.048 (22) O O 0 0 O 89,026 89,048 (22) 0 0 31,784 2,822 
0 O 24,515 O 1,149,059 O 1,149,059 1,117.82t 

O 0 O 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,149,059 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Propedy Other General expenses Capital outlay 

0 0 0 1,073,038 0 16,877 O 0 

0 1.149.059 
0 O 0 1,073,038 0 16,877 0 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,089,915 O 1,089.915 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 0 0 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,08g.gt5 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deFicit) Beglnnln9 ol year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Cont;nuedJ 

0 1,089.916 
59.144 O 59.144 
74,058 0 0 0 $ 134,102 $ 0 $ 

98 

74,958 O 134.102 

1,117,821 
0 O O 1,073,570 0 16,899 0 0 1,090,469 0 
1.090.469 
27,352 
74,958 0 

0 O 7,269 2,822 31,238 
O 31,238 

0 
554 
31.792 
0 O 31.792 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valo~m Sales Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #6 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 1,030,164 $ 0 1,030,164 66,125 O 66,125 0 0 27,392 0 

O $ O O O O O 
1,030,164 $ 1,007,456 $ 0 0 1,030,164 66,125 O 66,125 O 0 27,392 0 

1,007,456 66,147 0 66,147 0 O 26,143 O 1.123.681 0 1.123.681 1.099.746 0 O 0 0 TOTALREVENUESAND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,123,681 0 1.123.681 1.099.746 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

0 0 0 

1,048,440 0 - = 1.048.440 
75,241 
0 0 75,241 $ 

0 0 O 1,037,571 O 10,869 0 0 

0 0 0 1,038,094 O 10,559 0 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
22,708 0 22~708 (22) 0 (22) 0 0 1,249 0 23,935 0 
23,935 
0 0 0 523 0 (310) 0 0 0 1.048.440 1.048,653 213 0 0 0 0 

0 
0 8 0 

99 

1.048.440 
75,241 
O 0 

1,048,653 213 
51,093 24.148 0 0 0 0 $ 75,241 $ 51~093 $ 24,~148. 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernrnental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #7 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS $ 1,691,384 $ 0 1,691,384 B1,734 0 81.734 215,140 0 45,333 O 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 

2,013.591 O 
10.000 O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ 2,023,591 Expenditures Current Personal SerVices Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

0 0 0 1,846,765 O 12,331 0 /119jTZ4 1,978,870 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,978,870 

1,691,384 $ 0 1,691,384 61,734 O 61.734 215,140 0 45,333 O 2,013,591 
10,OO0 

1,590,353 $ 0 1,590,353 61,751 0 61,75i 207,022 0 48,132 O 1,899,258 
10.000 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 101,031 O 101,031 (17) 0 (17) 8,118 O 5.201 0 114,333 
0 

O 2,023,591 1,909,258 114,333 

0 

O O O 1,846,765 O 12,331 O ~119,774 1,978,870 O 

0 0 0 1,850,418 0 10,848 0 120.000 1 ,g81,266 0 
1,978,870 1,981,266 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 44,721 0 44,721 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

109,490 O $ f54~2ff $ 
0 o 8 
109,49o 0 $ 154,21f $ 

100 

(72.008) 109,490 O 37/,82 $ 

O O O 3,653 0 1,483) 0 226 2,396 0 
2,396 
116.729 
0 0 116,729 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscetlaneous TOTAL REVENUES Olher financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #8 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON VAR]ANCE- GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) $ 2,159,019 $ O 2,159.019 190,759 0 190,759 0 O 63,193 O 2,412,971 

05 O 0 0 0 0 
2.159.019 $ 0 2,159,019 190,759 O 190,759 O O 63,193 0 

1,999,361 $ 0 159,658 O 1,999,361 159,658 190,792 O 190.792 0 0 55,551 O 

(33) O -(33) O 0 7,642 0 O 2.412.971 2,245,704 167,267 
O O 0 O O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 2,412,971 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

O O O 2,454,950 O 1,624 O O 2,456,574 
O 

0 2,412,971 
O O O 2.454,950 O 1,624 O O 

2,245.704 
0 0 0 2,456,025 O 2,146 O O O 2,456,574 2,458,17 

0 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 2,456,574 O ~ 2,456,574 2,458,17~1 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

(43,603) 
256,719 O $ 213,116 $ 

0 
0 0 O 

101 

(43,603) 
256,719 O 
(212,467) 
256,719 0 

167,267 

168,864 
O O $ 2131,1116 $ __ _4~1,252_ $ 168,864= 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmentat State revenue shoring Other Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers In TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Properly Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December 31,1997 FIRE DISTRICT #9 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 145,147 $ 0 145.147 0 4,723 4,723 0 O 4,322 0 154,192 0 
154.192 
0 0 0 152,582 0 0 0 0 152,582 
0 

0 $ 0 0 

0 0 
0 

0 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 152.582 0 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

1,610 15,691 O 17,301 $ 

102 

145,147 $ 0 140,256 $ 0 145,147 140,256 O 0 4,723 4,725 4,723 0 0 4,322 0 154,192 O 

4,725 0 O 3.481 
148,462 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
4,891 0 4,891 0 (2) 0 0 841 0 5,730 0 

~,JI2 _t48,462 _ _ _ 5,73o 
0 0 0 152,582 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 152,657 0 0 0 0 152,582 152,657 
0 0 152,582 152,657 

0 1.610 0 0 0 
15,691 0 $ _. 17,301 $ 
(4,195) 15,691 0 11.496 

0 0 0 75 0 0 0 0 
0 
5,805 
0 _ O $ 5,805 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December31,1997 TOTAL - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
$ 27,151,378 $ 150,000 27,301,378 1,222,984 B6.943 1,289,927 4,537,688 277.309 1,552,759 B2.792 TOTAL REVENUES 35,021,853 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 10.000 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 35,031,853 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

14,147,B95 2,874,960 340.789 10,386,431 584,476 1,430,658 146,319 921.777 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
0 $ O 
0 0 0 0 0 0 ~_Q_ o 

27,151,378 150.000 27,301,378 1,222,984 66,943 1,289,927 4,537,688 277,309 1,552,759 62,792 

$ 26,207,554 $ 150,000 26,357,554 1,223,243 57,947 1.281,190 3,803,361 252,220 1,170,885 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
943,824 0 943,824 (259) 8,996 8,737 734,327 25,089 381,874 18,885 43.907 35.021.853 32.884,095 2,137.758 

_=_~ ~0,900 I0,000 0 35,031,853 32,694,095 
0 (118) (47,615) 2,554 (96,009) 4,185 (1,624) (149,525) 

14,147,B95 2,874,842 293.174 10,388.985 488,467 1,434,843 144,695 772,252 

14,424,374 3,273,537 587,205 10,690,293 1,300,915 1,653,782 148,262 1,705,910 

0 2.137.758 
276,479 398.695 294,031 301,308 812,448 218,939 3,567 

30,833,305 (288,152) 30,545,153 33,784,278 3,239,125 Other financing uses Operating transfers out __ ~1,323~173 0 _ j,323JZ3- L~LT,B51 _ (5,322) TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 32,156,478 ___~286,152 _ 31,868,;326 ___35,.1=02,129_ _ 3,233,803 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 2,875,375 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equtty transfer END OF YEAR 
13,879,658 0 $ 16.755,033 $ 

288,152 
144,746) 0 143,406 
103 

3,163,527 (2,208,034) 5,371,561 
13,734,912 13,734,912 O O 0 0 $ 16,B98j439 $_ .11,526,878 $ 5,371,561 



Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technica Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December31,1997 STREETS DEPARTMENT ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS 
28,611 $ 21,014,824 21.043.435 1,695,144 0 0 1.695.144 O 40,894 129.750 22,909,223 41,985 
22,951,208 
5,065,248 1,125,343 1.163.147 7,750,768 468,654 2,017,544 371,527 243.224 

05 0 0 0 O O O 

O 28 (25,061) 729,466 6,942 1,760 (129) (935) 

28,611 $ 2t,014,824 21,043.435 1,695,144 O O 1,695.144 O 40,894 129,750 22,909,223 41,965 
22,951,208 
5,065,248 1,125,371 1,138.086 8,480,234 495,596 2,019,304 371,398 242,289 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 05 20,500,132 20.509.132 1,388,858 0 0 1,386,888 O 35,879 B,34B 21,933,217 41,985 
21,975,202 
5,073,380 1,255,786 1,339.762 8,662,868 560,914 2,023,510 372,000 271,429 

28,611 514,692 543,303 306,289 O 0 306,286 O 5,015 121,400 976,006 0 
976,008 
8,132 130,415 201,676 182,654 65,319 4,206 602 29,140 18,225,455 712,071 18,937,526 19,559,669 622,143 4,519,300 0 4,819,300 4,572,279 52,979 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 22,744,755 712,071 23,456,626 24,131,948 675.122 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

206,453 2,038,220 O $ 2,244,673 $ 
(712,071) 888,059 O 
(506,618) 2,926,279 0 
(2,156,746) 1,651,128 2,926,279 O 0 0 175,988 $ 2,420,661 $ 769,533 $ 1,651,128 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLtC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad vsloTem Sales ntergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES 

Year Ended December31.1997 
ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 

PARKVVAYS DEPARTMENT 
05 0 
0 575 2~394 21,969 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 3.716,783 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ 3,738,7.52 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

1,319,775 311,961 124,529 1,207,986 6,338 740,285 96 3,802,560 
O 

05 05 o 0 O 0 

O 167 (12.813) (84,246) 155 452 O _ ____(2~5~ 83 

O O 0 O O 575 21,394 21.969 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUE)GET ~UNFAVORABLE~ 05 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 "(,0#0 7.000 3.716,783 3.774,313 
3.738j75752 _ :3,781L313 
319,775 312,128 t11,716 123,710 6,493 740,737 98 89.102 (98,803) 3,703,757 0 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES ~3 802,560 (98,803) Excess (deficiency)ofrevenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

Continued] 

(63,808) 42,552 0 
98,803 
10,725) O $ (71,2~6) $ 88,078_ $ 

106 

3.703,757 
34,995 31,827 O 

1,342,057 310,210 145.199 1,222,356 15,400 621,395 2,000 152.056 3.810.673 0 
3,810,673 
(29,360) 31,827 0 

0 0 -- 0 O O O O 0 575 14,394 14,989 
(57,530) .(4~561) 

66,822 $ 2,467 $ 

22,282 (1,918) 33,483 98,646 8,907 (119,342) 1,904 62~954 106,916 0 
106~916 
64,355 0 O 64,355 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous 

YearEnded December31.1997 CONSOLIDATED ROAD LIGHTING DISTRICT ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 4,897,469 $ 0 4,697,469 
O 385,383 22947 TOTAL REVENUES 5.647,115 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES __5 647jl1=5 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

70,844 16,063 7.336 225,277 3,366,628 26,344 0 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3.712,492 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 138.200 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 05 0 0 

0 
0 O 
0 O (532) (5,390) 64,622 O 0 O 58,600 0 

4,897,469 0 4,897,469 0 341,316 0 341.316 O 385,383 22,947 5.647.115 

$ 4,746,533 $ 0 4,746,533 0 341,316 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE 1UNFAVORABLE) 150,936 0 150,936 
341,316 O O 0 180,201 205,182 15j000 _ 7j947 5,283,050 
O 
364,065 
0 5,647,1115 5,283,050 364,065 

70,844 16,063 6,804 219,887 3,431,150 26,344 0 0 

100,166 17,317 7.738 309,868 4,394,465 34,214 50 71,802 

29,322 1,254 934 89,981 963,315 7,870 50 71.802 3,771,092 4,935.620 1,164,528 
_ 13~200 138.200 . 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 3 850,6692 58,60() _.+ 3,909,292 . 5,073L820 _ 1j164~528 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

1,796,423 
3,086,938 O $ 4,883,361 $ 

(88,600) 67,622 0 9.022 
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1,737,823 3,154,560 0 
209,230 3,154,560 0 

1.528,593 0 0 $4,892,383 $3~363,790 $~.52~,593 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Advalorem Sales ntergovernmental Parish Transpodafion Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

$ 

Year Ended December 31,1997 ROAD LIGHTING DISTRICT #7 ACTUAL GAAP B~mS_ 72,656 $ O 72,666 0 1,470 0 1,470 O 5,122 0 79,248 
o TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _.79,248 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

0 O O 1,701 77,833 0 0 0 79,534 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES ~34 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (derrcit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

(286) 
58,527 0 $ 58.24'15 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS O $ 0 0 

0 

ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS 72,656 $ O 72,656 O 1,470 0 1,470 O 5,122 0 79,248 

BUDGET 69,927 0 69,927 

0 0 

108 

0 

0 
0 0 

O 

0 1,470 O 1,470 O 4,887 O 76,284 
O 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) 2,729 2,729 O O O 0 0 235 O 2,964 
O ~48 __ 76,284 __ 2,964 

O O O 1,701 77,833 0 0 0 79,534 
0 

O 0 0 1,740 90,000 70 0 () 91,810 0 

0 0 0 39 12,167 70 O O 12,276 0 
~534 9~810 12j276 
(286) 58,527 0 
(15,526) 58.527 O 

15,240 
O O $ 58j241 $ 4~001 $ 15,240 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Year Ended December 31,1997 GARBAGE DISTRICT 91 ACTUAL GAAP 
$ 3,136,220 $ 0 3, ~ 36,220 
4,514,772 106,530 2,626 7,943,521 0 
7,943~521 
0 O O 4,788,128 30,044 220 0 0 4,818,392 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 2,863,038 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
05 0 0 

O 0 O 59,259 O O 0 0 59,259 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 7 7--~70~01 430 59j259 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 242,091 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
[Continued] 

(213,269) 0 
(59,259) 
360,200 0 

109 

3,136,220 0 3, ~36,220 0 183,173 O 183,173 4,514,772 106,530 2.826 7,943,521 0 
__. 7,943,52! 
0 0 0 4,847,387 30,044 220 0 0 

$ 3.047,506 $ O 3,047,506 O 183,173 O 183,173 4,409,020 61,986 O 7,701,685 0 
7.701.685 
O 0 O 4,853.966 30,044 220 0 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAyORABLE) 88,714 0 88,714 
105,752 44,544 2j826 241,836 O 
241,836 
0 0 0 6,579 0 O O O 4,877,651 4,884,230 6,579 2~3 0,0~ 2,6~856 16,818 7.760.689 7.784.086 

182,832 
146,931 O 329.763 
(82,401 
146.931 O 

23L397 
265,233 
0 0 $ 64,530 ~ 266,233 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECtAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 GARBAGE DISTRICT #2 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
$ 1,834,684 $ 0 1,634,684 O 132,108 __ 85~901 218,009 3232,330 68,533 
5.150.730 0 TOTALREVENUESAND OTHERFINANCING SOURCES _ ~150~73O Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

0 21 0 3,508,976 t ,26t 75 524 _ _ I~425 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 05 0 0 

0 0 0 
O O O (61,072) 0 0 0 __.(tT=7J 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAyORABI~E) 1,634,684 $ 1,566,736 $ O O 1,634,684 0 132,108 85.901 218,009 3,232,330 68,533 
5.150.730 0 

1,566,736 0 132,108 84,009- 216.108 3,172,589 76,838 
5,032,271 0 

5t15~730 ~_ 5,032,2Z1 
0 21 0 0 25 2.704 3,652,760 5,500 5,000 975 _ 10,933 3,512,282 (81,249) 3,431,033 3,577,897 Other financing uses Operating transfers out _ 1,508~992 0 _ 1~508,992 _ 1.520,590 

67,948 O 67,948 
5g,741 (8,3o5) _(2,8?6) 118,459 o 118,459 
O 4 2,704 224,856 4,239 4,925 451 9.685 246,864 
11.598 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES . .5~021.274 (81,249) 4,gzlO,Q25 ~ 5,1198,487 __ 258~462 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures end other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR Continued] 

129,456 
23,686 0 $ 153,142 

81,249 
265,857 O 
210,705 
289,543 0 
(166,216) 
289,543 0 

376,921 
0 O $ 347,106 $ 5()Q,248. $ 123.32~ $ 376j921 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales ntergovernmental Parish Transpodation Fund State revenue sharln9 Other Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers In TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Serv]ces Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December 31,1997 GARBAGE DISTRICT #6 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY 
$ 110,767 $ 0 110.767 0 5,648 0 5.648 

BASIS BASIS 

107,622 18,554 0 242,591 0 242~591 
0 0 0 120,549 O 0 0 0 120.549 

05 0 0 

0 0 0 ,540 0 0 O 0 1,540 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 195,998 1,540 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
IContinued] 

46,593 241,o68 o 
(1.540) 9,267 0 

110,767 $ 0 110,767 0 5,648 0 5,648 107,622 18,554 0 242.591 
0 
0 O 0 22,089 0 0 O 0 

BUDGET VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UN FAVORABLE) 107,083 $ O 107.083 0 5,648 0 5.648 103,644 16,778 0 233,153 
0 233.153 
O O O 157,383 0 0 0 15 L000 122,089 172,383 

~449 76j079 197,538 
45,053 250.335 

$_~~ 28~7661 $ 7,727_ $==~295,388 $ 

111 

(15,289) 250,335 O 

3,684 0 3.684 
3,978 1,776 
9,438 
0 
0 0 0 

50,294 58O 
50,87,4 
60,312 0 0 235.076 $ 60.312 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovemmental Parish Transpodation Fund State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technica Propedy Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December 31,1997 LANDFILL DIVISION ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 
05 0 0 
0 0 13 13 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY 

3.772.479 __. 3.772.492 
88,911 12,620 1,345 3,317,690 0 4,743 165,691 3,787 3,594,787 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 3L594,787 

BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
05 0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 
0 O 31 172,501 0 O 4,262 0 

05 0 0 
0 0 13 

05 0 0 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 
O 0 0 
0 O 13 13 0 13 3,772,479 

3ZJ_2,492 
88,911 12,62o 1,376 3,49o,191 o 4,743 169,953 37~78787 176,794 3,771,581 

0 0 

3.801.475 ~28,9996J 3,801,475 (28.983J 
89,396 14,523 1,792 3,599,984 0 5,580 80,840 8.448 3,800,563 
0 

485 1,903 416 109,793 0 837 (89,113) 4,661 28,982 
O 

176~794 3,771,581 3,8005~563 __ 28,982 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 177,705 (176,794) 911 912 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
Continued] 

(230,066) 0 230,066 0 $ (52.361) $ __53,272 $ 

112 

0 0 911 
0 

$ 912 $ I~ 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and techr, ical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

Year Ended December 31,1997 CONSOLIDATED DRAINAGE DISTRICT #1 ACTUAL GAAP . _BASIS 
1,087,883 $ 3,09~095 4,177,978 O 84,071 o 84,071 0 74,918 40,973 4,377,940 
__ 0 __ 4 377,940 
146,296 265,761 164,442 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS 
05 0 0 
BASIS BUDGET VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) 
1,087,663 $ 1,023,853 $ ~90L095 4,177,978 3,o90,095 4,113,948 0 O O O 84,071 84,07t o o 2~ooo O 84,071 109,071 0 0 0 O 74,918 38,479 O _ 40j973 200 O 4,377,94D 4,261,698 
0 0 O 0 
O 178 105,764 1,146,296 265,939 270,208 804,182 (40,906) 763,276 766,941 (18,102) 748,839 462,756 312 463,068 1,115 (342) 773 __ 54,689 _ (2j610) 52,079 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3.666,182 Otherfinancing uses Operating transfers out __ 229545 
44,294 0 3.710.476 229,545 

1,328,766 334,107 355,508 898,314 916,451 535,419 37,000 121.744 4,527,309 
.230j000 

64,030 0 64,030 0 0 (25~000) (25,o0o) O 38,439 40,773 116,242 
0 116,242 
182,470 68,168 85,302 135,038 167,612 72,351 36,227 __ 69,665 816,833 455 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 3j8~727 44,294 ____3,94~)~021 4,7~309 817~288 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

482,213 712,003 44,943 $ t?3g,f5~$ 
(44,294) 68,943 O 24.649 
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437,919 780,946 44943 
(495,611) 780,946 0 $ _ f,763,808- $_ 285,3~5 $ 

933,530 0 .44,943 978,473 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTALREVENUESAND OTHERFINANCING SOURCES Expom:litures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

Year Ended December 31.1997 FOURTH JEFFERSON DRAINAGE DISTRICT ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON VARIANCE- GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BA$!S __~ BASIS BUDGE~ LU N FAVORABLE) $ 5,017,967 $ 6.617,967 O 624,217 0 624,217 O 239,894 _208,633 
0 
1,988,576 508,489 577.792 760,858 658,437 745,369 202 319,5586 6,539,309 
2993~393 

05 0 0 

0 o O 
O 695 (122,649) (36,385) (62,g03) 1,254 (142) 

5,017,987 $ 4,832,218 $ 1.~oo~ooo 6,617,967 0 624,217 O 624,217 0 239,894 208~633 

1,968,576 509,184 455,143 1,724,473 595,534 746,623 60 316~277 

6,432,218 0 624.217 0 624,217 0 112,940 71.000 7,240,375 
0 

185,749 O 

7~240~375 450,336 
2,011,213 572,727 587.779 1,929,934 822,989 825,520 1,276 

42,637 63,543 132,636 205,461 227,455 78,897 1,216 33,343 (223,439) 6,315,870 7,101,058 785,188 
0_ 2~393 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES _ _ 6,838~702 __(223,439) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures end other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

IContinued] 

852,009 1,049,253 0 
223,439 
(162,326) 0 

6.615.263 
300.000 
7.401.058 607 785.795 

1,075,448 (160,683) 1,236,13 t 886,927 0 886,927 O 0 0 $ 1,90L262 $ 61,113 $. 1,962~375 $ 726,244 $ 1,236,131 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovemmental Parish Transpedation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES 

Year Ended December31,1997 DRAINAGE DISTRICT #9 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 
$ 936.158 $ 1~615~789 2,551,947 0 55.511 91555 65.066 0 72,045 24.180 2,713,238 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 0 

ACTUALON BUDGETARY B~sls BUDGET 
O $ 936,158 $ 915,030 $ O __ Ij615~769 __ 1,6J.5,Z8B 0 2,551,947 2,530,818 

0 0 

0 55,511 65.066 0 72,045 2~o 2,713,238 
0 

0 55,511 9.555 65,066 0 62,588 500 2,658,972 O 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) 21,128 1 21.129 

9,457 23t680 54,266 
0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _~. ?,71~238 0 2,7132,238 _ ~ ~2J658,972 __ ~266 Expenditures Current Personal Se~]ces Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

745,296 218,523 158,045 0 154 (9,168) 745,296 218,677 149,877 756,893 255,050 246.725 11,597 36,373 96,848 336,836 (19,215) 317.621 414,054 96,433 166,868 (517) 166,351 381,488 215,137 286,952 0 286,952 379,179 92,227 O 0 O 300 300 230,360 _ 1(1(1(1(1(1(1(1(1(~200J 229,160~ _ 478~450 _~ 24~290 2,142,880 (28.946) 2,113,934 2,912,139 
__ 29~545 2.435.425 
277,813 
826,434 O 

0 
28,946 
(22,635) 0 

29~545 2 ~.06j479 
306,759 
803,799 0 

293.0OO 
798,205 
455 3,:t05,139 _ 798,560 

(546,167) 
803,799 0 

B52,926 
0 O 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31.1997 
ACTUAL GAAP BASIS 

DRAINAGE PUMP STATIONS 
$ 05 _ 9,~586 9,094,586 
O 3,255 .. 45,585 9,143,426 
O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 9,143,426 Exper,ditL!r es Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capltal outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

3,142,430 596.792 568,227 2,198,882 899,007 487,487 1,280 212,280 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUALON BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGET 0 $ 0 o 9~0%586 O 9,094,586 0 0 0 0 0 3,255 

$ 05 ~9,9 030,503 9,030,503 0 0 0 
0 98.739 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (U N FAVQRA ~LE~ 

0 45.585 24,938 

0 9 (19,506) (350,000) (23,053) 923 (421) (25,320) 

9,143,426 9,154,f80 
0 0 9.143,426 9,154 180 
3,142,430 596,801 548,721 1,848,882 875,954 488,410 859 186,960 

3,199,960 653,476 700.196 1.918,147 1,306,841 551,215 1,400 258,316 8,106,385 (417,368) 7,689,017 8,589,551 2,597.!966 0 2,597.966 2,601 ,OO0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 10,704;351 _ (=417,368) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (1,560,925) Fund balance (defiei0 Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
[Continued] 

2,948,739 O 
417,368 
(52,224 0 

10,286,983 11.190,551 
(1,143.557) (2,036,371 2,896,515 2,896,515 O 0 $ 1,387,814 $ 3651~1~ $ 1,752,958, $ 
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860.144 $ 

. (10,754) 
57,530 56,675 151.475 69,265 430,887 62,805 541 71,356 900,534 :),034 903,568 
892,814 
0 0 897,~!4 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPEC|At. P, EV ENUE FUNDS - PUBLtC WORKS FUNCTtON COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Advalorem Sales ntergovernmental Parish Transportation Fund State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

YearEnded December31,1997 
ACTUAL GAAP BSsm $ 16,922,415 :36,415,294 53.337,709 1,695,144 1.427,514 95.456 3,218,114 7,854,724 1.015.703 493.475 

TOTAL - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASLS BA~IS 05 O 0 
BUDGET VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) 

16,922,415 $ 16,308,886 $ 613,529 35,41.~294 53.337.709 1,695.144 1,427.514 95.456 3,218,114 
__35,836,518 52,145,404 1,388,858 1,427,514 118.555 2,934,927 7,854.724 7,685.253 1,015.703 689.315 

578,776 1.192,305 306,286 0 ~23.099) 283.167 169.471 326,388 493j475 __ 1269.98686 _ 366489 65,919,725 0 65,919,725 63,581.885 2,337,840 
7j531j247 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 73 ~150~972 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capltal outlay 

13.547.376 3,055.573 2,764,863 26,021,803 6,462,011 4.771,775 540,435 _ 1~!~971 

0 
0 
0 1.231 (82,934 345,552 (32,956) 4,701 3.228 . (36~069) 

___7~531,247 =7 617,773 (86,526j 73,,450,972 _ 71,~199~6,58 _ . 2,251314 
13.547,376 3,056.804 2.681,929 26,367,355 6,429,055 4.776,476 543,663 _. 1,1120,902 

13.901.831 3,413,221 3,387.403 27,621,394 8.524,092 4,981.322 495,841 _ 1,737~798 

354.455 356,417 705.474 1.254.039 2.095.037 204.846 (47,822) 616,896 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 58,320,807 202,753 58,523,560 64..062.902 5.539.342 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 12 544428 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USE~; 7U.865!235 
0 12.5~.428 _ .12,630,954 _ 86,526 
202.753 _ 71,067,988 ~ 76,693856 5625.868 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 2,585,737 (202,753) 2.382,984 (5,494.198) 7,877,182 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity lrat'Jsfer END OF YEAR 

10,584.085 1.642.104 12,226.189 12,226.189 44,943 .0 44943 _ _ o 0 44,943 $ 13~214,765. $ ~1439~35= ! $=='14,6541.11616 $ 6731,991= $ 7~922,1~5 
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Revenues Taxes Ad valorem 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -TRANSIT FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Intergoveinmenlal Federal grants Parish Transpodation Fund 
Interest[noorne Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31,1997 TRANSIT OPERATIONS ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET ~UNFAVORABLE) $ 2,553,278 $ 0 $ 2,553,278 $ 2,459,508 $ 93,770 
922,793 .__ 8 9~9 3 6 1,814,729 125,139 

TOTAL REVENUES 4,511.585 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 33,075 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _..4,544~66660 Expenditures Current Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Cz~pil~l outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

97,371 14,977 7,529 3,688,808 210,239 152,414 1,135 168 

0 O 0 0 O 0 0 0 
0 0 (137) 286,676 31.341 49 (38) _ 1(3~) 4,172,661 317,703 

0 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 4,172,661 317.703 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 371,999 (317,703) Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year END OF YEAR 
Continued] 

922,793 _891~936 1,814,729 125,139 18.439 4,511,585 
33075 

867,734 55,059 _846,011 __ 45~925 1,713,745 100,984 160,691 18.936 4,352,880 
33.075 4,544,660 _ 4385955 

$~68~54 $ 61.963 $ 

119 

97,371 14,977 7,392 3,975,484 241,580 152,463 1,097 0 4,490,364 
0 4,490,364 
54,296 1.694.421 

109,048 22,708 16.466 4,878,545 277,554 133,603 8,200 1 o~3o3o 5.447.154 
0 

(35,552) (497~ 158,705 
. O 158.705 
11,677 7,731 9.074 903,061 35,974 (18,860) 7.103 1~030 956,790 
0 5,447,154 956,790 

(1,061,199) 1,115,495 
_ 1,69'~,42 0 $ 633,222 $ 1J15~495 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSIT FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Intergovernmental Federat grants Parish Transpedatlon Fund 
Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers In 

Year Ended December 31.1997 TRANSIT - ELDERLY AND HANDICAPPED ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET $ 1,269,868 $ 
26,574 O 26,574 67,797 0 1,364,239 
0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES __~1~36423,~9 Expenditures Current Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

0 0 O 1,298,156 0 5,346 0 0 1,303,602 33.075 

O $ 1,269,868 $ 1,230,748 $ 
0 0 O 0 0 0 
0 0 
0 0 0 (1 ,gf 9) 0 86 0 0 1,833) 0 

26,574 0 26,574 67,797 O 1,364,239 
0 

50,000 0 50,000 73,308 0 1,354,056 0 
'[,364,239 1,354,056 
O 0 O 1,296,237 0 5,432 O 0 1,301,669 33,075 

0 0 2,500 1,573,403 307 18,433 2,000 0 1,596,643 33.075 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE _(UI~.E6y0RABLE~ 39,120 
~3,426) 0 (23,426) (5,511 ) O 10,183 O 
10.183 
0 O 2,500 277,166 307 13,001 2,000 0 294,974 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES ! ,336,577 (1,833) 1,334,744 1,629,718 294,974 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 
27,662 65~666 1,633 86 29,495 (275,662) 658,752 658,752 305,157 0 $ 686,32~ $ 1,9.19 $686,247= $ 383,_090= $ 305,157 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - TRANSIT FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorern ntergovemmental Federat grants Parish Transportation Fund 
Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31,1997 TOTAL - TRANSIT FUNCTION ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON OAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) $ 3,823.146 $ 0 $ 3,823,146 $ 3,690,256 $ 132,890 
949,367 8~936 1,841,303 192.935 +18_,439 ___ 

0 0 O 0 0 TOTAL REVENUES 5,875,824 0 Other financJn9 sources Operating transfers in 33,075 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 5,908~899 Expenditures Current Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

97,371 14,977 71529 4,988,984 210,239 157,760 1,135 188 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,476.163 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 33.075 

0 
0 
0 0 (t37} 284,757 31.341 135 (38) (188) 315,870 
0 

949.367 891.936 1,841,303 192,936 18,439 5,875,824 
33.075 
97,371 14,977 7,392 5,27f,721 241,580 157,895 1,097 O 5,792,033 
_ 33,075 

917,734 31,633 _++846,011 4~925 1,763,745 77,558 233,999 _ 18.9~8 5,706,936 
(41,063) (497) 168.888 

33.075 0 
5,740.011 
109,048 22,708 18,966 8,451,948 277,861 152.036 10,200 1,030 

_ 168~88 
11,677 7,731 11,574 1.180.227 36,281 (5,859) 9.103 

7,043,797 1,251,764 
33,o75 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES _+. 5j~238 315,870 5,825~108 ~076,877- _ __ 1,25~764 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 399.861 (315,876) 83,791 (1,336.861) 1.420.652 Fund balance (dertci{) Beginning of year END OF YEAR 1~9~421 379,752 ___2~353 1,1773 ~22~73 0 $ +2,373.O82 $ _63.882 $ 2,436,964_ $~0163~312 $ _ 1,420,652 
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Revenues Taxes Ad valorern Sales 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Olher 
Charges for services Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 ANIMAL SHELTER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 
$ 936,717 $ 0 936.717 137,003 O 137,003 258,270 27,722 8~321 1,368,033 0 TOTALREVENUESAND OTHER FJNANCJNG SOURCES _._ 1,38~933 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technica Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

771,626 180,735 102,367 114,063 123,410 82,014 O 51.236 

0 $ O 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30 0 

3,445 35 (3,200) (57) (960) (121) O 0 

ACTUAL ON VARIANCE- BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE) 
936.717 $ O 936.717 137.003 0 137,003 258,300 27,722 8~21 1,368,063 0 

902.168 $ 0 902,168 137,003 0 137,003 280,000 20,113 O 1,339,284 0 

34,549 _ O 34,549 0 O 0 (21,7OO) 7,609 ~,321 28,779 0 
~963 f,339,284 ~~.. 28L779 
775,071 180,770 99.167 114,006 122,43O 81,893 O ~236 1.425.451 (878) 1,424,573 

0 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,425,451 (878) 

775,136 192,823 102,430 114,992 112,666 67,851 0 52~ 1,438,060 
O 1,424,573 1,438,080 Excess (deficiency) of revenues end other sources over expenditures and other uses (57,418) 908 (56.510) (98.796) Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year END OF YEAR Continued 

~43 1,221 

65 12,053 3,263 986 (9,764) 5,958 0 946 13,507 
0 13.507 
42,286 
0 $ 44,725 $. = 2,12~ $~,854= $ 4 58~ $ 42,2~6= 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales 
IntergovernmentaI State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

YearEnded December31,1997 MOSQUITO CONTROL ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET $ O $ 0 0 0 0 0 1,002,341 1,021 O 1,003,362 
0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1~003,3362 Expenditures Current Personal SerVices Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technlca Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

0 864 0 1,004,718 0 0 O 0 1,005,582 
0 1.,0C)5,582 

05 0 0 0 0 

O 
0 0 

0 
0 

0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 1,002,341 1,021 0 1,003,362 
0 1,003,362 
0 864 O 

1,005,582 
0 0 1,005,582 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE _(UNFAVORABLE) 0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 1,010,000 500 0 1,010,500 
0 1.010.500 
0 864 0 1,022,157 0 0 0 0 1,023,021 
0 1.023.021 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (2,220) 0 (2,220) (12,521) Fund balance (deficit Beginning of year END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 
34~o5o51 o 34.051 34,051 

0 0 0 o 0 0 (7,659} 521 0 (7.138} 0 
(Tj 38) 
0 O 0 17,439 0 0 0 O 17,439 
0 17.439 
10,301 
0 $ 31.831 $ 0 $ 31j831 $ 21,530 $ '10.3Ojl 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales 
Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Misce]laneous 

Year Ended December 31,1997 HEALTH UNIT ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 1,012,743 $ 0 1,012,743 147,545 O 147,545 0 83,747 7,771 TOTAL REVENUES 1,251,806 Other f/nanclng sources Operating transfers in 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ 125t,806 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

54,026 7,276 16,845 455,288 204,479 7,852 5 .._!~347 756,ffB 
0 

O $ 1,012,743 $ O 0 0 0 0 

0 0 

1,012,743 147,545 0 147,545 O 83,747 ..7j771 

975,797 $ 0 975,797 147,545 O 147,545 O 42,759 0 1,251,806 1.166.101 0 0 
0 1,251,806 1~!66,10! 
0 0 (3,028) 54,026 7,276 13,817 451,769 167,779 7,870 5 O ~..53,578~ 702,542 0 0 

67,500 10,225 26,005 471,522 761,883 10,532 0 47,831 1,395,499 
0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNF,~VORABLE) 36,946 0 36,946 0 O 0 0 40,988 7.771 85,705 0 
85.705 
f3,474 2,949 f2,f88 19,753 594,104 2,662 (5) 47,83! 692, 956 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 756,118 ~53,576) 702,542 1,395,498 692,956 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 495,686 53,576 549,264 (229,397) Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year __ . 548,191 ~(9~450) END OF YEAR Continued] 

538.741 538,741 
778,56f 
0 $~!,043,879 .44,126_ $ 1~088,005 $ 309,344 $ 778,661 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers In 

Year Ended December 31.1997 HUMAN SERVICES AUTHORITY ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET $ 934,563 $ O 934,563 137,003 0 137,003 0 26,210 0 1,097,776 0 

O $ O 0 0 0 

0 0 

g34,563 $ O 934,563 137,003 0 137,003 0 26,210 O 1,097,776 0 

904.270 $ 0 go4,270 137,003 O 137,003 O 26,064 0 1,067,337 O 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE .(UNFAVORABLE) 30,293 0 30,293 0 0 0 O 146 O 30,439 O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,097,776 O 1,097,776 Ij067,337 _ 30,439 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional end technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

O O O 1,136,439 0 1,424 0 O 

0 0 0 1.136.439 o 1,424 0 0 

0 0 0 1,136,876 0 1,424 O 0 

O 0 O 439 0 O O O 1,137,863 O 1,137,863 1,138,302 439 
O O 0 g TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,137,863 O Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year END OF YEAR 

[ContinuedJ 

(40,087) 
78,644 $ 3~5~ 

126 

0 
0 0 

1,137,863 
0 

1~138~302 43g 
(40,087) (70,955) 
78,644 _ 78j~14 7.679 

30,878 
0 $ 30,878 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS o HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF RE~IENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Sales 
Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other 
Charoe~ for services Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31.1997 TOTAL - HEALTH & WELFARE FUNCTION ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON OAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 2,884,023 $ O 2.884,023 421.551 0 421.551 1,280,811 138,700 16.092 TOTAL REVENUES 4,720,977 Other financing sources Operating transfers in 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 4,720,977 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

825,652 188.875 119,212 2,710,508 327,889 91 290 5 ~563 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4.325,014 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE .(UNFAVORABLE) 0 $ 2,884,023 $ 2,782,235 $ O 0 O 

O 30 O 0 30 
O 

3,445 35 (6,228) (3,576) (37,680) (193) o (1o~ (54,454) O 

2,884,023 421.551 0 
2,782,235 421.551 0 421,551 1,260,641 138,700 tS,O~? 4.721.007 0 

101,7~ 0 101.788 0 0 421,551 1,290,000 89,436 0 4,583,222 
0 4,721~007 ~44 583,222 

829,097 188,910 112,964 2,706.932 290,209 91,~87 5 
842,636 203,912 128,435 2,745,549 874,549 99,B07 O 100.013 4,270,560 4,994,901 

0 0 

0 (29,359) 49,264 .1_6,092 137.765 0 
137.785 
13,539 15,002 15,451 38,617 584,340 8,620 (5) 48,777 724,341 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 4,325,014 (54L45=4) _ __ 4~270~560 4,994,901 -- . 7~':4,3fI Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year END OF YEAR 
395,963 763,029 

54,484 
__(a~229) $ lJ58,992 $ 46j255 $ 
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450,447 
754,800 1,205,247 $ 
(411,679) 754,800 

0 
862,126 
_ 0 343,12! $~ =8~2,126 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenues Taxes Ad vaIorem Hotel occupencytax Licenses and permits ntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission 
Fines and Forfeitures Interest Ineorne Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 EAST BANK CONSOLIDATED PLAYGROUND DISTRICT ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 6,172,415 0 6,172,415 0 $ 0 O 0 0 
174,542 0 174,542 594,501 0 594,501 
361,791 78.103 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE 
6,172,415 $ 5,984,353 $ 188,062 0 0 0 6,172,415 5,984,353 188,062 0 
174,542 0 174,542 594,501 0 594,501 0 361,791 78.103 7,381,352 0 7,381,352 tO.O00 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _ 7,391,352 Expenditures Current Personal Service~ ~ Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Propedy Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

3,059,275 592,819 537.135 564,399 479,715 897,044 83,906 61,7728 6.276,021 
296,102 

Ioo,c~o tfo,ooo 
0 59 (77,785) 3,059,275 592,878 459,349 563,047 470,636 697,344 83,739 58.742 (91,011) 6,185,010 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES _ 6~572,123 __ (91,011~ Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

819,229 3,260,793 0 

296,102 

0 174,542 0 174,542 579,500 0 579,500 0 271.366 

0 O O 0 15,001 0 15.001 
90.425 30,000 48,103 7,039,761 

7, !. 49,761 
3,373,968 770,373 571,B99 600,350 562,537 964,716 80,591 108.489 7.032,723 
296,102 

341,59 
341,59 0 

314,693 177,495 112,350 37,303 91,901 67,372 (3,148) 49,747 847.713 
0 6,481,112 7,328,825 847,713 

191,011 1,010,240 (375,985) 2,904,808 0 0 %4~Ioo~o22 $__ (!_~,974j 
129 

(179,064) 2,904,808 0 
1.189.304 6 O 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31,1997 
Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permils ntergovemmsntal State r~venue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies purchased Services Pmfeesk~al end technical Property Other General expenses CapRal outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operst~ng transfers out 

WEST BANK CONSOLIDATED PLAYGROUND DISTRICT #1 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY 
$ 3,327,559 $ 0 3,327,569 

1,177,036 0 1.177.036 0 253,104 14.601 5,058,822 
~__~000 5,063,822 
2,447,194 482,656 428.099 420,637 460,046 700,361 36,800 1~82 

BASIS BAS~S BUDGET 0 $ 0 0 3,327,559 0 3,327,559 $ 3,189,784 O 3.189.784 0 0 0 0 0 0 286,522 0 286,522 286,522 0 266.522 O 1,177,036 1,266,500 O O 0 0 1.177.036 1,266.500 0 253.104 0 262,552 14 601 5,200 O 5,058,822 O _ -- 5,000 0 
0 65 (16,775) 

5,010,558 
5.000 

_ 5~3~22 521_5,558_ 
2,447,194 482,721 411,324 420,637 459,916 700,348 32,121 -- 123,551 

2,587,072 513,241 427,935 426,223 598,281 723,465 39,387 _ 236,598 5,103,165 (25,353) 5,077.812 5,552,202 0 _ 121,392 121.392 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORAB.I-E) $ 137,775 0 137.775 

(89,464) O (89,464) 0 (9,448) 9.401 48,264 
0 48,26~4 
139,BTB 30.520 16,611 5.586 138,365 23,117 7,266 11~047 474,390 
0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 5,224,55Z (25,353) 5~u999~2~ _ 5L673 594 474.390 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund ba{ance(defic~) Beginning of year Resldualequitytransfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

(160,735) 3,340.552 0 $ 3,379,817 
25,353 (135,382) 
(17,279) 3,323,273 0 0 $ B,074 

130 

(658,O36) 3,323.273 0 
522,654 O 0 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ~ CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 ALARIO CENTER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS 0 $ 0 O O 0 ___ 237~197 237,197 0 ?o~.5o9 205,509 0 23.703 0 466.409 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 466,4()9- Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other Generat expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equlty transfer END OF YEAR IConfinued] 

105323 16,062 13.163 131,061 65,519 40,716 183 379,537 0 

0 $ O 0 0 0 q 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 
0 0 O (14,130) (10,896) 0 0 0 

O $ 0 0 0 O 237~197 237.197 0 205.509 205,509 O 23,703 0 466,409 
0 466.409 
105,723 16,082 13.163 116,951 54,623 40,716 183 7 o~o7o7o (25,020) 354,511 8 8 

86,872 
391.564 0 478.436 

25,026 
7,480 0 399,044 0 

BUDGET 
0 0 
0 0 _ j?=0,0~) 120.000 

328,000 0 328.000 
129,135 19,402 9,071 1B0,879 47,704 51,483 1,324 21.181 440,179 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 0 0 O O 0 117j97 117,197 O 5L5o9 5,509 0 15~o3 0 138,409 
0 138,409 
23,412 3.320 (4,092) 43,928 (6,919) 10,767 1,141 14.!11 85,668 O 

__ 85.668 
(1 f 2,179) 399,044 0 $ 3_2~506 $ __5J_0~942- $ 266,8,65 
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224,077 
O O 224.077 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31,1997 PLAYGROUND DISTRICT #10 ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ADTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY 9ASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET Revenues Taxes Ad valorem $ 223,364 $ Hotel occupancy tax 0 --- 223.364 Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers In TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out 

O 
16,685 O 16.685 23,695 O 23.695 O 11,141 881 275,766 O 275,766 
82,304 14,169 25,901 29,665 29,620 13,120 6,978 29.798 231,555 O 

O $ O O 223,364 $ 215,440 O 0 223,364 0 0 O 0 O 0 0 0 

0 0 0 
O O 3 O (151) 2 (217) 0 (363) 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 231,555 (363) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

44,211 
92,389 O 

363 (290) 0 

16,685 O 16,685 23,695 0 23,695 0 11,141 881 275,766 O 275.766 
82,304 14,169 25,904 29,665 29,46~ 13,122 6,761 29~798 231.192 0 

215,440 O 16,685 O 16,665 19,930 0 19,930 O 10,299 5O0 262,854 O 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 7,924 0 7,924 O 0 O O 3,765 O 3,765 O 842 381 12,912 O 262,854 12,912 
137,410 18,141 28,987 32,037 32,478 13,597 15,500 39jZ89 317,939 O 

2311192 _ 317,939 
44,574 92,099 0 
(55,085) 92,099 O $136,60q $ 73 $__._!36,673 $ 37,014 
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55,106 3,972 3,083 2,372 3,009 475 8,739 9,991 86,747 0 
86.747 
99,659 O O $ 99j659 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31,1997 
Revenues Taxes Ad vatorem Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

PLAYGROUND DISTRICT #16 ACTUAL GAAP BASIS ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET $ 145,172 $ 0 145.172 O $ 0 O 0 O O 0 0 O O 0 o 4,554 _o 149,726 
O 

0 0 O 0 O O 
0 

145,172 0 145,172 0 0 O O 0 0 O 0 4,554 0 149,726 
O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 149,726 0 149,726 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Cap/tat oufiay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operath~,9 ~ransfers out 

0 0 O 149,358 0 0 0 149,358 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES f 49~358 Excess (deficiency) of revenues end other sources over expenditures end other uses Fund balance (deflcff) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
[Continued] 

308 
20,788 O 

0 O O 

O O O t 49,358 O O O 0 i 49,358 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE 
140,056 $ 5,116 0 O 140.056 5.116 0 o O 0 O 0 -0~ o 3,522 O 143,578 O 
143,578 
0 0 O 149,429 0 O 0 0 149.429 0 

0 0 -- ~0 O 1,032 0 6,148 0 

~49j3,~ f49L,~?9 _ 
388 
20,788 0 $ 21,156 $ 0 $ 21,156 
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(5,B51) 20,788 0 

O O O 71 0 0 O 0 71 O 
6,219 
O O $ 14,937 $ .__6,219 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Advalorem Hotel occupancy tax 
Licenses and permits I~tergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission 
FIr..es er, d Fodeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31.1997 LAFRENIERE PARK RECREATION DISTRICT ACTUAL GAAP BASTS ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
943 $ 0 943 0 $ 943 0 0 0 043 0 0 
O 0 0 0 0 0 1.389.477 0 0 0 1,389,477 0 0 17,717 _?+,7~o TOTAL REVENUES 1,410,867 Other financing sources Operafng transfers in 0 

0 
0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,410,867 0 Expenditures Current Personal Se~Ices Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

452,503 108.670 74,312 138,951 89,538 140,263 846 110,937 

0 148 (5,135) 0 933 64 482 0 

0 
0 0 0 1,389,477 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~UNFAVORABLE) $ 150 $ 0 155+ 0 
0 0 ++_ 0 1,444,500 0 

793 O 793 0 
0 0 
(65,023) o 1,389,477 1,444,500 (55,023) O 0 17,717 22,048 .+ 2,7_30 1j500 1,410,867 1,468,198 

0 0 1,410,867 
452,503 108,518 69.177 138,951 90.471 140,327 1,328 110,937 

1.468.108 
477,030 138,586 81,649 172.075 101,764 161,990 1,650 _ 126,898 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,116,020 (3,508) 1,112,512 1,261,642 Other fnancing uses Operating transfers out 350,990 

0 (4,331) _.!,23#__ (57,331) 
O (57A31) 
24,527 29,768 12,472 33,124 11,293 21,663 322 !~961 149,130 O TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,367~010 ~96492 _1j463502 1,612,632 149,130 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 43,657 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning ol year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR [Continued] 

106,197 0 
(95,492) 30,0,652 O 
(52,635) 406,849 O 2#'~,t60_ $.~3F~ ~jA 
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(144,434) 44)6,849 0 
91,799 
0 0 $ 262,415 $ 91.799 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS. CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Advslorem Hotel occupancy tax 
Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for sewices Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission 
Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

Year Ended December 31,1997 
ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 
$ 8,837,277 $ 0 8,837,277 0 $ 0 0 

LIBRARY ACTUAL ON VARIANCE- BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BUDGET U~AVORABLE~ 8,837,277 $ 8,910,350 $ (73,073) 0 O 0 8,837,277 8,910,350 (73,073) 0 0 0 0 699,890 0 699,890 112,226 0 112.226 160,944 417,602 182,010 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
699,890 0 699,890 112,226 0 112,226 160,944 417.602 

699,890 0 699,890 58,156 O 58.156 115,000 265,096 182,0t0 91,000 TOTALREVENUES 10,409,949 0 10,409,949 10,139,492 Other financing sources Operating transfers In _ ~~5_7~974 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _10,567 923 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

4,472,378 921,690 565.773 

0 0 
0 (7) (164,066) 651,062 (1,578) 908,223 (1,261) 385,914 1,074 7,548 (151) ~436 (13 0~O553~ TOTAL EXPENDITU RES 8,415.124 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 5000 

157~74 __ .~5Z,974 

0 O 0 0 54,070 0 54.070 45,944 152,506 91,010 270,457 
0 10,567,923 _ 10 ~'2cJ7,466 __ 270_457 

4,472,378 921,683 401.707 649,484 906,962 386,988 7,497 489,383 (179,042) 8,236,082 0 5.000 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 8,42()~'/24 1~79L047) 

5,115,372 1,228,107 562,670 683,530 1,188,234 437,781 7,949 580.103 9,803,746 . 5,009_ 8,241,082 9,808,~(~ Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 2.147,799 179,042 2,326,841 Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
[Continued] 

1 421.478 (75,692) 1,345,786 0 0 

642,994 306,424 160,963 34,046 281,272 50,793 452 ..90,720 1,567,664 0 
~6~ 

488,720 1,838,121 1,345,786 0 0 0 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Hotelcocupency tax L~censes a~d permlls Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 COMMUNITY SERVICES ACTUAL GAAP BASIS $ 0 0 0 33,095 0 0 0 0 374.144 374,144 O (26) 5.557 412.770 520.362 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 933,132 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Olher financing uses Operating transfers out 

~3,166 49,005 8.644 23,411 5,267 17,681 526,085 _ 15,853 

ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BAS/S 0 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 
VARIANCE- FAVORABLE BUDGET ~NFAVORABLE~ 0 0 0 33,095 32,390 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O 15 15 O 15 

0 0 (156) 0 98) 74 O O 929,122 (280 0 0 

O O 0 
0 (26) 

0 0 0 O 380,019 380,019 0 9.116 5,572 4,000 412,785 
___ 52~362 

425,525 
._ 528~730 

0 9 6 
O 0 o 0 ~5~875) (5,875) 0 (9,142) 1,572 (12,740) ._ _ (8,368) 933,147 954,255 (2~i~~i08) 

283,166 49,005 8.488 23,411 5,069 17,755 526,085 15,863 928,842 
0 

283,760 52,340 8,589 23,756 6,015 23,735 537,850 !7,4o5 953,450 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES .929,122 ____~80) 9~842 953~50 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures end other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
Continued] 

4,010 (73) O =_.?~,937 $ 
295 73 0 

136 

4,305 0 0 $.==~4&9_~_ $ 

594 3,335 101 345 946 5,980 11,765 __ ~2 

805 O O 805 $ 

24,608 0 
24~6o8 
3,500 0 0 





JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31,1997 OFF TRACK BETTING 
Revenues Taxes Ad valorem $ Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permits lntergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission 
Fines and Forfeitures Inlemslinoome Miscel~neous TOTAL REVENUES Otherfinanclng sources Oper~ing kans~rsin TOTALREVENUESAND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Protessional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay 

ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON VARIANCE- GAAp TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASTS BASIS BASIS BUDGET ~ORABLE) 
0 $ 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 273,104 273.104 0 11.384 0 284.488 
0 ?24 486 
0 0 O 0 O O 93,128 0 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 93,128 Other financing uses Operating transfers out _ .220~4114 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USE~. 313,.542 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

(29.054) 115.803 0 

0 $ 0 
0 0 O O O 0 0 

0 
0 0 

0 $ 0 0 0 $ 0 O 0 
0 O _ 0 0 0 0 273,1104 ~~_ 240,000_ 273,104 240,000 0 11,384 0 284.488 0 

O 8,000 0 248,000 0 
284,458 __ 2=48~q 00 
O O 0 0 0 0 93.128 0 

0 0 0 0 0 O 136,297 0 93,128 136,297 
220.414 313.542 
(29,054) 115,803 O 0 $ 86,749 
138 

220.414 
(108,711) 115,803 0 L._~97_ $ 

0 0 O 0 
0 O " O 0 33~104 33.104 0 3.384 0 36.488 0 
36.488 
0 0 0 0 O O 43,169 0 43,169 
0 43.169 
79,657 0 O 79.657 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVEi',:UES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES. CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem $ Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permits 
Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneeus TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
Continued] 

Year Ended December 31,1997 VIDEO POKER ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 0 $ 0 0 
ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS O $ O 0 O $ 0 0 O O O O 0 0 

35.895 O 35.895 

O O 0 0 O O 31,375 0 31,375 _ 45g.802. 
_ ~Tj 
(455.282) 
782,556 O 

0 0 O 0 0 0 

0 O 0 

0 0 
0 

0 

O O O O 0 O O 35,895 
35,895 0 35.895 
0 O 0 O 0 0 31,375 O 31,375 459,802 491.177 

BUDGET VARIANCE- FAVORABLE U(UN FAVORABLE) 0 $ 0 O O O O 0 O O O 

0 O O O O O 149,463 O 149.463 459.8o2 

0 0 - O 0 

35,895 O 35.895 0 35.895 
0 O 0 0 0 O 118,088 O 118.088 0 

_ 0o~,26~ 118,0~ 
455,282) (609,265) 782,556 782,556 O 0 

153,983 
O 0 $.. 32L274 $_=__ 173..291= $ 153,983 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDUL~ OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Hotel occupancy tax Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State rever~ue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 WEST BANK TOURISM ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS $ 0 $ 133,522 133,522 
ACTUAL ON VARIANCE- BUDGETARY FAVORABLE BASIS BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE O $ 0 0 0 0 

0 0 d 0 8 0 O 11,175 0 144,697 O TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -- _ 144.697 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity'transfer END OF YEAR ContinuedI 

0 0 0 0 0 0 17,500 0 17,500 
78,0~9 
49,138 130,347 8 $ 179.485 $ 

O $ 0 $ 133,522 100,000 133.522 100.000 
0 0 --0- -- 0 O O 0 8 0 0 11,175 0 144,697 

0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 5,000 0 105.000 
O 144,697 

0 0 
0 

0 O 0 O 0 O 17,500 0 

0 :33,522 33.522 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 6.175 
39,697 0 

_.~05.000 37,697 
0 0 O O 0 0 67,280 0 67,280 78,.059 78 ()59 95,5_59 __ 145j339 

49,138 130,347 O 
(40,339) 130,347 
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O 0 0 0 0 O 49,780 0 49,780 O 
49.780 
89,477 0 0 89.477 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ~ CONTINUED Year Ended December 31,1997 WEST BANK RIVERBOAT GAMING 
Revenues Taxes Ad valorem $ Hotel occupancytax 
Licenses and permits Intergovemmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and deUnquenl fees Gaming fees and commission 
Fines and Forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous 

ACTUAL GAAP BASIS ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS 0UDGET 
0 $ 0 0 

0 __ 1,362L87.0. 1,382,870 0 14.283 O TOTAL REVENUES 1.377.153 Other financing sources Operating transfers in ___ 2,970 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Sen4ces Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Caplta{ outlay 

0 $ 0 0 0 
O O 0 O 0 0 

0 B 
1380.129 O 
0 0 0 O 0 0 214.645 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 214,645 Other financing uses Operating transfers out 1,515,795 TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,730,4.40 Excess (deficiency) of revenues ~nd other sources over expenditures and other uses (350,311) Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR IConfinuedl 
442,892 0 

0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~NFAVORABLE) 
0 $ 0 $ 0 0 o- o 0 0 
0 0 0 0 ~1j362~870 .362,870 0 t 4.283 0 

O 0 0 0 1,276~158 1.276.156 0 9,999 

O 0 O O 0 0 0 0 86,712 66,712 0 4,284 0 0 1,377,153 1,286,157 2~976 _ 2,976 -_ 1,360,129 
O O 0 O 0 0 214,645 0 

1.289.133 
0 0 O O 0 0 214,645 0 214,645 214,645 1.5t 5.795 1.730.440 

(390,311 ) 442,892 0 

90,996 0 

1 515,795 _ O 
j ,730L~0 
(441,307) 442,892 O 

0 
90,996 
0 

o $ ~2,581 $ 1~58~ $ 9o,~ 
141 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBtNING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem $ Hotel occupancytax Licenses and permits Intergovernmental State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service and delinquent fees Gaming fees snd commission Fines and Forfeitures Interest Income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31,1997 WEST BANK RIVERBOAT MONITORING ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUAL ON GAAp TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 0 $ 0 0 0 
0 0 13~070 13,070 O (18) () t3,052 0 TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES __ ~052 Expendilures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professional and technical Property Other General expenses Capital oufiay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 

[Continued] 

6,049 909 0 4,077 O 0 6,324 0 17,359 2,976 20,335 
(7,283) 9,553 O $ 2,270 $ 

0 0 0 

0 0 O 0 

0 

0 0 

0 $ 0 O 0 O 0 O 0 13~070 13.070 0 (18) 0 13,052 0 13,052 
6,049 909 O 4,077 0 0 6,324 O 17,359 2 976 

0 12,000 

12,000 0 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) $ 

0 1,070 1,070 O (18) 0 1,052 0 12,000 _ _ 1 052 
6,627 1,210 O 4,077 0 0 6,324 0 18,238 2,976 

0 ~35 21,214 

0 
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(7,283) 9,553 O $ 2_~2_70. $ 
(9,214 9,553 O 339 

1,931 0 O $ 1,931 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOU}S|ANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURE & RECREATION FUNCTION COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED 

Revenues Taxes Ad valorem Hotel occupancy tax 
Licenses and permits Intergovernmentaf State revenue sharing Other Charges for services Service end delinquent fees Gaming fees and commission 
Fines and forfeitures Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in 

Year Ended December 31.1997 TO3AL. CULTURE AND RECREATION FUNCTION ACTUAL ADJUSTMENT ACTUALON GAAP TO BUDGETARY BUDGETARY BASIS BASIS BASIS BUDGET 
$ 18,706,730 $ 133,522 18,840,252 0 0 0 $ 18,706,730 133,522 18,840,252 

VARIANCE- FAVORABLE ~NFAVORABL~ $ 18,440.133 $ 100,000 18,540,133 33,005 0 33,095 32,390 1,177,639 237J97 1,414,836 3,296,935 2,22~697 5,525,632 160,944 1,162,876 286,154 27,423,789 

0 0 0 t,177,639 2~197 f,414,838 0 3.296,935 o ~278~697 O 5,525,632 0 0 15 
160,944 1,162,876 

120j(~O_ 1,297,639 3,368,586 ~08,177 5,476,763 115,000 874,998 286,169 132,200 15 27,423,804 26,469,123 
100,000 926,3'12 934.680 TOTALREVENUESAND OTHERFINANC~NG SOURCES 28,250,101 IO0,015 28,350,116 27,~3.!803 Expenditures Current Personal Services Salaries Employee benefits Supplies Purchased Services Professtona/and technical Property Other General expenses Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

10,970,342 2,195,510 1.658.711 2,140,399 2,058,796 2,109,458 1,026,169 855.214 23,104,597 2.950.530 
26,055,127 

0 265 (263,015) 10,970,342 2,195,775 "~ ,3g4,796 (17,163) 2,t23,236 (20,782) 2,038.014 1,511 2,200,967 (4,732) t ,021,437 l~gj 87 O) 8~344 
12,172,125 2,751,195 1,696,293 2,280,O29 2,557,882 2,380,234 1,259,012 1.130.463 (324,686) 22,779,911 26,227,233 100.000 

__~~86) ~833()~_441 ~277,763_ Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses 2,194.974 324,701 2,519.675 (1,873,960) Fund balance (deficit) Beginning of year Residual equity transfer END OF YEAR 
10,134,839 0 $J 2,32_9.813 $ 

161.041) 9,973,795 0 0 163.650 
9.973.708 0 $=12~4~473 $8099838 
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266,597 33,522 300,1 tg 705 
0 117.197 117,197 (71,651) 12o.52o 48,869 45,944 287,878 __ 153,969 954.681 
(8~368) 946313 
1,201,783 555,420 301.497 156,793 519.868 179,267 237,575 295,119 3,447,322 0 
3.447.322 
4,393,635 
0 0 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT Year Ended December 31,1997 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM State Grants Health and Human Services Grants 
Department of JusSce Grants 

Miscellaneous Grants General Fund Miscellaneous Grants 
General Fund Miscellaneous Grants Criminal Justice Juvenile Services 

Housing and Urban Development Grants General Fund Department of Labor Grants Juvenile Sen/ices Video Poker 
Department of Transportation Grants Central Garage Improvements Capital Project Miscellaneous Grants 

Crim]na] Justice Juvenile Services 

General Fund State Grants Health and Human Services Grants Department of Justice Grants Juvenile Services Library 
Department of Justice Grants 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN $ 7,311 $ 61~,56~ 24,495 638.056 

Department of Justice Grants Department of Labor Grants Miscellaneous Grants Juvenile Detention Home and Justice Center Capital Project 
Emergency Communications Emergency Communications Capital Project Fire District #7 Streets Department 
Parkways Department 

Video Poker West Bank Riverboat Gaming Parkways Department Streets Capital Program Public Works Capital Program Federal Aid Urban Capital Project 
Streets Department Consolidated Drainage District #1 Fourth Jefferson Drainage District Drainage District #9 Drainage Pump Stations 
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21,163 30,263 5,235 25,566 82,247 271,240 3,000 50,000 53.000 
491,102 142,652 38,476 89,352 5,ooo 768.562 

10,000 41.985 
3,421,334 29,545 39,393 29,545 196,986 3.716.783 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 
142,652 i42,652 38,476 
38,476 

175,000 175.000 
7,311 24,495 30,263 
62,069 5,235 25,586 3,000 89,352 700,000 817,938 500.000 
3,421,334 350,000 347,966 400,000 4,519,300 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT - tCONTINUED) Year Ended December 3t, 1S97 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM Consolidated Road Lighting District Alario Center Capital Project Garbage District #1 
Garbage District #2 Garbage District #6 Landfill Division 
Consolidaled Drainage District #1 
Fourth Jefferson Drainage District 
Drainage District #9 
Drainage Pump Stations 
Transil Operations Transit - Elderly and Handicapped 

Landgl~ Division Jefferson Parish Landfill Capital Project Landfill Division Landfil[ DMsion Garbage District #1 Garbage District #2 Garbage District #6 
Parkways Deparlment Public Utilities West Bank Yard Capital Project Drainage Capital Program 
Parkways Department Drainage Cspital Program Parkways Department Public Utilities West Bank Yard Capital Project Drainage Capital Program Parkways Department Pump Station Improvements Capital Project Drainage Capital Progrsm Parishwide Drainage-1991 Bond Issue Capital Projecl 
Transit - Elderly and Handicapped Transit Operations East Bank Consolidated Playground Distric Off Track Betting Public Works Capital Program East Bank Consolidated Playground Capital Improvements Project 

West Bank Consolidated Playground District #1 West Bank Riverboat Gaming West Bank Playground Capital Improvements 

145 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN 

2,188,038 1,508,992 75,449 31772,479 

33,075 
lO,OOO 
10,000 5,000 5.000 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 138,200 2,188,038 695,000 2,883,038 1,508,992 75,449 
29,545 75,000 125,000 229,545 39,393 260,000 299,393 29,545 218,009 45,000 292.545 196,966 1,194,000 725,000 482,000 2,597,966 
33,075 
171,102 125,000 296.102 
121,392 121,392 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT - (CONTINUED) Year Ended December 31. t997 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM Lafreniere Park Recreation District 
Library 
Community Services Tourism Off Track Betting 
Video Poker 
West Bank Tourism West Bank Riverboat Gaming 

Lafreniere Park Recreation District Debt Service Lafreniere Park Capital Project Miscellaneous Grants Video Poker General Liability Internal Service General Fund General Fund East Bank Consolidated Playground District Public Works Capital Program 
Department of Labor Grants Fire District #7 Libra." Public Works Capital Program Federal Aid Urban Capital Project 
Public Works Capital Program 

OPERATING TRANSFERS iN 
101,856 56,118 157,974 520,362 130.000 

General Fund Streets Department West Bank Consolidated Playground District #1 West Bank Riverboat Monitoring 2,976 Public Works Capital Program Federal Aid Urban Capital Project West Bank Playground Capital Improvements Parishwide Drainage 1991- Bond Issue Capital Project Drair~age Capital Program 
WestBankRiverboatMonitoring WestBankRiverboatGaming TOTAL 

146 

2,976 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 130,990 120,000 250,990 5,000 
5.000 
10,000 210,414 220,414 50,000 10,000 101,858 263,601 34,345 459,802 78.059 20,000 41,985 5,000 1,021,286 189,768 4O,0OO 2,754 195,000 1,515,795 - 2,976 $ 10,217,070 $ = 17,269,403 



DEBT SERVICEFUNDS The Debt Service Funds are used to accumulate monies for the payment of principal, interest, and fisca charges on the Parish's general obligation and special tax bonds. S~l~ecial Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Funds account for a special sales tax levy in the unincorporated area of the parish and within the town of Lafitte needed to comply with the interest and principal redemption requirements of the bond indentures for the following funds: SST Revenue Refunding Series A 1991 SST Revenue Refunding Series B 1991 Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds Funds account for a special sales tax levy upon paid occupancy of hote located on the East Bank of the Mississippi River within Jefferson Parish, needed to comply with the and principal redemption requirements of the bond indentures for the following funds: rooms aterest East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Series A & B East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding & Improvement Bonds - Series 1997" Sales Tax Drainaoe Bonds Funds account for transfers from General Fund and Dedicated Sales Tax for payment of interest and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following fund: Drainage Sales Tax Revenue Series 1991 Drainage Sales Tax Refunding Bonds - Series 1997" Public Improvement Revenue Bonds Funds account for a service charge assessment needed to comply with the interest and principal redemption requirements of the bond indentures for the following funds: Lafreniere Park Recreation District LaSalle Tract Revenue Bonds Series A - 1996 LaBalle Property LaSalle Tract Revenue Bonds Series B - 1996 LaSalIe Tract Revenue Refunding Bonds - 1996 First Parish Court Building Fund accounts for transfers from the General Fund for payment of interest and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following fund: EImwood Building East Bank Office Building Series 1994 General Obligation Bonds Funds account for the property tax levies both parish wide and in individual districts, needed to comply with the interest and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following funds: Road District #1. Sub #1 Consolidated Road District A, Sub #1 New Prison Juvenile Detention Home Playground District #1 O Playground District #11 Playground District #12 Playground District #13 Playground District #14 Playground District #15 

Fire District #7 East Bank Consolidated Sewerage District Parishwide Drainage Drainage Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 1997' Consolidated Drainage District #1 Fourth Jefferson Drainage District Drainage Distdct #7 Drainage District #9 Drainage District #9, Sub #1 Consolidated Waterworks District No. 2 
Special Assessments Funds account for revenues derived from assessments against property owners for payment of interest and principal redemption requirements of special assessment bond issues for the following funds: Paving Lien Ordinances Consolidated Sewerage Lien Ordinances Consolidated Water Lien Ordinances 
* Created in 1997 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA DEBT SERVICEFUNDS SCHEDULE OFOPERATINGTRANSFERSIN & OUT Year Ended December 31. 1997 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM SST Revenue Refunding Series A 1991 Sewer Capital Program 
East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Series A & B East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding & Improvement Bonds - Series 1997 East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding & Improvemenls Capital Project 
East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding & Improvement Bonds - Series 1997 East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Series A & B 
Drainage Sales Tax Revenue Series 1991 
Lafreniere Park Recreation District 
LaSalle Property 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 
$ $ 6.563,569 

458~490 
Parishwide Drainage - 1991 Bond Issue Capital Project 3,145,980 
Lafreniere Park Recreation District Special Revenue 
LaSalle Tract Revenue Refunding Bonds - 1996 

LaSalle Tract Revenue Refunding Bonds- 1996 LaSalle Property LaSalle Revenue Bond Series A and B Capital Project 
TOTAL 
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130,990 

35,761 
35.761 

458.490 62,018 520.508 

35.761 
115,923 115,923 

$ 3,771,221 $ 7,235.761 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the acquisition of capital facilities. Road District #1 Sub #1 accounts for proceeds received from the sale of general obligation bonds for the purpose of constructing and improving public streets and highways within the district. West Napoleon Improvements accounts for grant proceeds received from the Department of Transportation and other revenues necessary for the construction of bridges and other improvements to said roadway. Lien Ordinance Improvements accounts for the proceeds from special assessments certificates sold for sewerage and water improvements and paving of new streets within the special district. Road District A, Sub #1 accounts for proceeds received from the sale of general obligation bonds for the purpose of constructing and improving public streets and highways within the district. Gretna Community Development Proiects account for proceeds from the municipality and in conjunction with Community Development Block Grants Funds to construct public works projects. Streets Capital Program accounts for transfers from streets special revenue funds and other revenues necessary for street improvements Public Works Revenue Sharina Proiec accounts for proceeds received from the federal government for development of various road improvements Council District Street Pro.qram accounts for transfers from streets special revenue fund and other revenues necessary for roads, bridges and other improvements in each councilmanic district. Public Works Capital Proaram accounts for various revenues improvements Bonnabel Boat Launch accounts for monies boat launch and recreational facility 

dedicated to public works related 
received for the cost incurred in development of a public 

Linear Park accounts for monies received from the East Jefferson Levee District and other revenues for the construction of a public bike path on the levee. Federal Aid Urban accounts for grant proceeds from the Department of Transportation, and other revenues necessary for the construction of roads, bridges and improvements thereof. Lafreniere Park accounts for proceeds from a bond issue to develop a recreational facility and green space for east bank residents' leisure activities. Alario Center accounts for State of Louisiana and Jefferson Parish monies dedicated to the construction of a Multi-purpose Recreational Complex within Bayou Segnette State Park. West Bank Play~lround Capital Improvements accounts for transfers from specia grants received from the Department of Culture and Recreation for the improvements to the playgrounds and facilities within the district. revenue funds and construction and 
East Bank Consolidated Plav~round Capital Improvements accounts for transfers from 

153 
specla 



revenue funds and other revenues necessary for the construction and improvements to the playgrounds and facilities within the district. Library Capital Improvements accounts for the ten year property tax levy authorized for the purpose of financing the cost of construction, renovations, extensions, improvements and equipment for the parish libraries. Fire Distdct #3 accounts for the property tax levy authorized for the purpose of financing the cost of construction, renovations, improvements and equipment for the fire stations within the district. Fire District #4 Lafitte/Barataria accounts for funds from various sources to construct a new fire station within the boundaries of the Town of Jean Lafitte Fire District #5 Stonebridge accounts for the ten year property tax levy authorized for the purpose of financing the cost of construction, renovations, improvements and equipment for the fire stations within the district. East Bank Consolidated Fire Capital Improvements accounts for the ten year property tax levy authorized for the purpose of financing the cost of construction, renovations, improvements and equipment for the fire stations within the district. Fire Protection District #7 accounts for the bond proceeds received for the cost of construction renovations, improvements and equipment for the fire stations within the district. New York Avenue Lien Ordinance accounts for the proceeds from special assessments certificates sold for sewerage and water improvements and paving of new streets within the district. Sewer Capital Pro qram accounts for grant proceeds from the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, proceeds from sales of special sales tax bonds and other revenues necessary for the construction and/or renovations to the sewerage treatment plants and lines within the Parish. Public Utilities West Bank Yard accounts for transfers from specia the purchase of land and construction of a warehouse for the departments. revenue and enterprise funds for use by west bank public works 
J P Mitigation Fund accounts for monies received from the federal government in the form of grants and other revenue to finance the cost of preserving the wetlands of the parish. Lake Salvadore Shoreline Protection accounts for monies received from the state to develop a coastal restoration plan including repair of the breach between Lake Salvadore and the Bayou Segnette area. Drainage District #1 Capital Improvements accounts for monies transferred from special revenue funds dedicated to improvements to Drainage District #1. Draina.qe District #9 Capital Improvements accounts for monies transferred from special revenue funds dedicated to improvements to Drainage District #9. Parishwide Drainaqe- 1991 Bond Issue accounts tax revenue bonds for the purpose of improveme systems. for the proceeds received from the drainage sales nts and construction to the parish wide drainage 
Pump Station Improvements accounts for monies received from sales tax for upgrading various pump station facilities. 

154 



USDA Watershed Program accounts for the monies received from US Department of Agriculture for repair and restoration of cedain failed facilities. Drainage Capital Program accounts for monies received from sales tax, transfers from special revenue funds, state grants and other revenues necessary to improve the drainage canals and pump stations in the parish. Urban Flood Control accounts for monies received from sales tax and Corps of Engineers for parish wide flood control projects. Marrero Area Drainage accounts for monies received from transfers from various capital project funds dedicated to improvements to the Marrero area drainage system. Drainage District #9 - Sub-Drainage #1 accounts for bond proceeds from sales of bonds authorized for construction and/or renovation to the drainage canals and pump stations within the district. East Bank Animal Shelter accounts for transfers from special revenue funds to finance the construction of a building to house the abandoned animals in the parish. Health Unit Improvements accounts for transfers from the special revenue fund to finance the construction and/or renovation of health unit and mental health facilities in the parish. New Prison accounts for video poker revenues from Jefferson Parish, Jefferson Parish Sheriff and all municipalities within Jefferson Parish except Harahan, contributions from the Jefferson Parish District Attorney and other revenues dedicated to the criminal justice system. Civic and Senior Centers accounts for construction of a Harvey Civic Center. monies transferred from special revenue funds for the First Parish Court Revenue Bond accounts for proceeds from the sale of bonds authorized for the construction of an addition to the First Parish Court Building. Judicial Building Funds accounts for monies collected through the judicia for the construction and/or improvements to the judicial buildings. fine assessment system Juvenile Detention Home and Justice Center accounts for bond proceeds from a sale of bonds, grant monies received from the State Department of Facilities and Control and other revenues necessary for the construction of buildings for the housing, rehabilitation and judicial proceedings of juvenile offenders. Parish Archives Buildin.q accounts for transfers from the general fund and other revenues necessary to renovate and improve the building for the safekeeping of the parish's historical data. Emer,qency Communications accounts for transfers from the special revenue fund necessary to purchase equipment and other capital outlay for the 911 emergency communications system. Courthouse Complex accounts for transfers from Judicial Building Funds for necessary renovations to Gretna padsh Buildings LaSalle Revenue Bond Series A and B accounts for monies from development of roads and parking lots on the LaSalle Tract 
155 

bond proceeds for the future 



LaSalle Tract accounts for monies from bond proceeds for future development of the undeveloped portion of the LaSalle Tract. East Bank Occupancy Tax Projects accounts for monies collected through a hotel/motel tax fee on all hotels and motels throughout the parish for the development of a proposed convention center. East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax RefundinQ and Improvements Proiects accounts for monies from bond proceeds for development of LaSalle Tract recreational facilities Jefferson Parish Landfill accounts for transfers from the Garbage District special revenue fund for the improvements and closure of landfills. Emeraencv Manaeement accounts for transfers from the General fund and other revenues to purchase equipment and construct a tower for the Office of Emergency Preparedness Central Garaqe Improvements accounts for transfers from the general fund and other revenues to renovate existing East Bank Facilities and construct new West Bank facilities. 

456 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT YearEaded December31,1997 
OPERATING OPERATING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM IN OUT 

Lien Ordinance Improvements Council District Street Program $ Streets Capital Program Streets Department Special Revenue Public Works Capital Program 
Council District Street Program Lien Ordinance Improvements 
Public Works Capital Program 

Federal Aid Urban 

Lafreniere Park 
Alario Center 
West Bank Playground Capital Improven~ents 
East Bank Consolidated Playground Capital Improvements 

General Fund File District #4 LafittetBatateda Streets Department Special Revenue East Bank Consolidated Playground District Special Revenue Off Track Setting Special Revenue Video Poker Special Revenue West Bank Tourism Special Revenue West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Streets Capital Program Engineering Internal Service 
Streets Department Special Revenue Video Poker Special Revenue West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Drainage Capital Program Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Enterprise Engineering Internal Service 

1,159 $ 350,000 350,000 350,000 350.000 
1.159 

182,505 6,630 347.966 171,102 210,414 263,601 78.059 1,021,288 350,000 29,850 2,654,785 6,630 
400,000 34,345 189,768 38,218 19,265 29,935 711,531 

Lafreniere Park Recreation District Special Revenue 120,000 
Consolidated Road Lighting District Special Revenue 138,200 
West Bank Consolidated Playground District # 1 Special Revenue West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue 
East Bank Consolidated Playground District Special Revenue Fire District # 4 Lafitte/Barataria Public Works Capital Program 
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121,392 40,000 161.392 
125,000 
6.630 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT - (CONTINUED) 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
Sewer Capital Program 

Public Utilities West Bank Yard 

Year Ended December 31, 1997 
OPERATING OPERATING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM IN OUT 

SST Revenue Refunding Series A 1991 Debt Service East Bank Occupancy Tax Projects Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 Enterprise 
Consolidated Drainage District #1 Special Revenue Drainage District #9 Special Revenue Drainage District # 1 Capital Improvements Drainage District # 9 Capital Improvements Pump Station Improvements 

Drainage #1 Capital Improvements Public Utilities West Bank Yard 
Drainage #9 Capital Improvements Public Utilities West Bank Yard 
Parishwide Drainage- 1991 Bond Issue 

Pump Station Improvements 

Drainage Capital Program 

Drainage Pump Stations Special Revenue West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Drainage Sales Tax Revenue Series 1991 Debt Service Pump Station Improvements Drainage Capital Program 
Drainage Pump Stations Special Revenue Parishwide Drainage-1991 Bond Issue Public Utilities West Bank Yard 
General Fund Consolidated Drainage District #1 Special Revenue Fourth Jefferson Drainage District Special Revenue . Drainage District # 9 Special Revenue Drainage Pump Stations Special Revenue 
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6,563,56~ 36.502 6,600,071 
75,000 218,000 284,409 177,828 755,237 

482,000 2,754 
860,000 143,246 1,488,000 
1.194.000 39,740 1,233,740 
650,000 125,000 260,000 45,000 725.000 

2~109,426 2,109,426 

39,740 39,740 
284.409 
177.828 

3,145,980 1,294,495 4.440.476 
860,000 860.000 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT - (CONTINUED) 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Year Ended December31,1997 
OPERATING OPERATING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM IN OUT West Bank Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Federal Aid Urban Parishwide Drainage-1991 Bond Issue 

Civic and Senior Centers General Fund 
Judicial Building Funds Courthouse Complex 

195,000 1,294,496 3,294,496 
250.000 

Juvenile Detention Home and Juvenile Services Special Revenue Justice Center 700,000 Emergency Communications 
Courthouse Complex 
LaSalle Revenue Bond Series A and B 
East Bank Occupancy Tax Projects 
East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Refunding & Improvements Projects 

Emergency Communications Special Revenue Judicial Building Funds 500,000 250.000 
LaSalle Tract Revenue Refunding Bonds- 1996 Debt Service 1 t5,923 
Sewer Capital Program Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Enterprise 
East Bank Hotel Occupancy Tax Series A & B Debt Service 62,018 

Jefferson Parish Landfill Garbage District #1 Special Revenue 695,000 
Emergency Management General Fund 
Central Garage Improvements Department Of "Transportation Grants Special Revenue Central Garage Internal Service Central Tire Internal Service TOTAL 
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55,000 

38,218 143,246 181,464 
250.000 

36,502 12,825 49.327 

175,000 80,100 24,000 279,100 $ 20,547,262 $ 8,750,459 



ENTERPRISEFUNDS 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to pdvate business enterprises--where the intent of the government's council is that the costs of providing goods or services to lhe general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the government's council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes. Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 accounts for the provision of sewer services and sewage treatment services to the residents of the Parish. All activities accounted for in this fund which are necessary to provide such services, include but are not limited to administration, operations, maintenance and billing and collections of a sewer user fee. Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 accounts for the provision of water services to the residents of the Parish. All activities accounted for in this fund which are necessary to provide such services, include but are not limited to administration, operations, maintenance and billing and collections of a water user fee. 
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ASSETS Current assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Share of pooled assets Receivables (net of allowance for estimated uncollectibles) Interest Ad valorem tax Accounts Intergovernmental Miscellaneous Inventories 
Total current assets 
Restricted and designated assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Share of pooled assets Receivables 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING BALANCE SHEET December 31, 1997 

Total restricted and designated assets 
Property, plant, and equipment - at cost, less accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ASSETS * Audited by other auditors 
[Continued] 

$ 

CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
2.687.135 
5,157,474 2,829,080 8.134 2.417.133 
13.098.956 
24.123.369 
24.123.369 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 
$ 1,434,026 $ 1,099,347 4,782,697 
12,769 671.584 3,768,250 4,015 92,952 3.950.204 
15.815.844 
212,191 3,709,484 23,498,217 5.591.897 
33.011.789 

1,434,026 1,099,347 7.469.832 
12,769 5,829,058 6,597,330 12,149 92,952 6.367.337 

_ 28,914,800 
212,191 3,709,484 47,621,586 5.591.897 
.5-(,:135,158 

344.225.722 105.449.587 449.675.309 
$ 381.448.047 $ 154.277.220 
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$ 535,725,267 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - (CONTINUED) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY Current liabilities Accounts payable Retainage payable Intergovernmental payable Other payables and accruals Deferred revenue 
Total current liabilities Current liabilities payable from restricted and designated assets Accounts payable Retainage payable Customers' deposits Other payables Deferred revenue 
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Total liabilities 
* Audited by ether auditors 
Continued] 

December 31. 1997 
CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 

167 

461,961 $ 1,629,793 5,202,073 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 
260,921 2,642 374,175 907,918 677,148 

722,882 2,642 374,175 3,537,711 5.879.221 
7,293,827 3,222,804 10,516,631 
578,202 207.822 552,680 220,013 3,828,740 92,935 5,633,870 

1,130,882 427,835 3,828,740 92,935 5.633.870 
786,024 10,328,238 11,114,262 
8,979,851 13,551,042 21.630,893 



Fund equity Contributed capita Parish Subdividers Ad valorem tax bonds Parish sales tax bonds Federal government State Citizens 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - (CONTINUED) 

Total contributed capita 
Retained earnings Reserved for construction Unreserved 
Totalretained earnings 
Total fund equity 

December 31. 1997 
CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 

333.107.455 
23,338,011 16.922.730 
40.260.741 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 
888,565 $ 3,100,885 6.779.479 3,202,189 2,074,391 180.572 
16.226.081 
22,683,551 101.816.546 

16,801,211 16,149,853 15,060,536 242,881,789 52,990,621 2,160,333 3.289.193 
349.333.536 
46,021,562 118.739.276 

124.500.097 164.760.838 
373.368.196 140.726.178 514.094.374 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 381.448.047 

* Audited by other auditors 
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$ 154,27722,22005 535,725,267 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

Operating revenues 
Total operating revenues 

Year Ended December31,1997 

Operating expenses Personnel services Contractual services, supplies, materials and other Depreciation and amortization 
Total operating expenses 
Operating income (loss) Nonoperatieg revenues (expenses) Taxes State revenue sharing Federal grants Interest income Interest expense Construction sewer availability fees Loss on transfer of fixed assets 
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 
CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 

$ 12,554,153 $ 17,952,540 $ 30,506,693 
12,554,153 17,952,540 _ 30,506,693 
6,232,715 12,333,005 8.559.951 5.675,654 12,108,369 9,892,210 4.343.573 22,225,215 12,903,524 
27,125,671 20,11 lj437 47,237,108 
~14j571,518) ,2~97) __ (16~730,415) 4,918,407 312,617 2,312,516 1.544.602 446,450 (1,955) 
9.532.637 ncome (loss) before operating transfers (5,038,881) 

Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Net income (loss) Add 6eprec~at.~on on prope~y, p~an't and equipment acquired by capital contributions that reduces contributed capital Retained earnings Beginning of year, as restated 
End ofyear 
* Audited by other auditors 

6,013,896 674,814 2,092,679 (35,200) 
8.746.189 6.587,292 

0,932,303 987,431 2,312,516 3,637,281 (35,200 446,450 (1,955 
18.278.826 1~548,411 

2,109,426 37,665 2,147,091 (15,500) ~9,265) __ (34,765) (2,944,955) 6,605,692 3,660,737 
8.413.287 782,760 9,196,047 
34.792.409 117.t11.645 151.904.054 
40,260,741 $ 124,500,097 $ 164,760,838 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, 1997 

ncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 TOTAL 
Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) $ (!_4,~518~ $ 2(~158~897~ $ ('[6,7.:30,415) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities Depreciation and amortization Change in current assets - (increase) decrease Receivables Accounts Inventories Prepaid expenses Change in current liabilities - increase (decrease) Accounts payable Other payables and accruals Total adjustments 

8.559.951 4.343.573 12.903.524 
639,747 905,939) 10.000 
560,563 8,936,209 Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flaws from noncapital financing activities Taxes State revenue sharing Federal grants Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities Cash flows from capital and related financing activities Taxes Principal payments - bonds Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment Payments made on construction in progress Construction sewer availability fees Interest payments 

4,878,858 312,617 2,312,516 2,109,426 (15,500) 
9.597.917 
(4,550,876) 446.450 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities __~1~26~ 
Continued 
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(198,691) (566,986) 40.000 
(1,089,669) 242.525 2.779.532 620.635 
706,850 674.814 37,665 (19,265) 
1.400.064 
5,267,741 (880,000) (269,247) (3,951,343) (35,200) 131.951 

441,056 (t,472,925) 50.000 
(520,326) 314.412 11.715.741 
(5,0!4,(~74) 
5,585,708 987,431 2,312,516 2,147,091 (34,765) 
1o,gg7,g81 
5,267,741 (880,000) (4,820,123) (3,951,343) 446,450 (35,200) ~972,475) 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - (CONTINUED) Year Ended December 31, 1997 
CONSOLIDATED SEWERAGE DISTRICT NO. 1 Cash flows from investing activities Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments $ Purchases of investments Interest received 1,544,602 Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

CONSOLIDATED WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 1 . TOTAL 
$ 20,611,484 $ (15,825,296) 2~o~2,Zo~_ 20,611,484 (15,825,296) 3.577.311 1.544.602 6.818.897 8.363.499 

1.402.7~4 6.971.547 10.374.331 
25.407.720 20.955.584 46.363.304 Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ ___ 26~810 5,5004 $ 29~927,131 $=~56,737,635 Reconciliation to Balance Sheet Cash and cash equivalents Share of pooled assets Restricted and designated assets Cash and cash equivalents Share of pooled assets Total per Balance Sheet 
2,687,135 
24,123,36_9 =. $ 2~810504 $= Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities Contributions of capitat $ 6,349,97"~ $ Disposal (acquisitions) of property, plant, and equipment through capital contributions (6,349,971~ 

* Audited by other auditors 

1,434,026 $ 4,782,697 1,434,026 7.469.832 212,191 212,191 23,498,217 __ 47,621,586 29j927,131 $ 56 737 635 
$ 6,349,971 (6,349,971) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 



 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 
Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 

*Audited by other auditors. 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS* SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT YearEnded December31.1997 
OPERATING OPERATING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM IN OUT 

Sewer Capital Program $ 2,109,426 $ Computer Center Internal Service 
East Bank Occupancy Tax Capital Project Federal Aid Urban Capital Project Generar Liability Internal Service 
TOTAL 
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2.109.426 
12,825 $ 24,840 37,665 

15,500 15.500 
19,265 19,265 

$ 2,147,091 $ 34,765 



NTERNALSERVICE Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. Central Gara.qe_ maintains motorized and heavy equipment and provides motor fuels for a departments. Central Tire maintains and stocks tires and provides record keeping regarding tire usage for a parish vehicles. Central Telephone provides all in-house telephone installation, repairs and maintenance Computer Center monitors, administers and maintains the parish's computer system and provides adequate training to departmental personnel for application to computer hardware and software. It also provides encoding for the graphic and non-graphic data necessary to operate the Geographic Information Systems and for training of operations personnel. It also operates and maintains the SCADA system. Parish Photo~lrapher provides photography services for al departments Central Printinq provides printing and copier services for all departments Engineerin~l provides engineering design, construction supervision and project management to the operational departments of Public Works. It also maintains and installs traffic signs, roadway lane stripes and traffic signals on streets of the unincorporated area of the parish and major streets in the municipalities. Environmental and Water Quality monitors and regulates industrial discharges to the sewer system and chemical and bacteriological purity of our drinking water to comply with federal environmental regulations for the benefit of the sewer and water enterprise funds. Safety Division* manages and administers a Parish-wide employee/public safety program, committed to the prevention of injury, illness and property damage throughout Jefferson Parish. Group Health accounts for employee and employer contributions received for payment of hospitalization premiums for health maintenance organization (HMO) and points-of-service (POS) plans. General Liability accounts for premium payments received from Parish funds, districts and/or departments for payment of claims, premiums and administrative costs under the workmen's compensation, automobile, general liability and property damage insurance plans administered by the Parish. Unemployment Compensation accounts for premium payments received from Parish funds, districts and/or departments for payment of unemployment compensation claims. *Created in 1997 
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ASSETS Current Assets Share of pooled assots Accounts receivable Inventories Prepaid exponsos Deposits Total current assets 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
CENTRAL GARAGE 
December31.1997 CENTRAL CENTRAL COMPUTER PARCH TIRE TELEPHONE CENTER PHOTOGRAPHER 

$ 354,812 $ 10,091 $ 6,997 
361,809 Property, plant, and equipment - at cost. less accurnulatod depreciation 367.507 , 10,008 

704 $ 285,592 $ 1.204 2,593 
285,592 
__~1,4~9~7~8 TOTAL ~SETS $ _ 729~316 $ ~20jQg~ 9= $ ~4.501- $ _..J .725.390= $ __. 268 LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY Liabilities Accounts payable Claims and Judgments payable Total liabilities Fund equity Contributed capital Federal government Parish Total contributed c~pitat Rob[ned earnings Reserved for self-insurance Total rotalned earnings Total fund equity 

$ 220,669 $ 
___ 14,534 __ 14~534 

820 
0 

1,978 $ 111,843 $ 1,202 1,978 11~843 __ 1~202 
102,950 lj217 _ 329.854 1,217 432~804 

494,113 19,279 1,306 1,18~3 4941,1113 19,279 1,306 
0 

508~647 __ 19.279- ;t,573 1 61,~3 547 TOTAL Lt.M31LITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 729.316 $ 20~097=$ 4.50~i $ _.= !,725.390 $ 
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ENVIRONMENTAL CENTRAL AND SAFETY GROUP GENERAL PRINTING ENGINEERING WATER QUALITY DIVISION HEALTH LIABILITY 
$ 2,856 $ 180,331 $ 50.697 $ 2,988 $ 4,679.334 $ 26,116,607 $ 10,694 3.751 _ 1,~90,032 

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION TOTAL 
2,390,942 $ 34.075,222 1,204 20,284 3,751 1,090,032 13,550 180,331 50,697 2,986 4,679,334 27,210,390 2,390,942 35,190,493 

2,070- __ ~,905 139L016- _ 131~15050 2~336~454 $15,6205 545,236 $ 189,713 $ 2,988 $ ~67~334 S 27,223,540 $ ..2p390,942 $- 37~526,64~ 
$ 2,856 $ 81,288 $ 53,203 $ $ $ 32,139 $ 

0 ___ 9,970 ~,_gZ0 _ 
5~2p~ o o 20~447~647 20~5p4~786_ 
0 0 0 0 

12,764 __ 45~978 !36,510 _ 2,988 4,679,334 6,7~i.8,754 

3,000 $ 508,998 57~7 293 21,049~940 580,293 _ 21,558,938 
102,950 355,575 O _ 458~525 

1,810,649 6,489,983 9,019~501 ~~ 12,764 453.978 138,510 __ 2,9~ 4,679,334 _ 6,J18,754 1.8~I.0_649 15,509,48~l _+ 12~764 __ 463~94948 __ + ]36,5~i0 _ 2~958 4,679,334 _ 6~718,754 ~ ~810~649 _ 15,968~009 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS Year Ended December 31,1997 
CENTRAL CENTRAL CENTRAL COMPUTER pARISH GARAGE TIRE TELEPHONE CENTER PHOTOGRAPHER Operating revenues Chargos for sales and services $ 4,713,627 $ 264,390 $ 1,993,145 $ 3,159,321 $ 80,543 Premiums Total operating revenues Operating expenses Personnel sewices Contrectual services, supplies, materials, and other Depreciation and amortization Claims Total operating expenses Operating incorno (loss) Nonoperating revenues (expenses) Interest incerne Other Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) Incorre (loss) before operating transfers Oporatlng transfers in Operating transfers out Not income (loss) Add depreciation on property, plant, and equipment acquired by capital contributi,~ns that reduces contributed capital Retained earnings, beginning of year, as restated Retained earnings, end of yea 

~44 713 6,6~27 _ 264,390 ~93 1~145 3,159+32! 80,543 
1,685.611 187,126 2,366,478 52,211 47.367 1,385 96,104 1,895,229 1,070,805 1,831,397 214.379 4.414.300 235,878 _ + 1,693,333 _ 3~11_6.581 

58,603 22,810 
81.413 299,327 _ 28~512 __ ~ + (188) _ . _ 42~740 _ (870) 

1 o 2~7_47 309 __ fo 2~24747 3o9 309,574 28,821 __(80~1=00) __._(~000) 229,474 4,821 
15,801 24~83~ __ 144,4558 

175 
6.161 8.161 50,901 15,500 175 66,401 
135.296 

0 (870) 

(339) 979,046 (64) 
$ =_+-.49-4.!-13- $ __ 19.279 $ 1.306 $ 1.180~743 $ 
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CENTRAL PRINTING ENGINEERING ENVIRONMENTAL AND WA_TE R QUALITY SAFETY DIVISION GROUP HEALTH GENERAL LIABILITY .. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION $ 127,329 $ 5,950,442 $ 1,820,340 $ 24,627 $ $ 175,050 $ $ 18,308,814 11,900,376 __. 7j~427 184,~22 803 127,329 59,950,~L42 ___!,620,340 24~627 ~00,37.6 _ 7,69~77 0 37,7731,617 
86,269 46,522 5O5 4,202,799 1.485.166 97,385 1,384,365 395,349 41.741 20,785 854 11,657,733 2,879,277 1,092 2.172,567 535.787 

9,217,035 22,670,181 408,698 2,708,354 133,296 5,785,350 14821,454 21,639 11,657J_:33 ___~195,504 547.1787- __ 35~0041268 
2,060 __ 17,8j7 __ 2,0Z~o _ ~9,81.7 184,909 (59~7853 

7.742 
_ 2.968 247,6,~3 __ 2j501,973 (547,'/.87) _ _ 2,727~349 
0 249,776 1,388,038 _ 10,500 1,785,372 62,698 253,275 1,398,539 127,558 1,828,070 6,628 2,988 495,918 3,900,511 (420,229) 4,555,419 15,500 ~(244,843) 125,124 6,628 2,988 495,918 3,619,553 (426,229) 4,326,076 

19,~7j_ _ 327,847 3 129,879 153,577 4,183,416 2,899,201 2,230,678 11,029,831 $ 12~7~$ 453~978 $ 136,5105 2,988,$ 4,6793,3345 6~7'i8,'(54_$ ~L6!0,649_$~,509,484 
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Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 3"l, 1997 CENTRAL CENTRAL CENTRAL COMPUTER PARISH GARAGE TIRE TELEPHONE CENTER PHOTOGRAPHER 
Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) $ 299,327 $ 28,512 $ ~ (158) $ 42,740 $ (870) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by ('used for) operating aclivities Depreciation Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue Changes in assets and liabilities: (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (Increase) decrease in prepaid e~penses (Increase) decrease in inventories Increase (decrease) in accounts Payable Increase (decrease) in claims payable Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities Cash flows from noncapital financing activities Operating transfers in/(out) Net cash provided by (used for) noncapitat financing aclivlties Cash flows from capilal and related 6naneing activities Acquisition of propedy, plant, and equipment Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities Cash flows from investing activities Interest received 

52,211 10.247 1.385 309 
15,580 177,777) 449 (99.739) 2,143 199,585 30,655 
(80,109) (24.000) (80,100) (24,000) 
(29,137) 

Net cash provided by (used for) inves{ing aelivifies O ncrease (decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 90.35 

(2,335) (2,305) 
0 4.320 Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 264~461 5,77 

0 

214,379 8,161 

(201,607) 0 (201.607 
0 494 210 
0 (156,705 

Cash and cash equivalents, endofyear $ 354,8"i2 $ ~'1009! $ 704 $ 285592 $ NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES Conlrtbufl'ons of capgaf $ $ $ $ $ Disposal (acquisitions) of property, plant, and equipment through capital contribufions 

228 228 (642) 

0 
0 (642) 916 268 

$ o$ o$ , = o$ o$ o 
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ENVIRONMENTAL CENTRAL AND SAFETY GROUP GENERAL UNEMPLOYMENT PRINTING ENGINEERING WATER QUALITY DIVISION HEALTH LIABILITY COMPENSATION TOTAL 
$ (5,987)$ 165,092 $ (1.114)$ 2~989 $ 242,643 $ 2,501j973 $ 
505 2.060 
2,536 5,101 (866 

0 
(868) 3,722 2,856 $ 

97,385 19.817 
5,630 122,832 287,924 (59,785) (59~785) 
137,844 
O 90.295 90,038 180,33! $ 

41,741 7.742 
29,751 79,234 78,120 8 2,989 

1,092 3,499 10,500 (100,000) 123,165 (133.112) (1,935,74!) 3,499 (~034,096~ 246,142 
0 0 0 
(74,t90) (74,190) 0 
0 
3,930 46,767 50,697 $ 

0 2,988 
0 249,776 249,776 495,918 

467,877 (80,958) (80,056) 
(!0.068) 0o,068) 1,388,038 
1,388,038 1.764.889 0 4,183,416 24,351,718 

383,316 164,471 
0 

408.698 62698 

,177,211 (229,343 (229,343 
455,181 765,372 

(36,913 2,427,855 2 988 $ 4,679,334 $ 26 116 607 $ 2,390,942 $ 34,075,222 
$ 10,976 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
o$ (10,976) O $ 0 $ 05 = 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS IN & OUT Year Ended December 31, 1997 
NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS FUND TRANSFERRED TO OR FROM Central Garage Central Tire Computer Center 
Engineering 
General Liability 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN Central Garage Capital Improvements $ $ Central Garage Capital Improvements Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 Enterprise , Public Works Capital Program Federal Aid Urban Capital Project 
Library Special Revenue Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Enterprise 
TOTAL 
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15,500 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 80,100 24.000 
29,850 29,935 59,785 56,118 24,840 80.958 

$. !5,500 $ 244 843 



TRUST and AGENCY FUNDS 
Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. 
The Emolovees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish Pension Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuities and death and disability benefits to employees. Resources are contributed by employees and the Parish at amounts determined by actuarial study. 
Deferred Comoensation Aaencv Fund accounts for the e consisting of optional investment funds 
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mployee's tax deferred compensation plan 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables Interest Contributions Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation Other assets TOTALASSETS 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

Liabilities Accounts Payable Unclaimed employee contribution refunds Accrued annual and sick leave Deferred compensation benefits payable Retiree premiums collected in advance Total liabilities 

December 31. 1997 
PENSION TRUST FUND* AGENCY FUND THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT DEFERRED SYSTEM COMPENSATION TOTAL 
42,239 $ 21.316,874 15,703,475 188,090 46,852 3,960 3.722 2_1~6Q1,737 $ 
10,477 $ 12,896 48.065 20.771 92 209 

Fund batance Rese~edforemployees'retirementsystem 21,509,528 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 21,601,737 
*Audited by other auditors. 
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42,239 37.020.349 188,090 46.852 3,960 3.722 $ 37,305,212 
$ 10,477 12,896 48,065 15,703,475 15,703,475 20.771 15,703,475 15,795,684 

$ 15,703,475 $ 
21.509.528 
374305,212 



JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA PENSION TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE Year Ended December 31, 1997 

Operating revenues Member contributions Employer contributions Investment income Gain (loss) on disposition of investments TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 
Operating expenses Administrative Retirement benefits Refunds to terminated employees TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
NET OPERATINGINCOME 
Fund balances Beginning of year, as previously reported Restatement Beginning of year, as restated END OF YEAR 

*Audited by other auditors 
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PENSION TRUST FUND* THE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
155,812 1,082,203 3,769,648 (60,669) 4.946.994 
146,178 1,841,087 94.426 2.081.691 
2,865,303 
18.004,054 640,171 18.644,225 $ 21,509,528 
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GENERALFIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 
This account group is used to account for fixed assets which are not used in Proprietary Fund operations or accounted for in Trust Funds 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCES DECEMBER 31, 1997 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS Land Building Improvements other than buildings Vehicles Machinery and equipment Construction in progress TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
NVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE Federal grants State grants Tax bonds Revenue bonds Parish revenues TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
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$ 39,122,885 83,110,359 17,649,420 28,748,025 75,254,400 84.908.922 $ 528j792,011 
$ 44,650,557 36,159,501 247,849,675 10,238,973 189.893.305 $ 528,792,011 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP 
The General Long-Term Debt Account Group records the general obligation bonds and other forms of long-term debt supported by general revenues that are obligations of a governmental unit as a whole and not its individual constituent funds 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT December 31, 1997 
Amount Available and to be Provided for the Payment of Long-Term Debt SERIAL BONDS Amount available in Debt Service Funds Amount to be provided for retirement of general obligation, special tax funds, special assessment debt with governmenta commitment, and notes payable Total available and to be provided for serial bond retirement COMPENSATED ABSENCES Amount to be provided from governmental funds PENSION - JUDGES ANNUITIES Amount to be provided from certain governmental funds CAPITAL LEASES Amount to be provided from certain governmental funds LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS PAYABLE Amount to be provided from certain governmental funds Total available and to be provided 
General Long-Term Debt Payable SERIAL BONDS PAYABLE General Obligation and Special tax bonds Special Assessment Debt with governmental commitment Total serial bonds payable COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE PENSION PAYABLE - JUDGES ANNUITIES CAPITAL LEASES LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS PAYABLE 

Total general long-term debt payable 
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52.042.660 
284.366.128 
336.408.788 
15.376,611 
1.050.617 
162.625 
7,645,385 $ 360,644,026 

$ 336,076.000 
332,788 336,408,788 15,376,611 1,050,617 162,625 7,645,385 $ 360,644.026 



COMPONENT UNITS 
Component units are legally separate entities in which the Parish appoints a voting majority of the board and the Parish is able to impose its will and/or there is a financial benefit or burden. Jefferson Parish Economic Development and Port District accounts for the dedicated revenues to be used for the promotion of economic development within the parish which include such projects as Business Incubation, International Development, Community Planning and Financing the Future. Home Mort.qa~e Authority undertakes various programs to assist in the financing and development of home ownership in the public interest within the boundaries of the Parish. _Hospital Districts accounts for the provision of health and well care services to the residents of the parish. All activities necessary to provide such services, including but not limited to administration, operations, maintenance and billing and collections of patient service revenues are accounted for in the following funds: Hospital District No. 1 (West Jefferson Medical Center) Hospital District No. 2 (East Jefferson General Hospital) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES COMPONENT UNITS - GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Revenues Charges for services Interest income Miscellaneous TOTAL REVENUES Other financing sources Operating transfers in Transfers from primary government Capitalized lease Bond proceeds TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Expenditures Current Administrative Economic development Debt service Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges TOTAL EXPENDITURES Other financing uses Operating transfers out TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES Excess [deficiency] of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses Fund balance Beginning of year END OF YEAR 
* Audited by other auditors 

Year Ended December 31, 1997 

196 

JEFFERSON PARISH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTAND PORT DISTRICT* 
95,935 55,824 168,160 319.91g 
40,333 1,118,943 37,958 152.827 
1.669.980 
360,212 949,618 222,906 6,054 1.538.790 
40.333 
1.579.123 
90.857 
784,091 874.948 



 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES COMPONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Year Ended December 31, t997 

Operating revenues Charges for sales and services $ Member contributions Employer contributions Interest income Commitment fees Other 

HOME MORTGAGE AUTHORITY" 
15,264,000 6,000 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO.I " $ 133,542,5545 911,398 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 * TOTAL 210,683,390 $ 2,403.762 3.016.092 8,t08,296 10,902~=67_ __ 2,366,228 

344,225,944 2.403.762 3,927.490 23,372,296 6.000 13.268.995 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ----- 15,270j~ 145,356,719 -- 226,577,768 __ 387,204,487 Operating expenses Personnel services Cor',tractuat sorvtees, supplies, materials, and other Bad debt expense Depreclat~ and amert~ation Interest on bonds Trustee fees Servicing fees insurance Benefit payments TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) Non-operating revenues (expenses) Interest income Rental income from leases Other TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) NCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS Transfers to primary government NET INCOME (LOSS) 
END OF YEAR * Audited by other auditors 

487,000 671,000 13.311,000 115,000 764,000 71,000 
__~49,q0o) 

60,054,546 56,002,746 9,589,657 9.157.068 
104.183,094 164,237,640 77,121,017 14,707,391 16,084,273 56,940 _ 642,992 2~!6,~78 _- 135 ~4fJT~qq9 214.768.793 

133,610,763 24,297,048 25,912,34~ 13.311.000 115,000 920~40 71,000 ~159~070 __ 365~634,802 9,909,710 11,808,975 _ 21,569,685 10,736.176 11,368.517 1,385,355 1(~140,663) 22,104,693 1,385,355 0 10,736,176 -- 11~613,189 22,349~365 
(t4g,O00) 
(149,000) 

20,645,886 ~636,518~ 20,009,368 
13,579,000 196,642.215 1.765.000 

23,422,164 43,919,050 _J6~644) __~1 ~314~t62) 22,744,520 42,604,888 305,674,151 515,895,366 1,765.@ $ ! 3.430.~ $ 2!8,4t6.583 $ 326.z118,671 $ 560,265.254 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS COMPONENT UNIT PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Year Ended December 31,1997 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash fiov, s from oporafing activities Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating Income (toss) to not c~sh provided by (used for) oporafing actlvitios Not incon~ from pension trust operations Depreciation and amortization interest payments interest received Loss on sate of assets Change in curlenl assets - (increase) decrease Receivabtss Accounts Other interest - real estate owned Inventories and prepaid items Other assets Changaincurrontliabllities-increase (decrease) Accounts payable Doferred cotnt~tmontfeos Accrued interest payable Other payables and accruats Total adjustments Not cash provided by (used for) operating activities Cash flows from nonca pital financing activities Bonds redeemed Bonds issued Bond Issuance costs Unrestricted contributions Transfers to primary government Community benefit services Proceeds from line of credit Net cash provided by (used for) noncapitsl financing activities Cash flows from capital and related financing activifios Principal payments - bends Principal payments - capital leases Proceeds from disposal of property, ptsnt. and equipment Interest payments Taxes for debt service on bends Acquisitions of Capitsl assets Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities [Continued] 

HOME HOSPITAL MORTGAGE DISTRICT AUTHOR~Y* NO.l" HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 ~ TOTAL 
$ (149,000) $ %90%T~I0- $ 1~8~5 $ 21,5691685 
665,000 

(8.000) 5,000 10.000 

(5,253.586) 9,167.068 4,719,920 136,479 
(5,283,335) 94,158 889,635 (109,864) 

(10.855,132) 16.084,273 5,110.643 (2,O13,097) 
(6.024,566) 10,611,881 

(6,000) (233,000) 13,000 -__ 1,917,278 257~743 

(16,108,718) 25,906,341 9,830,563 (2,013,097) 136,479 
(11,307,901 ) 10,611,881 (6,ooo) 99.158 899.635 1,611,702 (6,000) (233,000) 2,!88,021 __. 44~0 6,267,753 _ 14~893,311 __ 21j609,064 

(21,450,000) 20,100.000 (413,0oo) 
3,559,000 1,796~000 

j 6,177,463 26,7Q2,286 43,176.749 
(636.518) 151,159 (677,644) (f.14o,s~) 

(21,450,000) 20,100,000 (413,000) 151,159 (1,314.162) (1.140,683) 3.559,000 
(3,310,0CO) (2,461.353) 20,708 (9,268.720) (5.169,885) 686 

(3.310,000) (2.461,353) 20,708 (14,438,605) 686 (7,000) __ (10,849,213) (34,170~,~5) __(45j026,858) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS COMPONENT UNIT PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES - [CONTINUED] 

Cash flows from investing activities Proceeds from sale and maturities of investn~ents Purchases of investments Purchase of other assets Payments received on direct financing lease Lease rentats Gain (loss) on sale of investments Invostrnont income and other Acquisition of mortgage loan I~lncipal receipts from modgage loans Proceeds from real estate ov~od Net c~sh provided by (used for) investing activ}ties Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equlvatonts Cash 8nd cash equivalents, beginning of yea Cash and cash equivalents, end of yea 

Year Ended December31.1997 

RECONCILtATION TO COMBINED BALANCE SHEET Cash and cash equivalents Restricted and designated assets Cash and cash equlvatants Total per Combined Balance Sheet Less cash and cash equivalents of Pension Trust Funds Total per above * Audited by other auditors 

HOME HOSPITAL MORTGAGE OISTRK3T AUTHORITY" NO. I " $ 20,384,0OO (19.556,000) 
(18.014.000) 18.263,000 45,0CQ_ 

$ 1,111A46,927 (1,113,095,995) 
8.642,332 

1L1_72~ 6.9~264 3,210,000 

HOSPITAL DtSTRK3T _ _ NO. 2:_ $ 622,760,434 (612,323,523) (1,068,990) 272.705 897.251 505,455 10.347,025 
TOTAL $ 1,754,Stf,36f (1,744,975,518) (1,068,990) 272~05 897,251 505,455 18,989,357 (18,014,000) 18,263,000 _ . . 45,000 21j410,357 _ 2~52~621 4,664,986 6,981,262 __._1.761~000 8,830 9~67 7j456~972 _ 18.~39 $= 4.L97LO00 $ 7,937,243 $=~=17~121,9~. $ 25,030,2()! 

$ 4,971,000 $ 7,937,243 $ 8,874,650 $ 21,783,099 
4,971.000 _ _ 4~496,238 _ 4,496~238 13,371,094 26,279.337 (I ,249~136) __(1~249,136) $ 4.,971j000 $ . 7,9~243 $ 12321,958 $__ 25,030,201 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENSES BY TYPE 
THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF JEFFERSON PARISH * December 3t, 1997 

REVENUES BYSOURCE 

YEAR 1988 $ 1989 1990 t991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 179,089 146,026 169,767 156,248 156,456 168,684 160,776 161,927 168,067 155,612 

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
DOLLAR AMOUNT 554,636 582,789 683,632 722,781 772,974 797,990 812,801 879,706 1,013,555 1.082.203 

% OF ANNUAL COVERED PAYROLL 2.4 2.6 3.1 3.2 3.5 3.4 3.6 3.9 4.7 5.1 

NVESTMENT INCOME 1,279,898 1,316,260 1,346,815 1,368,877 1,450,998 1,327,206 1,002,069 1,420,690 1,569,766 3,708,979 
EXPENSES BY TY 

YEAR BENEFITS REFUNDS ADMINISTRATIVE TOTAL 
1988 $ 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

1,282,947 1,323,855 1,363,707 1,404,095 1,453,476 1,525,645 1,620,378 1,726,952 1,756,271 1.841,087 
* Audited by other auditors 

62,811 100,795 70,171 61,086 71,802 54,434 108,664 107,509 73,697 94.426 

203 

147,816 $ 136,750 140,617 150,547 162,204 175,299 179,818 194,666 134,160 146.178 

1,493,574 1,561,400 1,574,495 1,615,728 1,687,482 1,755,378 1,906,860 2,029,127 1,964,128 2.081,691 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3'~. 1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF ACTION Passed through State Once of Elderly Affags: Retired Senior Volunteer Project Retired Senior Voluhteer Project Retired Senior Votunteer Projec~ TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ACTION DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Passed through State Department of Culture, Recreation, and Tourism Technology Enhancement Project Technotogy Enhancement Project TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Passed through State Department o1 SOD. Services, Office of Comm. Services: Weathedzation AssisbLow Income Persons Weatherization Assist-Low Income Persons Weatherization Assist-Low Income Persons 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Direct Programs: Head Start Head Start Head Start Handicapped Head Start Handicapped Head Start Parent Child Center Head Start Parent Child Center Head Start Training and Technical Assistance Head S1art Training arid Technical Assistance Passed through State Oepadment of Soc, Services, Office Of Comm. Services Child Support Enforcement Services Child Support Enforcement Services Low+Income Home Energy Assistance-Utilities Low-Income Home Energy Assistance-Utilities Chitd Care and Development Block Grant Passed through State Department of Labor Community Services Block Grant Community Services Block G~artt Community Services Stock Grant Comrnun)ty Services B)ock Gra~t TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES [Continued] 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER 
94.002 440-6582/16 94.002 440-6582117 94.002 440-0592/18 
84.154A 97-22 84.154A 97-22 
81.042 81.042 81.042 
(2) 93.609 (2) 93.600 (2) 93.600 (2) 93,600 (2) 93.600 (2) 93.600 94.009 94.009 

515937 515937 515937 
06CH5098/31 060H5098/32 06CH5098/31 060H5098/32 06CH5098/31 96CH5098132 06CH5098/31 06CH5698/32 

GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT 
09139195 09130196 09130197 09129196 0912919? 09129198 
01/01/94 12131194 01101197 05131198 
04101195 04101196 04101197 
06101199 06/01197 06101196 06/01/97 06101198 06101197 05101196 06/01197 

03131198 03131197 03131198 
05131197 05131193 05/31/97 05131198 05131197 05131198 05131197 05131196 

(2) 93.563 07101196 06139197 (2) 93.593 07101197 06f30198 (2) 93.568 DSS05922 01101195 12131196 (2) 93.568 DSS05922 01101197 12131197 93.575 06CH5098/32 06/01197 05/31/98 
93.569 93.569 93.569 93.569 10101194 01101196 01101197 01101198 12131195 12131190 12131197 12131199 

61,137 59,609 61.137 
30,009 35,223 
148,390 221,672 252,669 
4,491,475 4,888,100 288,500 221,597 231,500 211,739 20,500 54,690 
1.018.281 1.346.237 438,377 402,145 259.000 
891,129 721+544 906+965 936,320 



 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER3 . 1996 
0 (9,509) 0 = = 49,69_9) 
11.297 _ 0 1~ 297 

CASH RECEIVED . DURING YEAR.. GRANT OTHER 

11,297 35,223 
(247) 32,164 . . 0 == 31,917 

286.787 0 242,676 0 0 

(7,293) 14,383 835 

0 91,672 . 0 . 
2,189,475 2,206,103 211,000 121,000 92,500 66,600 10,000 6,800 4~903,476 806,304 214,169 270,881 391,085 100.000 529,463 1,782,439 0 50,962 10.362 O 61.344 
0 60,642 618,421 0 

0 5,000 %oo% 

997,918 230,412 O 0 21,751 0 6 0 . 1.,?~o.o6 216.792 244,770 O 0 0 _ 461,562 145 3,280 150,200 0 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31 TOTAL REVENUE EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 FEDERAL OTHER 
(7,293) (7,293) 67,596 53,213 8 666 9 506 8,668 
0 5 006 5,oo6 

0 17,930) 0 6,799 0 (2,686) 0 
2,759,916 2,413,562 149,421 127,799 99,125 63,914 6,049 

(06.686) 245.290 0 54.506 . 92.~~~__ 294,017 0 0 268,370 105 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED _ 1997 
0 (7,293) 14,363 67,596 838 9,506 15,221 69,809 

0 0 o 6 0 
247 0 59,721 0 33,197 0 
1,761,998 2,106,170 149,421 127,799 77,374 63,914 8,049 
997,918 230,412 0 O 21,751 0 O 

92go6 192,2o5 
216,792 244,770 O 0 0 2,008,555 1,546,994 461,562 145 12.960 1,026,609 105 0 12,960 876,409 105 145 0 144,040 O 266475 1.039,819 889.474 144.165 : =7 364,977 1,865,268 5~!,~68 = 8~684~573~==6,822..586= =1,855,828 
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6 6 6 

1j033,659 =8.6~8.414 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDER-~,L AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3t. t 997 
FEDEPJ~L GRANTOR~PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT Direct Programs: Community Development 810~k Grant Community Development Block Grant Community Development Block Grant Rental Rehabilitation Program Community Development Block Grant Disaster Relief Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shetter Grant Home Program Home Program Home program Home Program Youthbuild Passed through State Department of Soc. Services, OMce o1 Comm. Services: Emergency Shelter G~-ant Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shetter Grant TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Passed through State Department of Labor: Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Train}ng Partnership Act Job Train;ng Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Parlne;ship Acl Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnersh+p Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Traintng Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act JobNet Passed through State Department of Education Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF LABOR [Continued] 

(2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 
C2) (2) (2) 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER 
B95-UC-22+0001 B96-UC-22+0001 B97-UC-22-O001 R91 -UC-22-0201 B83-UJ-22,0001 B93-UH-22-0001 $94-UC-92-5001 $95-UD-22-5001 $99*UC-22-5001 M92-UC.22-0203 M93-DC-22-0207 M04.DC-2~-0207 M95-DC-22-0207 Y-95-1M-LA-0661 

14.231 370-2033 14.231 370-2033 14.231 370+2033 

GRANT PERIOD FROM THROUGH 
061O1195 06101196 06101197 01101191 06/01183 08124193 01101194 06/01/95 06101196 01101192 01101193 01101/94 01101195 07127195 12131197 
01/01194 01/01/95 07101196 12/31194 12/31195 06130198 

LC84-11-11A 071O1195 06130195 LC84-11-1tA 07/01/96 06130197 LC84-11-11A 07/01/97 06130198 LC84-11-9C 07101194 06/30/95 LD04-11-9C 07101195 06130106 LC94-11-11C 07/01196 06130197 LC94-11-11C 07/01/96 06130197 LC84-t1JIC 07101197 06130198 LC94-11-11C 07/01197 06130198 LC84-11-118 10101194 09/30/95 LC84o11-98 10101196 09130197 LC84-11-~1S 10101/90 09/30/97 LC84-11-111F 07101194 0613O195 LC94-11-111F 071O1195 06130196 LC84-11-1gF 07101196 06130197 LC94-11-JtJF 07101/97 06130196 5% Incentive 07/01/95 06130196 5% Incentive 07/01/96 06130/97 JOBNET 
17.246 LC84-11o11A 17.246 LC94-11-11A 17.246 LC84-11-11A 
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10101195 10101196 10101197 09130196 09130107 09130198 

GRANT AMOUNT 

83,000 90.840 79.600 

106,587 109,410 97.059 



 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31 1996 CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT OTHER 

479,094 0 O 93,243 90,840 0 O. 93,243 ~ 90 840 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED 1997 1997 

1.73,386 .89,_209 

EXPENDITURES FEDERAL OTHER 

O 6,940,035 O 41,692 15,049 O 50,852 15,049 65.901 1 728,168 5,991,12/= : 589,93~ 2.263,889=~ 7,096j776= = 5,823743 
3 

3.000 10,571 87,238 O 97,809 

3,403 0 308,747 O 0 

2,157 764,544 699,591 O 50,176 121,515 245,835 93,297 180,508 375 27,945 886.224 65 
81q,752 4,189.635 O 8,935 37.512 9,428 64,297 37.512 9,428 64,297 37,512 

574 O 90,840 O .90,840 6~,4~4 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 

5.440 0 O 0 
734,62~: :=4,j75,. 29~ 3.ooo B 
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O 141,692 15,049 155,741 6,370,157 

4~2 5,440 4,300,872 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3t. t 997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGF{AM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Direct Programs: Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federat Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capitat Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Technic.at Studies Grants Federal Transit Technlcat Studies Grants Federal Transit Capital & Operating Asst Formula Grants Passed through State Department o1 Highways Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase It Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Uzban Study Phase II TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY Direct Programs: Construction Grants for Wastewater Treatment Works Eastbank end Westbank Step 3 Eastbank and Westbank Step 3 Eastbank and Westbank Step 3 National Estuary Program 

(2),(4) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 

FEDERAL CFDA NUMBER 
20.500 20.500 20,500 20.500 20.500 20.5O0 20.500 20,500 20.500 20~00 20.500 20.505 20.505 20.507 20205 20.205 20.2O5 20205 20.205 20.205 20.205 20.205 20.205 
66.418 66.415 66.418 65.456 

GRANT 
LA-90-X04O LA-90-X111 LA-05-OO25 LA-90-XO38 LA-9O-X026 LA-90-X125 LA*90-X138 LA-90-X152 LA-90-X163 LA-90-X175 LA-9O-X187 LA-00-X175 LA*90-X187 LA-90-X187 
M-6673(008) M-8622(001) M-8522(005) ENH-MISC(076) STP-4045-(009) 742-05-0018 STP-9471-(002) STP-4045-(009) 742-07-0018 
C-220377-13 C-220377-15 C-220377-17 CE-006685-01-0 

GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT 
Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Comptetion Project Completion Project Comptetion Project Completion Project Completion 01/01196 12131196 01/01/97 12131107 01101197 12131197 
Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Project Comptetion Project Completion Project Completion 
09/10185 09/25/87 09/01/90 10/01/91 08/31189 05/31190 12/31/92 09130194 

1,037,048 760,000 1,376,400 1,057,360 363,360 1,336,000 620,000 4,040,500 1,269,000 2,900,200 2,900,200 2OO,OOO 2O0,O00 718,000 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY NATIONAL OCEANIC ATMOSPHERIC ASSOCIATION Direct Programs: Multi-Purpose Cadastre Project - Phase VII (2) 11.490 NA47OG0140 04/01/94 12131197 1,500,000 Passed through State Department ol Natural Resources: Coastal Zone Management Coastal Zone Management Coastal Zone Management TOTAL NATIONAL OCEANIC ATMOSPHERIC ASSOCIATION [ContinuedJ 
11.419 25102-93+03 07/01/94 06/30/95 11.419 435CMo97-08 07101/96 06/30/97 11.419 07101/97 06/30/98 
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40.000 55.000 55.000 



 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31, .1698 

621.739 

_ 7,898 _ 7,898 

CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT OTHER 
90,664 404 27.168 44 16.586 11,231 547.645 8,292 0 0 30.738 299 81.742 424 746.546 253,979 383,551 6,697 216,308 315,185 97,466 684,632 172,095 17.163 90.303 34.542 718,000 2,572~483 3,220.812 L. ,3,85~375 145.214 48,411 98.671 28,669 692,120 161,779 501,252 140,574 1.779,546 613,378 6,596 6 0 0 63,877 0 2,1o8 _ o 3,289.284 1~013~11 ~ ~,81009~ 4,69~,38~ 
0 0 229,777 Q _ = 228 777 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31 1997._ O 5,328 O 111,929 O 76,275 0 2,419,046 97.731 917,404 45,799 (3) 0 47,866 (3) 0 _. ~721,378 

TOTAL REVENUE RECOGNIZED 1997 

1,414.438 807.897 110.361 172.711 3,29o~83 0,205,928 

EXPENDITURES FEDERAL OTHER TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 
63,471 15,868 32.497 8.124 14.274 520.771 667.574 166,894 0 O 104,028 26,007 (16.664) (4,216) 2,968.699 905.311 305.620 156.255 2,096.355 892.725 143,266 35.661 68,684 17.163 (3) 138,169 34,542 718,000 2,572,483 {3~ 7.303,143 5.347,598 0 164,175 145,234 48,411 193.645 0 (8,O94) 86,607 28,869 115.476 133.610 1,O07,50O 727.118 181,779 908.897 94.861 736,687 562.295 140,574 702.869 950.149 3,334.460 2,453.511 613,378 3.066.889 0 6.596 26.735 0 26.735 129.246 129,246 129.246 O 129.246 12,904 76.481 76.482 0 76,482 O O 2.108 O 0 1.320,770 5.449L168 4,207,2;~8 1.013.011 5,220,239 =: 5~04~214~ 15.654.99~=11~510,371== =6,360~599 17.870,970 

0 0 
0 48.915 0 0 69.160 O 48,8!L _ 89,180 4pL4~%: 1~11j,~7_0 

(214.018) 0 228,777 166 0 O 
O 1 453,396 407,67.6 890 282 0 (10,992) (408) 25.195 __ 13,7o8 13,708 
~~453,388 407,676 890,282 0 14.769 25.195 0 45.669 25.165 0 69,160 6 .139.954 1.503.350 70.804 69.160 

0 O 0 9 9. 
1,297,958 1,297~958 0 114.769 25.195 139.964 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3t, 1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Direct Programs: Correctional Options Planning Serious. Viotent and Chronic Juvenile Offender Treatment Correctional Options Orog Court Planning ADA Teehnic~1 Assistance Title Ig Drug Courl Implementation Initiative 1906 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 1997 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Passed through State Commission on Law Enforcement: Mentodng Menlodng In Service Training Child Advocacy Program ChTId Advocacy Program Child Advocacy Program Child Advocacy Program Crime Victim Assistance Program Crime Victim Assistance Program Crime Victim Assistance Program Crime Victim Assistance Program Intensive Detention Program Grant Support Personnet o Phase VII Grant Support Personnel - Phase VII V~oten( Offender tntensive Prosecution Violent Offender Intensive Prosecution Drug Coud Clinic Drug Court Clinic Treatment of Juvenile Offenders Treatment o1 Juvenile Offenders Deten9on Reimbursement Intensive Supervision Pre-Tfial Intervention Prosecution Training 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER 

16,640 16.540 16,575 16.575 16,575 16.579 16.575 16.575 16.576 16.575 16575 16.579 16.579 16.579 16.679 16.579 16.679 16.579 16579 16.579 16.579 16.579 16.579 15,579 Department of Public Safety and Corrections: Violent Offender Incarceration & Truth-in-Sentencing Incen. 16.586 
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Direct Programs Watershed Proteclion and Flood Prevention Passe6 thsoogh Slale Department of Education: Child Care Feeding Program Chitd Care Feeding Program Child Care Feeding Program Head Start Food Service Head Start Food Service Head Start Food Service [Continued) 

94-DD-CX-0149 95-JD-FX-K005 95-DD-BXo0139 95-DC~MX-0066 95-CR-CX-0001 97-DC-VX-0948 96-LB-VX-3868 97-LB-VX-4201 
95-J7-J.3-0251 96-J7-J.3*0246 92-J7-J.2-0036 93-C7-V.3-0346 95-C7-V.1-0302 96-C7-V.1-0355 97-C7-V.1o0325 94-C7-V.3-0330 95-C7-V.3-0340 96-C7-V.3-0358 97-C7-V.3-0351 94-B7-D.11-0055 95-B7-B.06-OO63 95-B7-B.13-0042 96-B7-B.13-0079 95-B7-B.13-O072 96-B7-B,13*0060 93-J7-J.3*0248 97-B7-B.11-O009 95-M7-M.01-0445 97-B7-B20-0330 

GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT 
10/01/94 10101195 10/01/95 10~61195 09101195 04101197 10101196 10101197 
08/01/96 08/01197 07/01193 10101193 10/01195 10/01/96 10/01197 10/01194 10/01195 10/01196 10/01/97 10/01/94 11116195 11115196 10/06/95 05130196 04191195 04101196 09101196 09101197 16/01/94 O5101197 10101/96 03101197 

06/30/95 09/30/97 09130197 69130197 08130196 09130/98 09130/98 09/30199 
07/31/97 07131198 09/30193 09/30194 09/30196 09/30197 09130/98 09/30195 09/30196 09130197 09130198 09130/95 11114198 11114/97 05129f96 05/29197 03/31196 03/31/97 08131197 06131196 09/30195 O6130198 09/30197 02128198 Project Completion 20o,ooo 

0.904 68-72.17-6-33 03126196 Completion 1,082,097 
10.558 10.558 10.558 10.558 10.558 10.556 

210 

93-235 93-935 93-235 93-235 93-235 93-235 
10101195 10101/96 10/01/97 10/01/95 10101198 10/01197 
09130/96 09130/97 09130198 09130196 09130197 09/30195 
614,297 624,370 624,370 670,879 934,701 934.701 



 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31 1996. 
45,868 89,618 15,563 15.444 2,463 O O 0 269.156 
11,553 O (457) (3,312) 1.726 805 4,729 

CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT OTHER 

21,917 7,043 0 0 2,054 27,000 0 O 16.500 

178,743 207,687 89,658 0 O 
78,224 78,224 0 56,271 0 0 175,319 O 231.590 

0 13,557 0 13.587 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED 1997 1997 EXPENDITURES FEDERAL OTHER TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 
0 281,525 296,741 0 6,560 208,860 524,223 1,191 325.331 _ 'h314,003 1,074.192 244.908 1,319,100 

13,822 212,840 122,285 122.286 

11,848 11,848 12,143 12,143 457 0 3,312 0 328 328 35,600 24,176 8,221 6,677 O (805) (4,729) (2,429) 26,625 1~,5D0 4,098 3,278 818 0 0 0 14,193 14,193 0 O 10,356 7,582 1.117 0 64.801 45,000 21,712 30.465 5.06O 3,795 5,000 0 47,128 29,276 51,080 28,347 18,554 13,822 331,642 244.096 135,872 122,285 13,587 135,872 122,285 13,587 
6.200 0 6,200 . 0 0 9,025 0 126 163.404 0 

0 0 36.177 0 (25,423 .~j46.702 172 549 _ _ 157,456 

O _. 437,115 0 437,115 
221 681 1.077.215 

211 

24 24 9 O 9 120 163,404 

135,872 135,872 1~782,246 
437,139 437,139 1,889 328,509 98,767 120 426,161 221.681 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3t. 1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE Passed through State Department of Family Support: Food Stamp Food Stamp Food Stamp Passed through State Department of Agriculture: Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Temporary Emergency Food Ass+stance 
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENTAGENCY Passed through State Department o1 Public Safety and Corrections: Emergency Management Assistance Emergency Management Assistance Passed through Local United Way: Emergency Food and Shelter Program 

FEDERAL CFDA NUMBER+ 10.561 10,561 10.561 
10.550 10.550 10.550 

83.503 83.503 
TOTAL FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY TOTAL NONMONETARY ASSISTANCE Food Stamps 10.551 Food Distribution (Commodities) 10+55E TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 

GRANT NUMBER _ G R]kNT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT 
LRO-3 LRO+3 LRO-3 

EMA EMA 

07101195 07/01/96 07101/97 
07/01/93 07101196 07/01/97 
06130196 06130197 06/30198 
06130/94 06130/97 06130199 

10/01196 09/30/96 10/01198 09/30197 
10101196 09130197 

99.708 95,832 95,832 
14,000 17.500 17.500 

75,626 75.626 

(1) These amounts represent the value o1 Food Stamps and Commodities issued to and distributed by the Parish to eligible recipients during 1997. (2) Thisprogramisconsidereda"major"programunderOMBCircularA-133. (3) This amount represents only the porlion of ad valorem taxes needed to meet the matching requirements of the grant, (4) Arnount reported at year-end 1996 was misstated by $109,766+ NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS DECEMBER 31, 1997 1 .) General: The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federat awards programs of Jefferson Parish. The Padsh's reporting entity is defined in note At to the general-purpose financial statements for the year ended December 31.1997, All federal awards received directly from the federal agencies are Included on the schedule as well as federat awards passed through other government agencies. 2) Basis of Accounting: Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Is presented using the modified accrual basis of acceungng, which is described in note A3 to the Parish's general-purpose flnancia[ statements for the year ended December 31,1697. Commodities received, which are non-cash revenue, are valued at prices provided by the U. S. Department of Agriculture. 
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ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 3 1996 O 44,605 0 44,606 (2,640) 7,667 0 5.027 

CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR 
(2,347) 106,262 16~487 122,402 O 11,698 0 
2.347 64,334 38,6o9 ~o5~49o 6 5,293 .. 7,694 12~67 291~026 281.222 1,112.900 

0 25.209 O - 71,235 0 96,444 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE EXPENDITIJ RES DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED 1997 1997 FEDERAL OTHER 
0 0 3978 2,640 9,324 11,672 

0 O 61,658 64,333 45.689 38,809 107,947 103,142 
3 978 23,636~ 

2,640 0 4,031 5,293 3.978 7694 10,649 12 987 1,311,340 1,031,688 279 653 
0 253,143 253.143 
188~636 1=311~340 1 
0 8.~o~ 8.907 25,200 343,.285 368.494 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 0 125,991 84,498 210.489 2,640 9,324 11,672 23.636 1,311,341 ,: 279,6;,7 1,'(48,450 
0 6 0 171.643 __ 171,642 343,285 171,643 ~. 171,642 343.285 O 81 229 . 0 ~ _ 0 -- - 61,229 79,900 O 61,229 0 O 81,226 79,900 $ o ~ . . 7;',6~9 $ ,267j4~$ 18,9o7~ $ 5,409,796 27 504,740 $=~: 9,356~034 $ 9~60~07~$ 23,040,698 (1 163,230 (1 $= =5p 708~858 

=~49~723~ 41.056056 
0 0 
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79,900 79.900 
32 239,290 $ 10=63~9:~6 $ = 42,776,226 23,040,657 (1 . .= 163.230 (1 S. 55,443~107. 



JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF COUNCILPERSON'S COMPENSATION 

COUNCILPERSON Aaron F. Broussard, Chairman Thomas J. Ward Lloyd F. Giardina Donald R. Jones Edmond J. Muniz John T. Laverine, Jr Nicholas P. Giambelluca. St. 

Year Ended December 31, 1997 (UNAUDITED) 
NUMBER OF DAYS SERVED COMPENSATION 365 365 '365 365 366 365 365 
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69,390 46,260 46,260 46,260 46,260 46,260 46.260 

EXPENSE ALLOWANCES 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 3.600 



 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana General Governmental Expenditures By Function (1) Last Ten Years (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

$ 19,921 19,558 23,990 25,240 31,263 26,222 18,791 20,619 22,474 23.725 

Health Public Public And Safety Works Transit Weffara (2) 
$ 27,135 27,185 30,947 32,227 34,835 34,264 34,818 37,989 40,197 44.770 

$ 47,788 $ 49,109 51,413 56,955 51,376 53,843 55,359 61 ,L)O4 59,806 60,340 

Culture Urban And Redevelopment Inter- Recreation & Housing govemmer~l (3) 
$ 14,335 18,866 3,349 18,047 4,530 t8,7~15 6,007 19,742 5,543 18,718 5,880 19,312 6,042 20,945 6,839 22,794 13,962 21,307 

$ 13,327 13,775 15,856 17,812 10,094 19,701 20,855 22,332 21,774 24.036 

$ 824 1,084 4,776 4,669 3,530 1,843 2,134 3,072 2,239 3.937 

$ 
8,142 8,517 8,791 9,320 (1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds (2) Transit was included in Public Works for the years 1987 through 1989. (3) Intergovernmental was included in General Government for the years 1987 through 1993. (4) Includes all Debt Service except Enterpdse Fund Revenue Bonds 

Debt Service Total (4) 
$ 43,198 46,807 47,673 78,586 49,595 49,466 50,706 47,47S 46,764 48.745 

$ 166,528 176,384 196,051 238,734 215,442 209,600 215,997 228,198 231,678 250,142 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana General Governmental Revenues By Source (1) Last Ten Years (Unauditad) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 2 

Licenses Charges Fines And Inter- For And Special Taxes Permits governmental Services Forfeitures Assessments Interest Miscellaneous Total 
1988 $ 117,514 $ 1989 127,300 1990 142,714 1991 141,795 1992 149,405 1993 157,570 1994 162,102 1995 162,710 1996 171,630 1997 175,056 

6,055 $ 22,925 6,252 24,946 6,364 27,072 6,661 27,397 7,031 26,967 7,065 24,847 7,446 24,428 8,016 29,289 8,432 30,927 8,737 36,264 

$ 5,886 6,574 11,562 13,041 13,664 14,121 20,380 21,863 24,966 24.117 

$ 1,986 2,008 2,123 2,108 2,226 2,383 2,396 2,592 2,677 3,278 
(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds 

336 $ 9,092 $ 714 10,576 295 10,965 232 9,123 209 5,409 215 3,639 199 5,580 223 7,909 148 8,620 112 9,141 

7,220 6,473 10,682 12,330 11,257 9,885 9,916 11,841 7,257 11,249 

$ 170,114 184,843 211,797 212,687 216,170 219,945 232,447 244,443 254,657 267,974 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana General Tax Revenues By Source Last Ten Years (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 2A 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

$ 58,855 66,066 76,175 66,260 70,937 74,165 75,083 76,487 80,848 84.048 

$ 57,537 60,085 65,420 74,371 77,406 82,354 85,865 85,084 87,520 87.577 

$ 565 584 574 542 489 485 500 500 502 500 

557 565 545 622 573 566 654 638 2,760 * 2.930 * Cable TV Franchise Tax Reported as Miscellaneous Tax Revenues as of 1/96 

$ 117,514 127,300 142,714 141,795 149,405 157,570 162,102 162,709 171,630 175.055 

)Other Taxes 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Property Tax Levies And Collections Last Ten Years (Unaudlted) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 3 

Percent Current Tax Of Levy Collections Collected 
Percent Of Current Delinquent Total Tax Outstanding Tax Total Tax Collections Delinquent Collections Collections To Tax Levy Taxes 

73,953 80,986 92,980 81,686 84,554 88,578 92,626 93,312 98,860 99,610 

$ 69,541 78,329 89,576 78.843 82,144 86,089 90,357 91 ,,491 97.147 97,955 

94.03% $ 96.72% 96.34% 96.52% 97.15% 97.19% 97.55% 98.05% 98.27% 98.34% 
Source: Jefferson Padsh Sheriff's Office Note: Includes taxes levied for reporting entity only 

3,073 $ 72,614 2,699 81,028 2,386 91,962 2,961 81,804 2,567 84,711 2,145 88,234 1,394 91,751 1,459 92,950 1,385 98,532 1.793 99.748 

98.19% $ 4.412 100.05% 2,657 98.90% 3,404 100.14% 2,843 100.18% 2,410 99.61% 2,489 99.06% 2,269 99.61% 1,821 99.67% 1,713 100.14% 1,655 

5.97% 3.28% 3.66% 3.48% 2.85% 2.81% 2.45% 1.95% 1.73% 1 .~;% 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Assessed Value Of Taxable Property Last Ten Years (Unaudlted) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 4 

1988 1987 $1,428,121 1989 1988 1,468,876 1990 1989 1,478,811 1991 1990 1,410,411 1992 1991 1,388,391 1993 1992 1,414,993 1994 1993 1,402,928 1995 1994 1,421,204 1996 1 g95 1,440,023 1997 1996 1,564,855 

$ 295,995 288,367 296,755 308,356 314,982 322,596 328,634 345,030 387,298 438.154 

$' 136,860 138,782 137,261 144,279 150,234 147,832 150,954 150,022 148,196 154,278 

$1,860,976 1,896,025 1,912,827 1,863,046 1,863,607 1,885,421 1,882,516 1,916,256 1,975,5t7 2,157,287 

$ 630,355 649,067 655,693 634,149 637,170 642,492 648,005 655,93t 653,915 700,028 

$1,230,621 1,246,958 1,257,134 1,228,897 1,226,437 t ,242,929 1,234,511 1,260,326 1,321,602 1,457,259 
Note: Per the constitution, all land and residential Improvements are assessed at 10% of its fair market value and all other property at 15% of Its fair market value. 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (Per $100 Of Assessed Value) Last Ten Years (Unaudited) 

Table 5 

0.10 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.14 0.14 0.15 0.14 0.15 

0.57 0.65 0.72 0.74 0.87 0.86 0.86 0.88 0.83 0.86 

0.58 0.57 0.70 0.38 0.38 0.38 0.43 0.37 0.29 0.30 

1.25 1.31 1.51 1.21 1.34 1.38 1.43 1.40 126 1.31 
Source: Jefferson Parish Department of Research and Budget 
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0.99 0.96 1.05 t.04 0.82 0.93 0.89 0.95 0.89 1.03 

0.41 0.41 0.41 0.47 0.65 0.65 0.64 0.66 0.66 0.69 

2.65 2.68 2.97 2.72 2.81 2.96 2.96 3.01 2.81 3.03 



Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Principal Taxpayers December 31, 1997 (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Ta~e6 

Entergy Services Inc. Bellsouth First National Bank of Commerce Louisiana Gas Service Hibernia National Bank Avondale Shipyards Inc. Whitney National Bank Lakeside Shopping Center Louisiana CGSA Inc. Southwest Airlines Co. 

Public Utilities Telephone Utility Banking Gas Utility Banking Shipbuilding Banking Retail Property Mgmt Communications Aidine 

Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office 
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$ 57,734 45,824 16,136 12,170 12,402 11,763 8,874 7,352 7,322 8,664 

2.68% 2.12% 0.75% 0.56% 0.57% 0.55% 0.41% 0.34% 0.34% 0.31% $ I_ ~,24__11 8.63~/_o 



 

Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Special Assessment Collections and Billings Last Ten Years (Unaudlted) 

Table 7 

2,336,091 1,999,181 1,296,406 1,384,984 1,162,672 984,474 785,442 520,290 623,980 735,065 

$ 65,142 59,108 47,858 58,362 37,424 50,931 108,535 33,331 28,443 16,836 

$ 268,464 703,973 206,142 161,719 140,774 148,101 t56,617 67,255 113,119 99,212 

S (3,304) 60,306 342,578 (2,231) 0 O 0 204,276 252,647 (665) 
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$ 1,999,181 1,296,406 1,384,984 1,162,672 984,474 785,442 620,290 623,980 735,065 618,352 

$ 248,722 237,198 160,396 187,378 166,577 160,412 113,480 56,744 71,502 49,512 

$ 1,839,782 1,110,058 1,174,972 932,822 716,583 483,928 246,690 328,120 445,399 312,163 



 
Jefferson Perish, Louisiana Computation Of Legal Debt Margin (Unmuditeo') (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Ta~e8 

Road District No. 1 Sub District No, 1 Consolidated Road District A Sub District No. 1 New Prison Playground District No. 11 Playground Disffict No. 12 Playground Diatfict No. 13 Playground Diatflct No. 14 Playground District No. 15 Fire District No. 7 East Bank Consolidated Sewer District Parish-Wide Drainage Fourth Jefferson Drainage Distdct Drainage District No. 9 Drainage District No. g Sub District No. 1 ConsoEdated Wete~vorks Dist~ct No, 2 

Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office 

$ ' 33,253 11,586 221,666 t ,473 22,743 1t,586 9,597 5,386 11,586 110,173 221,665 147,469 31,541 8,005 62,166 

$ 20,790 4,870 50 120 37O 610 355 315 6O0 2,320 46,630 50 1,690 1,385 2,345 $ 82 5~ 

$ 221 97 50 37 370 204 89 144 351 749 7,488 50 549 254 778 

$ 12,684 6,813 221,666 1,390 22,743 11,180 9,331 5,215 11,337 108,602 182,523 147,469 30,400 6,874 60,599 s 11!~431 s 838,826 

(1) State law allows a maximum of 10 percent of the assassed valuation for bonds for any purpose. 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Ratio Of Net General Bonded Debt To Assessed Value And Net Bonded Debt Per Capita Last Ten Years (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 994 995 998 997 

Debt Service Tax Assessed Gross Monies Roll Population Value Bonded Debt Available (1) (2) 
1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

469 466 448 452 456 457 457 458 456 453 

$ 1,860,976 $ 1,896,025 1,912,827 1,863,046 1,863,697 1,885,421 1,882,516 1,916,256 1,975,516 2,157,287 
(1) Source: Louisiana Tech University (2) Includes only Ad Vatorem Tax Bonds 

162,950 154,005 143,920 132,960 123,370 117,350 106,465 97,970 89,720 82,500 

To~e 9 

Net Ratio Of Net Net Bonded Bonded Debt To Bonded Debt Debt Assessed Value Per Capffa 
$ 17,286 19,284 26,029 20,404 17,964 15.069 2,977 2,274 2,319 1.431 

$ 145,664 134,721 117,891 112,556 105,406 102,281 93,488 85,696 77,401 71.069 

7.83% 7.11% 6.16% 6.04% 5.66% 5.42% 4.97% 4.47% 3.92% 3.29% 

311 289 263 249 231 224 204 187 170 157 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Ratio Of Annual Debt Service Expenditures For General Bonded Debt To Total General Expenditures Last Ten Years (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 10 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

$ 8,505 8,945 10,085 10,700 9,590 9,470 8,840 8,495 8,250 7.930 

$ 9,678 12,247 10,636 9,603 9,056 7,685 7,350 6,627 6,073 5.529 

$ 18,183 21,192 20,721 20,303 18,646 17,155 16,190 15,122 14,323 13.459 

$ 166,528 176,384 196,051 238,734 215,442 209,600 215,997 228,198 231,678 250.143 (1) Includes onlyAd Valorem Tax Bonds (2) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds 

10.92% 12.01% 10.57% 8.50% 8.65% 8.18% 7.50% 6.63% 6.18% 5.38% 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Computation Of Direct And Overlapping Debt (Unaudlted) (amounts expressed in thousands) 
Tabte 11 

Consolidated Road District No.1 Sub District No. 1 Consolidated Road District No.1 Sub District No. 1, Refund Consolidated Road District A Sub District No. 1 New Prison Playground District No. 11 Playground District No. 12 Playground Distdct No. 13 Playground District No. 14 Playground District No. 15 Fire District No. 7 East Bank Consolidated Sewer Dlstdct Parishwide Drainage Fourth Jefferson Drainage District Drainage Distdct No. 9 Drainage District No. 9 Sub District No. 1 Consolidated WatenNorke District No. 2 Total Direct Parish Debt 
Qyerla.z~lno Debt (2~ Jefferson Parish Public School System West Jefferson Levee District City of Kenner Total Overlapping Parish Debt 
Total Direct and Overlapping Parish Debt 

$ 1,150 19,640 4,870 50 120 370 610 355 315 600 2,320 46,630 50 1,690 1,385 2,345 $ 82,500 
132,095 1,420 1,785 $135,300 

00% 00% 00% 00% 

$ 1,150 19,640 4,870 50 120 370 610 355 315 6O0 2,320 46,630 5O 1,690 1,385 2,345 $ 82,500 
132,095 1,420 1,785 $135,300 

(1) Source: Statement of Bonded Debt (2) Source: Jefferson Parish Department of Research and Budget 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Revenue Bond Coverage Last Ten Years (Unaudited) (amounts expressed in thousands) 

Table 12 

1988 $ 32,107 1989 34,012 1990 32,945 1991 32,383 1992 26,027 1993 22,259 1994 24,823 1995 26,243 1996 27,091 1997 26.734 

$ 25,063 24,883 25,233 27,549 17,148 15,855 15,125 14,251 13,889 15.768 

$ 7,044 9,129 7,712 4,834 8,879 6,404 9,698 11,992 13,202 10.966 

$ 2,090 $ 2,165 2,240 1,515 685 720 755 795 835 880 

624 $ 540 443 351 222 187 149 110 69 35 

2,714 2,705 2,683 1,866 907 907 9O4 905 904 915 
(1) Source: Enterprise Funds - Total Operating and Non-Operating Revenues for Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 

2.60 3.38 2.87 2.59 9.79 7.06 10.73 13.25 14.61 11.98 

(2) Source: Enterprise Funds - Total Operating Expenses for Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Demographic Statistics Last Ten Years (Unaudited) 

Table 13 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

468,509 465,624 448,306 451,543 456,389 457,069 457,481 458,456 455,741 453.160 (1) Source (2) Source 
(3) Source (4) Source 

$ 15,007 15,863 17,101 17,489 18,340 19,100 20,170 21,973 21,973 21.973 

84,995 85,486 83,818 82,066 79,234 80,430 80,878 81,142 82,352 81.856 

8.4% 6.4% 5.2% 5.6% 6.2% 5.9% 6.4% 5.0% 4.6% 3.8% Louisiana Tech University Bureau of Economic Analysis, U. S. Department of Commerce The data for two most recent years' per capita income was not available at the time of publication. Louisiana Department of Education Louisiana Department of Labor, Research and Statistical Division 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Property Value, New Construction & Bank Deposits Last Ten Years (Unaudited) 
Assessed Property Single Family Value * UnRs (1) (3) 

Mud- Family Value * Units (3) (3) 
Commercial, Public Buildings Total Permit Value * And Other * Valuation * (3) (3) (3) 

Table 14 

1988 $1,860,976 1989 1,896,025 1990 1,912,827 1991 1,863,046 1992 1,863,607 1993 1,885,421 1994 1,882,516 1995 1,916,256 1996 1,975,517 1997 2,157,287 

500 487 40g 521 593 600 660 556 494 492 

$ 26,935 6 27,647 30 24,724 1 31,427 0 34,764 13 35,803 160 39,126 23 35,644 348 32,575 211 30,847 24 

$ 163 12,903 10,440 0 755 5,175 9,080 8,719 7,206 887 

$ 82,689 91,729 89,103 109,030 68,586 92,330 118,267 150,432 118,833 106.391 
Amounts expressed in thousands (1) Source: Jefferson Padsh Assessors Office (2) Source: Jefferson Padsh Finance Department (3) Source: Jefferson Parish Department of Inspection and Code Enforcement 

$109,787 132,279 124,267 140,457 104,105 133,308 166,473 194,795 158,614 138.125 

$ 1,787,711 1,803,591 2,192,567 2,501,286 2,692,907 2,936,122 3,316,570 3,917,592 3,925,036 4.270.500 
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Jefferson Parish, Louisiana Miscellaneous Sta6stics December 31, 1997 (Unaudlted) 
Table 15 

Area In square miles 
Miles of Parish roads - centerllne mileage Number of street lights 
Building permits issued Fire Protection: Number of stations Number of fire personnel and officers 
Number of schools Number of classrooms Number of teachers Number of students 
Water Department: Number of active accounts Average daily production Miles of water lines Number of hydrants Drainage: Number of large pumping stations Number of small pumping stations 
Libraries Community centers Picnic areas EmploN~ Classified Unclassified * includes paid firemen of East Bank Consolidated Fire District only 
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1825 Council/President 359 272 
855 31.582 
4,424 
60 231 * 
84 3,274 3,217 53.959 
137,373 85,020,900 1,580 14.150 
18 24 
16 29 10 
2,632 849 
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REPORTS RELATING TO THE REPORTING ENTITY 



REBOV~YE & COMPANY* / ]{ANFORD M. HARRISON KUSItNER LAGRAIZE L.L.R CERTIFIED PUBI.IC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
Members of the Parish Counc Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 1998. We did not audit the financial statements of the following component units of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. 
Blended: Consolidated Sewerage District No. 1 Enterprise Fund Consolidated Waterworks District No. 1 Enterprise Fund Employees' Retirement System of Jefferson Parish Pension Trust Fund Discretely Presented: Hospital District No. 1 Proprietary-type Fund Hospital Service District No. 2 Proprietary-type Fund Home Mortgage Authority Proprietary-type Fund Economic Development and Port District Governmental-type Fund 

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion on those financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the blended and discretely presented component units was based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Suit~ 8t0 35~hl Nl~llb (atl~C~b) I;l~d M~'l;liric. l.ouisiwia 20002 (S(141 837 9116 , A ]'[oJc~,hon:ll ( cffp~,rali(,ib 1(127 \~. hitnc} A~enut Grcma. I~ui~ialm ?(K)56 (5()~1 3(~8 7501 
Sum, 2~.I 2S00 Vctclans Mcln~,ii;d Mc~airic l.ouisiana 70!~07 ~504~ 838.9~)91 



COMPLIANCE As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuitsof our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 97-1 through 97-13. We also noted certain immaterial instances of non- compliance that we have reported to management of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated May 11, 1998. INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
In planning and performing our audit we considered Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general-purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated May 11, 1998. 



This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report isamatter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. REBOWE & COMPANY/HANFORD M. HARRISON A Professional Corporation Rebowe & Company 
KUSHNER LAGRAIZE, L.L.P 
Kushner LaGraize, L.L.P. 
Metairie May 11, Louisiana 1998 



FEDERAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 



REBOWE & COMPANY* / HANFORD M. HARRISON KUSHNER LAGRAIZE L.L.~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A- 133 
Members of the Parish Counc Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
COMPLIANCE We have audited the compliance of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, with the types of com- pliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1997. Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's compliance based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. 
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In our opinion, Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, complied in all material respects with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal pro- grams for the year ended December 31, 1997. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 97-1 through 97-13. INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
The management of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regu- lations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and per- forming our audit we considered Jefferson Parish, Louisiana's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily dis- close all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncom- pliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 1998. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. Such informa- tion has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general- purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 



This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report isamatter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
REBOWE & COMPANY/HANFORD M. HARRISON A Professional Corporation 
Rebowe & Company J{~t~~~d,/[~ oVt~,t~/j~Jj~ 
KUSHNER LAGRAIZE, L.L.P 
Kushner LaGraize, L.L.P 
Metairie, May 1 1, Louisiana 1998 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 31, t997 
FEDEPJ~L GRANTOR]PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF ACTION 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM "[HROUGH AMOUNT Passed through State O~ce of Elderly Affairs: Retired Senior Volunteer Project Retired Senior Volunteer Project Retired Senior Volunteer Project TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ACTION DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Passed through State Department of Culture, Recreation, and Toudsm Technology Enhancement Project Technology Enhancement Project TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY Passed through State Department of Soc Services, Office of Comm Services: Weathedzation Assist-Low income Persons Weathedzation Assist-Low Income Persons Weatheriza9on Assist-Low InCOme Persons DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Direct Programs; Head Start Head Start Head Start Handicapped Head Start Handicapped Bead Start Parent Child Center Head Start Parent Child Center Head Start Training end TechniCal Assistance Read St zLrt Trair~ir~ s~d TechniCaL Assistance Passed through State Department of Soc Services, Office of Comm Services: Child Support Enforcement services Child SuppOrt ErdorcemeP.t Services LowJncome Home Energy Assistance-Utilities Low-Income Hc~'me Energy Ass~stance-Ut~gt=es Child Care and Development Block Grant Passed through State Department of Labor Community Serv(ces Block Grant Community Services Block Grant Community Services Block Grant Community Services Block Grant TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES [Continued) 

94.002 440-6552/16 09/30195 09/29196 94.002 440-6582/17 09130196 09129197 94.002 440~5582/18 09/30197 09129199 
84,154A 97-22 84.154A 97-22 
81.042 81.042 81.042 
(2) 93.600 (2) 93,600 (2) 93600 (2) 93,600 (2) 93,600 (2) 93,600 94,009 94 009 

518937 515937 515937 
06CH5996/31 06CH5098/32 06CH5098/31 06CH5098/32 06CH5098/31 06CH5098/32 06CH5098/31 0~~CH5Ogfl/32 

01101/94 12/31/94 01101197 05131198 
04101195 04101196 04101197 
06/01/96 06/01197 06101196 O6101197 06101196 06101197 06101196 06/6~/97 

03131196 03/31197 03131198 
05131197 05131190 05131197 05131198 05131197 05/31/99 05131197 05/31198 

(2) 93,563 07101196 06/30/97 (2) 93,563 67/91197 06/30/98 (2) 93568 DSSO6922 01101/96 12/31/96 (2) 93,E~6 DSS08922 0~/91197 "12/31/97 93,575 06CH5099/32 06101/97 05131190 
93.569 93.509 93.569 93.569 95P0901 96P0901 97P0601 98P0001 10/91/94 01101196 01101197 01101190 12131195 12131/96 12131/97 12/31/98 

61,137 59,609 61.137 
3O,00O 35,223 
148.390 221,672 252,668 
4,481,475 4,888,100 288,500 221,597 231.500 211,739 2O,EOO 54.65O 
1,018,261 1,346,237 438,377 462.145 250.000 
891,129 721,544 906,965 836.320 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 3t, 1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOPJ PROGRAM TITLE FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER GPJ~HT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT DEPARIMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT Direct Programs: Community Development Block Grant Community Development Block Grant Community Development Block Grant Rental Rehabilitation Program Community Developmenf Stock Grant Disaster Relief Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shelter Grant Home Program Home Program Home Program Home Program YotJthbUild Passed through Stale Department of SOC Services. Office of Comm. Services Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shelter Grant Emergency Shelter Grant TDTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT OF La, BOR Passed through State Department of LabOr: Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Psrtnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership ACt Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Tr~il~i~g Part~eTship ACt Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership ACt Jot) Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership Act JobNet Passed through State Department of Education Job Training Partnership Act Job Training Partnership ACt Job Training Partnership Act TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF LABOR [Continued] 

(2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 
(2) (2) (2) (2) 

B95-UC-22-0001 B96-UC-29-O001 B97-UC=22-ODO1 Rg1-UC-22-0201 BB3-UJ-22-0001 Eg3-UH-22o0001 $94-UC-22-5O61 $95-UCo22-5001 $96-UC-22-5091 M92-UC-2;~-0203 Mg3-DC-2g*O207 M94-DC-22-0207 Mg5-DC-22-0207 Y-gO-fM-LA-0661 
14.231 370-2033 14.231 370-2033 14,231 370-2033 

06101195 06101/96 06101197 01/01/91 06101183 08/24/93 01101194 06101/95 06101196 01/01192 01101/93 01/01/94 01101196 07/27195 12/31/97 
01101/94 01101195 07/01/96 12/31194 12/31/95 06/30/98 

LC84-11-11A 07101/95 06130196 LC84-11-nA 07101196 06130197 LC84-11~gA 07101197 06130196 LC84-1t-IIC 07101194 06/3Df95 LC84.11-11C 07101195 06130196 LC84-11-0C 07101/96 O6130197 LC84-11-6C 07/01/96 0613O197 LC84-11-11C 07101/97 06130198 LC84-11-11C 07/01197 06130198 LC84-11-gS 10101194 09130195 LC84-1/-IIB 10/01/96 t/9/30167 LC84-11-11S 10101/96 09/30/97 LC84-11-16F 071O1194 O6130/95 LC84-11-glF 07101195 0613O196 LC84o11=glF 07101/96 06/30/97 LC84-11-111F 07/01197 O6130196 5% Incentive 07/01195 O6130196 5% Incentive 07/91196 06/30/97 JGBNET 
17,240 LCS-4-11J/A 17.246 LC84-11-gA 17.246 LC84-1t-IIA 10/01/95 10101196 10101167 09/30/09 09/30197 09130198 

5,442,000 5,273,0O6 6.178,000 92.000 1.700,060 165,000 157.00D 190,194 t38,000 %649,000 1.637.000 1.626,000 2,077.O6g 865.364 
83,000 90,840 79.600 

106,587 109,410 97,052 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year En6ed December 3't, 1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGl~t,.~ "~'tT LE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM "THROUGH AMOUNT Direct Programs: Federat Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federat Transit Cat~) improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Trans~ Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital Improvement Grants Federal Transit Capital improvement Grants Federal Transit Capita) tmproverr~nt Grants Federat Transit Capital Improvemenl Grants Federal Transit Capital improvement Grants Federal Transit lechnical Studies Grants Federal Transit Technical Studies Grants Federal Transit Capital & Opera5ng Asst Formula Grants Passed through State Department of Highways: Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase it Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II TOTAL DEPAR'i~IENT OF TRANSPORTATION ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY Direct Programs: Construction Grants for Wastawatar Treatment Works Easthank and Westbank Step 3 Eastpanl~ and Westhank Step 3 Eastbank and Westbank Step 3 National Estuary Program 

20+500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20500 20+500 20.500 20.500 20.500 20+500 20.500 20.505 20.505 20.507 

LA-0~X040 LA-90-XIll LA-0~0025 LA-9~X038 LA-g0-X026 LA-g0-x125 LA-90-X13B LA*gD-X152 LA-9~X163 LA-g0-X175 LA-90-X187 LA-g0-x175 LA-g0-X1B7 LA-g0-X187 

Project Comptstion Pro)ec~ Complebon Project Completion Project Completion Project ComptstJon Project Completion Project Completion Project Completion Pro)ect Comptatrbn Project Completion Project CompleSon 01101/96 12/31/96 01101197 12/31197 01101/97 12/31/97 
(2),(4) 20.205 M-8673(008) Project Completion (2) 20,205 M-8622(001) Project Completion (2) 20.205 M-8622(005) Project Completion (2) 20.205 ENH-MISC(076) P~'oject Completion (2) 20.205 STP-4045-(009) Project Completion (2) 20.205 742-05o0019 Project Completion (2) 20.205 STP-9471 .(602) Project Comptetion (2) 20.205 STP-4045-(009) Project Completion (2) 20.205 742-07-0016 Project Completion 
66416 66,4t6 66 41B 66,456 C-220377-13 C-220377-15 C-220377-t7 CE+006685o01-~ 09110/85 09/25187 09/01190 10/01/91 08/31169 05/31190 12131/92 09/30/94 

1.037,04B 760,000 1,376,400 1,057,360 363,350 1,336,000 620,000 4,O4O,5OO 1,260,000 2,900,200 2,900,200 200,000 200,000 718,000 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY NATIONAL OCEANIC ATMOSPHERIC ASSOCIATION Direct Programs: Multi-Purpose Cadastre Project - Phase Vit (2) "11+400 NA470G0140 04101194 12/31197 1,500.000 Passed through State Department of Natural Resources: Coastal Zone Management Coastat Zone Management Coastal Zone Management TOTAL NATIONAL OCEANIC ATMOSPHERIC ASSOCIATION |Con6nued~ 
11.4t6 25102-93-03 07101194 06/30/95 11.419 435CM-97-08 07/01196 0613O/97 11,4t9 07101197 06130196 
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40,000 55,000 55,000 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 31.1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Direct programs: Correctional Ophons planning Serious, '~otent and ChrOnic Juvenile Offender Treatment Correctional Options Drug Court Planning ADA Technical Assistance Title III Drug Court Implementation Initiative 1996 LOCal Law Enforcement Block Grant 1997 Local Law Enforcement Btack Grant 

FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH AMOUNT 

Passed through State Commission on Law Enforcement: Mentonng Mentonng In Service Training Chitd Advocacy Program Chgd Advocacy Program Child Advocacy Program Child Advocacy program Crime Victim Assistance Program Cnme Victim Assistance Program Crime Victim Assistance Program Crime V~ctim ASSIstance Program Intensive Detention Program Grant Support Personnel * Phase VII Grant Support Personne~ - Phase vg Vlctent Offender Intensive Prosecution Violent Offender Intensive Prosecution Drug Court Clinic Drug Court Clinic Treatment of Juvenile Offenders Treatment of Juvenile Offenders Detention Reimbursement Intensive Supervision Pro-Trial Intervention Prosecution Training Depar tm.e ~,t of PU~LC ,~atety er~d Correcter,s: Violent Offender Incarceration & Truth-in-Sentencing thcen 16.586 

94-DD-CX*0149 85-JD-FX-K005 95-DD-BX-0139 95-DC-MX-O006 95-CR-CX-O001 07-DC-VX-0048 66-LB-VX-3888 97-LB-VX..4201 
95-J7-J 3-0251 06-J7-J.3-6246 82-J7-J 2-6036 83-C7-V 3-0340 95-C7-V,1-0302 96*C7*V.1-0355 97-C7oV,1-6325 94-C7-V,3-0330 gd*C7-V 3-0340 06-C7-V.3*0358 07-C7-V,3-0351 04-B7-B 11-0055 95-87-B 08-0063 95-B7-B 13-0042 96-B7-B,13-0079 05-87-B 13-0072 96-87-B 13-0080 93-J7-J.3-0248 97-B7-B 11-0009 95-M7-M 01-0445 07-87-B20-0330 

10101/94 10101/95 10101195 10101195 09101195 04101197 10101196 10/91/97 
08101196 08/01/97 07/01/93 10101193 10101/95 10101196 10/91/97 10101194 10/01/95 10101185 10/91/97 10101/94 11/15195 11115/96 10106/95 05130/96 04101195 04101/96 09/91196 09101/97 10101/94 05101197 10101/96 03/01197 

06130195 09/30/97 09130197 09130187 08130196 09130198 09130/98 09/3O/99 
07131197 07/31198 09130193 09130194 09130196 09/30/97 09130198 09130195 09130196 09130197 09t~/98 09130195 11114196 11114197 05129196 05129197 03131196 03131/97 08131/97 08131/98 09130/95 00130198 09130/97 02/28198 

47,300 500,000 499,866 27,402 49,829 400,000 783,756 861,955 

Project Completion 200,000 
TO'i'AL DEPAR'i3VIENT OF JUSTICE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTt)RE Direct Programs Watarshed Protection and Flood Prevention 10,904 68-72.17-6-33 03125186 Completion 1,082,097 Passed through State Department of EduCation: Child Care Feeding Program Child Care Feeding program Child Care Feeding program Head Start Food Service Head Start Food Service Head Start Food Service [Continued] 

10.558 10.558 10.558 10,558 10.558 10.559 

]1 

93-235 93-235 03-235 83-235 93~235 93-235 
10101/95 10101196 10101/97 10101/95 10101196 10101187 
09130196 09/30197 09130198 09130196 00130197 09130198 
614,297 624,370 624,370 670,879 934,701 834701 



 

JEFFERSON PARtSH, LOUtStANA SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS For the Year Ended December 31.1997 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE FEDERAL CFDA GRANT NUMBER NUMBER GRANT PERIOD GRANT FROM THROUGH ,AMOUNT Passed through State Department of Family Support: Food Stamp Food Stamp Food S~amp Passed through State Department of Agricu6ure: TemporaP./Emergency Food Assistance Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Temporal/Emerger,.cy FOO~ Assis~r'~e 
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY Passed through State Department of Public Safety and Corrections: Emergency Management Assistance Emergency Management Assistance Passed through Local United Way: Emergency Food and Shetter Program 

10.561 10.561 10.SB'~ 
10.550 10.550 10.550 

83.503 83.503 
TOTAL FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY TOTAL NONMONETARY ASSISTANCE Food Stamps 10.551 Food Distribution (Commodities) 10.550 TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 

LRO-3 LAB-3 LRO-3 

EMA EMA 

07101195 07101106 07/o1197 
OW01~3 07~1~6 07~tl97 
06~0/96 06/3~97 o6f30~9 
06130194 06f30/97 06/30/06 

10101195 09130/06 t0/01/~5 D~30267 
10101196 09/30/97 

(1) These arnounts represent the value of Food Stamps and Commodities issued to and distributed by the Parish to eligible ~'ec~pienta during 1697. (2) Thisprogramisconsidereda"major"programunderOMSCircularA-133. (3) ~hisam~untrep~sen~s~n~ythep~rben~fedva~remtaxesnee~odt~meetthematching~equirernents~fthegrant (4} Amount reported at year-end 1996 was misstated by $109.768 NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS DECEMBER 31,1997 1 .) Generafi "The accompanying Schedule of Expendi'Lules of Federal Awmds ptese~s the a ~ivi~y of alt lederal awards p~ograms of Jefferson Parish The Parish's reporting entity is defined in note AI to the genera6purpose financial statements for the year ended December 31,1997 Atl federal awards received directly from the federal agencies are inCluded on the schedule as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies 2 ) Basis of Accounting: Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in note A3 to the Parish's general-puq~ose financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1997, Commodibes received, which are non-cesh revenue, are valued at prices provided by the U. S Department o1 Agriculture. 

]2 

99,708 95.832 65.632 
14,000 17,500 17,600 

75.626 75.626 



 

ACCRUED ACCRUED (DEFERREO) CASH RECEIVED (DEFERRED) TOTAL TOTAL REVENUE DURING YEAR REVENUE REVENUE EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES DECEMBER 31. DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED RECOGNIZED 

11,297 0 11,207 35 223 0 5.000 O 35 2t7 0 5.006 0 6 0 0 0 6 6 
(247) 0 0 0 247 247 0 32,164 01,672 0 213 59,721 59.721 0 0 0 0 33.197 33.197 33,197 0 247 59.721 31 917 91 672 0 33 410 93 t65 93 165 0 93 1~5 
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ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER3' 1996 CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT OTHER 
ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31. RECOGNIZED t997 1997 EXPENDITURES FEDERAL OTHER TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 

1,170,978 O 0 13,573 O (510) 0 0 0 0 386,965 30,~8 O 8d,177 

0 101.395 0 2,572 (1) O O O O O 54.647 21.351 27,B99 271,240 O 

1.728.168 5.991.121 569.934 7096.776 5.823 743 

16,105 45.553 O 69.127 102,998 O 4,184.105 5,440 701.604 4.077.487 3.000 810.752 4.169,635 1.143 " 31.876 " 0 * 33.019 
10,571 87.235 0 0 8,935 37.512 9,428 64,297 B7.512 9,428 64.297 B7,512 111.237 111.237 

9,428 64,297 37.512 "~34j623 ____4.,176,296 3,000 657,19~ 4,3008,~77= ~5.432--~ 5,44() . ~ ~300572 

]4 



 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER3' CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED EXPENDITURES "TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1996 GRANT OTHER 1997 t997 FEDERAL OTHER 1997 

214.018 O O _~ ~t66j ___. 21~852 
0 O 228.777 9 (214,018) O 228,777 166 0 0 0 0 

7,~99 7,898 0,992) 2,811 0 
415.574 415.574 0 407,676 890,282 0 407.676 

0 0 0 0 0 
O 48.915 O O 69,160 O (10,992) (495) 25,195 114,769 25,195 O 45,609 25.195 0 69,160 0 8.181) 48.915 69,160 13,708 139,964 70,804 69.160 

O 114,769 25,195 263"~ 464.489 %114.870 13.708 1,593.356 
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ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER 31 1999 CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT OTHER 
ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED 1997 1997 EXPENDITURES FEDERAL OTHER TOTAL EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED 1997 

44.420 199,818 O 0 O 0 783,756 0 
O 291,525 211,695 15,444 O 164,937 (349,642) 1,o72 
O 281,525 299,365 O 6,560 208,860 516,621 1.072 
(1,448) 281,525 186,455 0 (2,463) t64,937 434,114 1.072 

0 281,525 296,741 O 6,560 208,860 524,223 1.191 269.156 1.017,994 1.314.003 1.074.192 244.909 11,553 O ~57) (3~312) 1.726 805 4.729 

0 0 

21,917 7,043 O O 2,054 27,000 O O 16,500 0 O O O O 21,871 45,000 27,829 454 0 15,814 22,105 0 

O O O 0 O 8,600 1,644 605 O 4,125 820 0 0 2,774 6,152 19,801 (1,365) 1,265 0 t7,852 22,653 4,732 13,822 212.840 78743 207.687 

319,100 

331,642 244,096 83,178 327,274 9 0 13,587 13.587 122,285 135.872 122,285 122.285 13,567 13.587 !35,672 135,872 44~899 7 _ !,225,681 343~279 660.=456 
0 0 437.115 O O 437.115 437,139 437.136 O 56.271 O O 75,319 0 

1,880 375,844 62,590 0 463,498 74.979 
O 6,025 0 120 163,404 0 

O O 38,177 O (25,423) 146,702 231.590 676.800 172,549 157,456 
1,889 328,598 88,767 120 426,160 221,681 1.077.215 
1,889 328,698 98,767 O 262,757 221,681 813.692 
O 0 0 120 163,404 163.524 
1,889 328,598 98,767 120 426.161 221,681 
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1.077,216 



$ $ 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) REVENUE DECEMBER3 1996 9 44,605 O 44605 (2,64O) 7,667 0 6,027 281,222 359,446 
O O O 

CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR GRANT (2,847) lO6,262 18,487 122.4o2 
OTHER 
0 11,698 O 11.698 

25,209 71,235 96444 

2,347 64,334 3B,809 105490 0 5,293 7,694 12,987 

ACCRUED (DEFERRED) TOTAL REVENUE REVENUE DECEMBER 31, RECOGNIZED 1997 1997 O G0 125,991 27,202 84,498 27,202 210,499 0 O 3,978 2,640 9,324 11.672 3,976 23,636 + 

TOTAL _ EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES RECOGNIZED FEDERAL OTHER 1997 0 0 61,658 64,333 45,689 38,809 107.347 2,640 4,031 3,978 10,649 291,026 t88,636 1,311t340 1,031,688 
1031142 

29722B 1~8,63~ := , 1,311j340 ~=t,468,803 279+677 
0 253,143 253,143 O 18,907 18,907 25,209 343,285 368,494 0 171,643 171,643 0 171,642 171,642 O 61,229 O 0 81,229 79,900 O O 81,229 O 0 61,229 79,900 O O $ 177,673 $ 253 143 $ "18~907~ $ = 449 7235 251 543 $ 171,642 $ 5,409,796 27,504,7465= 9,358+034 $= 9,663,0725= 4!,0561050 32,239,2905 10,535,936 $ 

$ 23,049,698 163,230 23,040,587 163,230 $ 65,4431167 

B 125,991 84,496 210,489 2,649 9,324 11,672 23,636 1.311.341 
0 343,285 343.293 79,900 79,909 4231185 42775.226 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OU/S/ANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Year Ended December 31, 1997 
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS The auditors' report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. 2. No reportable conditions in internal control relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditina Standards. 3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, are reported in the Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditina Standards. 4 Reportable conditions in internal control relating to the audit of the major federal award program are reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. The auditors do not consider these conditions to be material weaknesses. The conditions are described as items 97-1 through 97-13. 5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs administered by Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, expresses an unqualified opinion. 

6. The auditors' reports disclosed findings that are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of OMBCircular A-133. These findings are described as items 97-1 through 97-13. 7. The following programs were identified as major programs a. Department of Health & Human Services -- i. Head Start ii. Child Support Enforcement Services Title IVD iii. Low-Income Home Energy' Assistance - Utilities b. Department of Housing & Urban Development -- i. Community Development Block Grant ii. Home Program c. Department of Transportation -- i. Federal Aid Urban Study Phase II d. National Oceanic Atmospheric Association -- i. Multipurpose Cadastre - Project VII 
(Continued) 

CFDA #93.600 CFDA #93.563 CFDA #93.568 CFDA #14.218 CFDA #14.239 CFDA #20.205 
CFDA #11.400 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUEST/ONED COSTS - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31, 1997 8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs was $1,663,293 9. Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, qualified as a low-risk auditee under the provisions of Section .530 of OMB Circular A-133. 

(Continued) 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Department of Housing & Urban Development CDBG CFDA No. 14.218 

(Continued) 

Finding 97-1 In our testing of retainages for the Community Development Department, we noted that written supporting documentation was not available for all retainages recorded. Additionally, we understand that retainages are only recorded at year end. It is our understanding that under the old computer system, annual recording of retainages was performed because inherent weaknesses in the system would increase the risk of understating expenditures and thus over-requesting grant money; however, with the new system, this risk has been all but eliminated. 
The Parish should amend its procedures and record retain- ages upon receipt of invoices in order to provide more accurate and timely financiaT records throughout the year. This would provide more consistency in retainage recordation Parishwide. 
The new computer system can accommodate the recording of retainages as described above and the Parish wilt begin recording retainages upon receipt of invoices effective August 1998. Finding 97-2 During our testing of grant expenditures, we noted several $272.00 expenditures which appeared to be incorrectly coded or classified and thus required reclassification. 
Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate accounting of public funds. Response Parish accountants have been reinstructed as to the care needed in their duties and the accounting records will be more closely monitored by supervisors in the future. All costs noted above were deemed allowabFe under the program. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS 

Continued) 

Finding 97-3 As in prior years, during our test of the grant programs, we noted that drawdown requests for reimbursement from the Department of Housing and Urban Development {"HUD") for expenditures incurred by the Parish were not made in a timely manner. Untimely filing of drawdown requests causes an unnecessary financial burden on the Parish that would not otherwise exist if timely requests were made. We also noted that in some instances, no drawdowns were made between the months of June and December. Recommendation We recommend that drewdown requests be made timely in order to receive reimbursements from HUD to alleviate unnecessary financial burdens on the Parish. Response We concur. There is a proposal pending that will allow the individual departments to process drawdowns for their programs as opposed to the accounting department performing these duties. Additional training was obtained and procedures are now in place on the departmental level that clearly define each person's role in the drawdown process so that they can be made timely. It is expected that in the future, drawdowns will be filed monthly. Finding 97-4 Subgrantees are required to submit to the Parish reimburse- ment reports within 30 days of incurring expenditures so that the Parish can filetimeTydrawdownrequests. During our testing of subgrantee expenditures for the CDBG Program, we noted that a timely reimbursement request was not flied. Recommendation The Parish should enforce the required timeframe for sub- mission of reimbursement reports so that timely drawdowns can be made. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 

This instance was caused by severe delays in the awarding of contracts and subsequent revisions to the contracts. The Parish has revised accounting procedures and budget schedules related to subrecipient grantees. In addition, the Parish has reclarified the dates for which subrecipients may begin to incur expenditures for grantees. However, the Parish believes the instance cited was an isolated instance and not a recurring problem. Finding 97-5 As noted in prior years, the Parish is required to monitor its subrecipients of grant funds as part of the subgrantee agreements. During our testing of subrecipients monitoring for the CDBG Program, we noted that eight of the nine sub- grantees were not being monitored in a timely fashion as required. Additionally, in our review of the state monitoring reports for the CDBG Program, we noted that there were several findings in the report dated December 22, 1997, for which responses were not yet obtained. Recommendation The Parish should monitor its subreeipients as required to avoid losing grant funds, and all findings should be responded to/followed up in a timely fashion. Response The Parish has fallen behind due to personnel shortages and time constraints and is attempting to catch up on its monitoring requirements of subrecipients. This project has been given high priority for 1998. However, project managers have monitored subrecipients throughout the year via informal meetings, correspondence and site visits. A followup request was made to the CDBG subrecipient on February 4, 1998, and a site visit was conducted on March 20. 1998. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Department of Housing and Urban Development Home Program CFDA No. 14.239 

(Continued) 

Finding 97-6 In our testing of retainages for the Community Development Department, we noted that written supporting documentation was not available for all retainages recorded. Additionally, we understand that retainages are only recorded at year end. It is our understanding that under the old computer system, annual recording of retainages was performed because inherent weaknesses in the system would increase the risk of understating expenditures and thus over-requesting grant money; however, with the new system, this risk has been all but eliminated. Recommendation The Parish should amend its procedures and record retain- ages upon receipt of invoices in order to provide more accurate and timely financial records throughout the year. This would provide more consistency in retainage recordation Parishwide. Response The new computer system can accommodate the recording of retainages as described above and the Parish will begin recording retainages upon receipt of invoices effective August 1998. Finding 97- 7 In our testing of grant expenditures in 1997 and internal $122,531.00 controls over grant expenditures, we noted that expenditures totaling $122,531 submitted for reimbursement on the 1996 grant program appear to be for expenses incurred prior to 1996. Recommendation Parish personnel should review the expenditures in question to determine if monies need to be refunded to HUD. Response The Parish is investigating the expenditures in question and if required, will refund any monies due back to HUD. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 

Finding 97-8 During our testing of grant expenditures, we noted several $5,092.00 expenditures which appeared to be incorrectly coded or classified end thus required reclassification, Recommendation Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate eccounting of pub}ic funds. Response Parish accountants have been reinstructed as to the care needed in their duties and the accounting records will be more closely monitored by supervisors in the future. All costs noted above were deemed allowable under the program. Finding 97-9 In our testing of expenditures of the Home Program, we noted that supporting documentation for drawdown requests were not centrally located. Because the files were not centrally located, it was difficult to trace these expenditures in our audit procedure to support proper end timely requests. 
We recommend that e central file be maintained on a reimbursement requests. Response We agree. Central files will be maintained on all drawdown requests effective immediately. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Department of Health and Human Services Low Income Home Energy Assistance CFDA No. 93.568 

Department of Health and Human Services Child Support Enforcement Services Title IVD CFDA No. 93.563 

(Continued) 

Finding 97-10 During our testing of grant expenditures, we noted several $975.00 expenditures which appeared to be incorrectly coded or classified and thus required reclassification. Recommendation Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate accounting of public funds. 
Parish accountants have been reinstructed as to the care needed in their duties end the accounting records will be more closely monitored by supervisors in the future. All costs noted above were deemed allowable under the program. Finding 97-11 In reviewing the Child Support Enforcement Services - Title IVD Program grant agreement between the Department of Social Services, Office of Family Support and the District Attorney's, 24th Judicial District, we noted that the agree- ment was with the District Attorney's office and not Jefferson Parish, although the Parish's federal ID number was used on the grant application. 
The District Attorney's office should investigate as to the propriety of using the Parish federal ID number for grants obtained through the District Attorney's office. The Parish should review its role in administering this grant. 
This contract was originally established when the District Attorney's office did not have its own federal ID number and renewals have been filed using the same format. The District Attorney's office is the contractor for services under this grant and the Parish provides grant accounting services only. The IP number will be corrected in the June 1998 grant application. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS 

Department of Health and Human Services Head Start CFDA No. 93.600 

Finding 97-12 During our compliance testing of Child Support Enforcement $56,164.00 Services - Title IVD Program for expenditures, we noted that one of the reimbursement requests tested contained incorrect amounts which were caused by an error in extracting/utilizing accounting data. Asaresult of the error, it appears that the request for reimbursement from the Department of Health and Human Services was overstated by $56,164.37. 
We recommend that the Parish review the report in question as well as its report preparation procedures to ensure that accurate reports are filed. The Parish should submit an amended report to the Department of Health and Human Services and any monies due the Department should be refunded. Response The Parish is reviewing the files and will submit a corrected copy of the request upon completion and any amounts due back to the Department of Health and Human Services will be refunded. The Parish expects to complete its review by the end of July 1998. Finding 97-13 During our testing of the Head Start Program, we noted that the computer programs used by Head Start do not appear adequate to meet the needs of the daily operations of the department, and do not provide timely, relevant information. Some data recordation/retrieval is done manually where existing computer technology is available to achieve the tasks. 
We recommend that the Head Start Program consider purchasing a new computer system, or upgrade its current system so that timely, relevant information can be provided from the data fields. 
The Parish agrees that the system is inadequate and has plans to upgrade the system as funds are available. 



FUNDING SOURCES 
JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS Year Ended December 31, 1997 

FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Department of Health & Human Services Headstart CFDA No. 93.600 

Department of Housing and Urban Development CDBG CFDA No. 14.218 

(Continued) 

Finding 96-1 The Headstart Program has no format system in place to document the acceptance of new program participants. In the past, formal letters of certification were mailed to newly accepted participants and a copy of such was maintained in the participant's file. This procedure has been discontinued and phone calls are now used to notify new participants. However, no documentation is maintained on file. Current Status The Headstart Department has developed an activity log to document phone calls to new participants (Martha Simon). Finding 96-2 Community Development (CDBG) is required by the Depart- $1,420.00 ment of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) to submit an annual Grantee Performance Report within 90 days following the grant year. This report is intended to recap the financial activity of the Jefferson Parish CDBG for HUD to review. As in the prior year, we noted that the amounts in the 1995-96 Performance Reports were difficult to trace to supporting documentation. In addition, we noted errors totaling $1,420.00. Current Status The firm of Hanford M. Harrison has been hired to balance prior years' Grantee Performance Reports and will recom- mend procedural changes (Blanca Sellars and Brenda Richard Montgomery). Finding 96-3 The Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) conducted a monitoring site visit of the Jefferson Parish Department of Community Development (CDBG) during September 1992 and noted that the Parish has failed to utilize and commit rental rehabilitation funds for 1990 and 1991 in accordance with regulations. Failure to submit a plan to HUD for fully utilizing the funds could result in the deobligation of these funds. As of December 31, 1996, these funds had not yet been committed by CDBG. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Currant Status CDBG has sent e letter to the Accounting Department stating that outstanding funds have been reclaimed (Kim Thompson) Finding 96-4 During our testing of construction files for CDBG for compliance with the Davis Bacon Act, we noted that interview records for one of the 25 contractors could not be located. Interview records are required to be maintained on all contractors in order to receive reimbursement from HUD. Further investigation showed that this contractor did receive payroll reimbursements throughout 1996. 

Currant Status Danny Adams has researched and handled this problem Finding 96-5 Jefferson Parish is required to monitor its subrecipients of grant funds as part of the subgrantee agreements. During our testing of subgrantee monitoring, we noted that sub- grantees were not being monitored in a timely fashion as required. Currant Status Program managers end Steve Pruit have brought monitoring requirements up to date. Department of Finding 96-6 Transportation During the testing of the Transit Department's grant expendi- Federal Transit tures, it was noted that the Federal Financial Status Reports Capital for the first and second quarters were submitted with errors. Operating Federal Financial Status Reports which detail the expenditures Assistance incurred by the Parish are prepared end submitted quarterly. Formula Grants These reports are prepared by the Transit Department and CFDA forwarded to accounting for its review for accuracy. If errors No. 20.507 are noted by accounting, the reports are returned to the Transit Department for correction prior to their submission to FTA. The errors were not detected until the third quarter reports were filed, which included corrections from the first two quarters. 
(Continued) 28 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS - CONTINUED Year Ended December 31, 1997 
FUNDING SOURCES FINDINGS QUESTIONED COSTS Current Status Accounting Department personnel have been instructed to review the Federal Financial Status Reports more carefully before filing {Paul Bourg}. Finding 96- 7 Equal Employment Opportunity posters were not prominently displayed at the Transportation Department in accordance with the nondiscrimination and grievance and federal employment policies of the Parish. Current Status We still have not received the pesters (Albert Roussel Finding 96-8 While performing tests of transactions for internal control procedures related to grant revenues and receipts, we noted a lack of supporting documentation for grant receipts on one of the 25 receipts we reviewed. Without adequate support it is difficult for a third party reviewer to determine if the receipt was properly recorded in the general ledger. Current Status The Accounting Department now attaches all support for Grant Revenue to the receipts. 



~:[~.!~ LEGal i''4IE~:IFoI~RsoN PABISH ~6~: "{o~ 98 JUtl 26 AHII: 28LOUISIANA FINANCE DEPARTMENT TIM P COULON pA~1SH P[~E S!DEN1 SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS June 24, 1998 
U. S. Department of Education 

PENNY ANDERSON [ INANC~ Dlf~[ CTO}~ 

Jefferson Parish, Louisiana respectfully submits the following summary of prior year findings for the year ended December 31, 1997. Independent Public Accounting Firm: Rebowe & Company/Hanford M. Harrison, Kushner LaGraize LLP 2800 Veterans Memorial Boulevard Suite 254- Metairie, Louisiana 70002-6112 Audit period: January 1, 1997--December 31, 1997 The findings from the December 31, 1997 summary schedule of prior audit findings are discussed below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule. 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Finding 96-1 Head Start--CFDA No. 93.600 System to document new participants Current status: The Head Start Department has developed an activity log to document phone calls to new participants. (Martha Simon) DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT Finding 96-2 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Late Grantee Performance Reports with errors Current status: The firm of Hanford M. Harrison has been hired to balance prior years' Grantee Performance Reports and will recommend procedural changes. (Brenda Richard-Montgomery and Blanca Sellar) 
COURTHOUSE - PO ~OX # - GRETNA, LA 70054 - (504) 364 2767 - FAY." (~04) 364-'2_&~5 ,":, ~" P,,,,t,{q ,,,, I<,~,*~,d I'~q~,, 



SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (page 2) Finding 96-3 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Non-committed funds Current status: CDBG has sent a letter to the Accounting Department stating that outstanding funds have been reclaimed. (Kim Thompson) Finding 96-4 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Interview records misplaced Current status: The problem was researched and handled by Danny Adams. Finding 96-5 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Sub-grantee monitoring not timely Current status: Program managers and Steve Pruett have brought monitoring up to date. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Finding 96-6 Federal Transit Capital Operating Assistance Formula Grants--CFDA No. 20.507 Errors on Federal Financial Status Reports Current status: Accounting Department personnel have been instructed to review the Federal Financial Status Reports more carefully before filing (Paul Bourg) Finding 96-7 Federal Transit Capital Operating Assistance Formula Grants--CFDA No. 20.507 Equal Employment Opportunity posters 
Current status: The posters have not been received. (Albert Roussell) Finding 96-8 Federal Transit Capital Operating Assistance Formula Grants--CFDA No. 20.507 Lack of documentation Current status: The Accounting Department now attaches all support for Grant Revenue to the receipts. (Paul Bourg) 



] IM P COULON 

JEFFERSON PARI LOUISIANA FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN June 24, 1998 

U. S. Department of Education 

PENNY ANDERSON RNANCE DIRECTOR 

Jefferson Parish, Louisiana respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended December 31, 1997. Independent Public Accounting Firm: Rebowe & Company/Hanford M. Harrison, Kushner LaGraize LLP 2800 Veterans Memorial Boulevard Suite 254 Metairie, Louisiana 70002-6112 Audit period: January J, 1997--December 31, 1997 The findings from the December 31, 1997 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule. FINDINGS--FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT NO REPORTABLE CONDITIONS FINDINGS--FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT Finding 97-1 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Supporting documentation--retainages Recommendation: The Parish should amend its procedures and record retainages upon receipt of invoices in order to provide more accurate and timely financial records throughout the year. This would provide more consistency in retainage recordation Parishwide. 
COURTHOUSE - PO. BOX 9 - GRETNA, LA 70054 - (504) 364-2767 - FAX: (504) 364 2815 



CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (page 2) Action taken: We concur with the recommendation and it will be implemented effective August 1, 1998. (Blanca Sellar [504] 736-6840) Finding 97-2 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Incorrect codings Recommendation: Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate accounting of public funds. Action taken: We concur with the recommendation and it was implemented effective March 31, 1998. Finding 97-3 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Drawdowns not timely Recommendation: We recommend that drawdown requests be made timely in order to receive reimbursements from HUD to alleviate unnecessary financial burdens on the Parish. Action taken: We concur and are implementing a system whereby the Community Development Department Personnel will prepare the drawdowns. This will be accomplished by September 1, 1998. (Brenda Richard-Montgomery [504] 736-6260) Finding 97-4 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Subgrantees requests for reimbursement Recommendation: The Parish should enforce the required timeframe for submission of reimbursement reports so that timely drawdowns can be made. Action taken: We concur and have communicated to the subgrantees. We believe the instance cited was an isolated instance and not a recurring problem. Finding 97-5 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.218 Subrecipient monitoring not timely Recommendation: The Parish should monitor its subrecipients as required to avoid losing grant funds, and all findings should be responded to/followed up in a timely fashion. 



CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (page 3) Action taken: Parish personnel are trying to catch up on this process due to prior personnel shortages. This is a high priority for 1998 and should be up-to-date by September 30, 1998. (Steve Pruett [504] 736-6278) DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT Finding 97-6 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14,239 Supporting documentation Recommendation: The Parish should amend its procedures and record retainages upon receipt of invoices in order to provide more accurate and timely financial records throughout the year. This would provide more consistency in retainage recordation Parishwide. Action taken: We concur and have implemented the suggestion effective August 1, 1998. (Blanca Sellar [504] 736-6840) Finding 97-7 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. ]4.239 Prior period expenditures Recommendation: Parish personnel should review the expenditures in question to determine if monies need to be refunded to HUD. Action taken: The Parish is investigating the expenditures in question and, if required, will refund any monies due back to HUD by September 30, 1998. (Paul Bourg [504] 364-2779) Finding 97-8 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.239 Incorrect codings Recommendation" Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate accounting of public funds. Action taken: Parish accountants have been reinstructed as to the care needed in their duties and the accounting records are being monitored more closely, effective March 1, 1998. 



CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (page 4 Finding 97-9 Community Development Block Grant--CFDA No. 14.239 No centrally located files Recommendation: We recommend that a central file be maintained on all reimbursement requests. Action taken: We concur and have implemented effective April 1, 1998. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Finding 97-10 Low Income Home Energy Assistance--CFDA No. 93.568 Incorrect codings Recommendation: Accounting personnel should be instructed as to the importance of accurate accounting of public funds. Action taken: We concur and have reinstructed all accountants as to the importance of accurate accounting. They are being more closely monitored effective March 1, 1998. 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Finding 97-11 Child Support Enforcement Services Title IV-D-- CFDA No. 93.563 Federal tax ID number Recommendation: The District Attorney's office should investigate as to the propriety of using the Parish federal ID number for grants obtained through the District Attorney's office. The Parish should review its role in administering this grant, Action taken: We concur and the tax ID number will be corrected in the June, 1998 grant application. (Brian Castanza [504] 368- 1020) Finding 97-12 Child Support Enforcement Services Title IV-D-- CFDA No. 93.563 Reimbursement request error 



CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (page 5) Recommendation: We recommend that the Parish review the report in question as well as its report preparation procedures to ensure that accurate reports are filed. The Parish should submit an amended report to the Department of Health and Human Services and any monies due the Department should be refunded. Action taken: The Parish is reviewing the files and will submit a corrected copy of the request upon completion and any amounts due by July 31, 1998. (Brian Castanza [504] 368-1020) DEPARMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Finding 97-13 Head Start--CFDA No. 93.600 Head Start Program computers inadequate Recommendation: We recommend that the Head Start Program consider purchasing a new computer system, or upgrade its current system so that timely, relevant information can be provided from the data fields. Action taken: We concur that the system is inadequate and have plans to upgrade the system as funds become available probably by December 31, 1998. (Edward Stucke [504] 736-6898) 
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INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE 



REBOWE & COMPANY* / HANFORD M. HARRISON KUSHNER LAGRAIZE L.L.~ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Members of the Parish Counc Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
A UDITORS" LETTER 

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 1998. As part of our audit we considered the Parish's internal control structure in order to determine the nature, timing, and extent of our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 
Our consideration of the internal control structure has been reported on in a separately issued report entitled "Independent Auditors" Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of General-Purpose Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. " 
This memorandum summarizes various other matters which have come to our attention. While not involving reportable conditions, these matters do present opportunities for strengthening the internal control structure and improving the operating efficiency of the Parish. 
It should be noted that these comments relate only to those funds and account groups which make up the "primary government". Comments relating to the discretely presented component units are not included here, but are available from the respective units. 
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We have discussed our comments and recommendations with various administrative personnel and have included their responses. We will be pleased to discuss these comments and suggestions with you in further detail at your convenience, perform any additional study of these matters, or assist you in implementing the recommendations. REBOWE & COMPANY/HANFORD M. HARRISON A Professional Corporation Rebowe & Company Jt~l~J,~/~/[~ Jl~l~4~st, 
KUSHNER LAGRAIZE, L.L.P Kushner LaGraize, L.L.P 
Metairie May 11, Louisiana 1998 



1. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
REVENUES, RECEIVABLES AND RECEIPTS 

As noted in prior years, the Parish's Departments of Central Photography and Central Printing operated at deficits of approximately $54,000 and $31,000, respectively which had to be absorbed by the general fund. As Internal Service Funds, Central Photography and Central Printing should operate at or near break- even. 
Recommendation We recommend that a review of fees charged for services to other departments be performed for possible revisions or that these departments no longer be reported as Internal Service Funds. Response In 1998, costs associated with the above operations will be absorbed into the General Fund and will no longer be accounted for as Internal Service Funds. 
2. Comment As noted in prior years, during testing of revenues for Environmental (fund #63860) and Engineering (fund #63810) it was noted that cost allocations to the benefitting funds are based on estimates by management and are not supported by empirical data. It appears that management estimates are based more on what a fund could afford rather than what benefits the fund actually derived. Recommendation 
Since these cost centers are typically allocated to funds with dedicated revenue sources, these allocation percentages should be reviewed and correlated to the actual benefits received. The Parish should consider implementing/utilizing some other method to capture actual costs. 



Response 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
REVENUES, RECEIVABLES AND RECEIPTS (Continued) 

The Parish continues to allocate costs associated with engineering using manage- ment's estimates which is its best available method of allocation until a better method can be found. 
Several special revenue funds appear to be heading toward deficit fund balances The funds in question include the following: 

Fund Number Fund Name 21690 Cdminal Justice 21710 Animal Shelter 21720 Mosquito Control 
Recommendation 

On Budoetarv Basis 
1997 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures $ (12,021) (56,510) (2,220) 

12131197 Fund Balance $ 63,756 46,854 31.831 

1998 Budgeted Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures $ (14,417) 0 (21,049) 
The Parish should continue to review the level of operations as well as the revenues being generated and take action as needed (i.e., an increase in revenues or a decrease in expenditures, etc.). 
Response We are continuing to monitor this situation in the affected funds and will review extensively when preparing the 1999 operating budget. 



4. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
REVENUES, RECEIVABLES AND RECEIPTS ~Continued) 

In our testing of interest income allocations, we determined that the monthly interest proration is performed in the system based on unadjusted cash balances. This has led to over/under proration of interest which needs to be adjusted at year end. 
Adjustments to cash balances should be made prior to calculation of interest prorations whenever possible. Response 
Accounting will institute new procedures effective June 1998, whereas the previous month will be closed out by the 15th of the following month to ensure timely reconciliations. In addition, the system will be programmed not to accept journal entries affecting the preceding month's activity after the 15th of the following month without supervisory approval, 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GRANTS AND SIMILAR PROGRAMS 

Perish accounting personnel performed a review of grant data in conjunction with the preparation of the Schedule of Federal Assistance. While performing this review, it was determined that several grant programs' data needed significant adjustments to accurately reflect the current year's activity. We believe that a more concentrated effort by accounting personnel while recording information throughout the year would greatly reduce or eliminate such extensive adjustments at year end. Recommendation 
We recommend that all grant activity, as it is recorded in the financial management system, be reviewed monthly. We also recommend that all adjustments to the financial data be reviewed and approved by those who administer the grant before or shortly after the adjustments are made. Response The grant accountants have been instructed to more closely review and monitor grant budgets and transactions, and reconciliations will be checked by accounting supervisors effective June 1998. 2. Comment In our testing of grant program life-to-date expenditures, we noted that some of the rollforwards performed did not agree with the subsidiary ledgers. In those instances noted, once brought to the Parish's attention, corrections were made. 
Recommendation We recommend that grant accounting personnel perform quarterly reconciliations of grant expenditures to ensure the accuracy of life-to-date expenditures so that they can be relied upon. 



Response 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 19.97 
GRANTS AND SIMILAR PROGRAMS (Continued) 

Grant accountants have been instructed to perform quarterly reconciliations effective June 30, 1998. 
3. Comment During our testing of internal controls related to grant expenditures, we found that it is possible to override the computer system so that payments may be made in excess of the amount approved by the Department Director. However, we noted that no such overrides had occurred in our test of expenditures. 
Recommendation We recommend that the computer system be modified so that payments cannot be made in amounts other than those approved by the Department Director. 
Response The Parish has implemented a policy that requires the signature of the Director or Assistant Director on an invoice in excess of the original approved amounts. 
In our review of internal controls for federal programs, we noted that the Parish does not have procedures in effect to monitor individual program periods of availability to guard against incurring expenditures to a particular project past the end of its period of availability. In instances when expenditures have been recorded to programs beyond the end of the period of availability, the expenditures are disallowed. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISlANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GRANTS AND SIMILAR PROGRAMS (Continued) 

Recommendation We recommend that the period of availability for each program be monitored and procedures implemented to ensure no expenditures are incurred by programs outside their period of availability. Response 
The grant accountants have been instructed to review grant periods of availability on a monthly basis and all grants will be deactivated in the system once the period of availability has expired. Therefore, no further activity can be recorded on this program. 
5. Comment OMB Circular A-133 requires that all entities receiving federal funding monitor vendors who have been suspended or debarred to prevent suspended or debarred vendors from providing goods or services to federal fund recipients. During our testing of State bid law compliance, we noted that the Parish does not have a system in place to monitor vendors who have been suspended or debarred. 
Recommendation We recommend that the Parish initiate procedures to address monitoring vendors for suspension and debarment. Response 
The Parish maintains a list of vendors on its central computer system. The Parish is currently working on a "complaint system" so that vendors for which a complaint has been filed, or who have been suspended or debarred from business with the Parish may be identified. The Parish anticipates that this will be imple- mented by the end of 1998. 



6. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GRANTS AND SIMILAR PROGRAMS (Continued) 

During our testing of internal contro was inconsistent classification and between individual funds. 
Recommendation 

for grant accounting, we noted that there account coding for similar expenditures 
We recommend that the Parish apply consistent coding and account classification for all expenditures. Response 
The Parish has held quarterly training sessions for accountants and the grant accountants have been trained to recognize inconsistent coding. All expenditures have been reclassified as needed. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
SELF-INSURANCE 

As noted in prior years, loss reserves of the Parish for auto, general liability, and workers' compensation claims are established and monitored by the Parish's third- party administrators (CRC and Travelers) and the Parish's Department of Loss Control. The "ultimate paid losses" of the Parish are determined in-house by applying historical indices to the loss reserves. The resulting liability is recorded in the Parish's General Liability Internal Service Fund (Fund 66760). Over the past few years the Parish's loss reserves have increased significantly. At December 31, 1997, the claims liability was approximately $20.5 million. Due to the significance of the liability, we recommended that the Parish consider having the loss reserve evaluated by an actuary at least once every three years. The Parish has responded that they feel the reserves are calculated using sound methodology and in compliance with GASB 10. However, the Parish believes that the actuarial evaluation should be done once every five years. As of December 31, 1997, no actuarial evaluation has been performed. 
Recommendation We recommend that the services of an actuary should be obtained as soon as possible in order to ensure that loss reserves are sufficient to meet the needs of the Parish. Response 
The Department of Risk Management has drawn up specifications for an actuary study to evaluate loss reserves. There has been no advertisement for an actuary because of the lack of updated data as of the end of 1997 due to the new third party administrator having problems producing balanced data. The Department of Risk Management plans to have an actuarial evaluation 3erformed by the end of 1998. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OU/S/ANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
SELF-INSURANCE (Continued) 

As noted in prior years, we observed that the charges to other funds and to employees for health insurance cost exceeded the premiums charged by the insurance carriers. Thus, fund 66750 operated at a profit of approximately $496,000 for 1997, which added to an already existing fund balance which totals approximately $4.7 million as of December 31, 1997. Now that the fund is completed covered under insurance policies and the premium expense is known, this should allow the amount charged to approximate premium expense. We recommended in prior years that a study be made to determine the remaining liability from claims made while covered under self-insurance. The Parish Insurance Advisory Coordinating Committee responded with its own recommen- dation that premiums would be frozen for at least one year and the results of such freeze monitored beginning in 1997. In 1997, totalpremiums collected totaled $11.9 million, an increase from prior years, and exceeded premiums paid by approximately $250,000. Recommendation 
We recommend that the Insurance Advisory Coordinating Committee review premiums charged in 1997 as described in its recommendation above and develop a plan to adjust premiums accordingly in 1998 to reduce the existing fund balance to a reasonable level. 
Response With the implementation of the new payroll system effective January 1, 1998, a new procedure has been put into place which will charge to departments and employees premiums for health care equal to premiums charged by providers. The Insurance Advisory Coordinating Committee is reviewing the current fund balance. 



3. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS ~ CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
SELF-INSURANCE (Continued) 

In our testing of claims paid by the Parish for auto, general and workers' compensation liability (fund 66760), we noted that claims activity for the months of July through November 1997 was not reconciled until December. Timely reconciliations of claims management information are a requirement described in the Parish's Fund 676, The Property & Casualty Self-Insurance Fund Monthly Reconciliation Procedures. The Department of Loss Control has been charged with the responsibility of reconciling claims management information so that accounting can record this information to be used by Parish management in financial decision making. Recommendation 
The Department of Loss Control should follow Parish procedures in performing timely reconciliations of claims management information. 
Response A new third party administrator took over claims for Jefferson Parish as of July 1, 1997. The new third party administrators were unable to provide balanced claim data to the Parish for the period of July 1 through December 1, until the end of 1997. The reconciliation of data is now up to date. 
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1. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
DATA PROCESSING (EDP) 

As noted in prior years, the Department of Code Enforcement has not yet fully computerized its records. The Department collects amounts for selected licenses and fees. All records, files, etc., are currently maintained on index cards, manual journals, etc., which is time-consuming and inefficient. Since 1991, the Parish computer consultants have been working on computerizing the system; however, to date they have not successfully completed the work. 
Recommendation The project begun in prior years should be completed to allow the Department to operate more efficiently. Response The Parish estimates that this project is 98 percent completed as of the date of this response and anticipates completion in 1998. 2. Comment 
As noted in prior years, the Parish does not have a formal disaster recovery system in place. 
The Parish should develop a plan with its computer consultants or other advisors to ensure safeguarding of the records of the Parish. 
Response The Parish has two data centers, each housed in the main Parish building on each side of the Parish. Each system is capable of effectively handling all data processing for the Parish. Both systems perform daily backups of data and the Parish believes it is highly unlikely that both systems would be disabled at the same time. However, the Parish has plans to develop and implement a formal disaster recovery plan in the future. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS- CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
DATA PROCESSING (EDP) (Continued) 

In our testing of State bid compliance it was noted that the Parish does not effectively utilize all controls available on the computer system to monitor and control contract limits. 
Recommendation The Parish should fully utilize all components of the computer system Response The Internal Auditor, in conjunction with the Electronic Information Systems Department, Accounting and Purchasing Departments is working on new procedures aimed at fully utilizing the computer system components that would enhance the existing procedures. The current procedures will not allow over- expenditures of "CAPS" on contracts. The Parish anticipates implementation of these new procedures by the end of 1998. 



1. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GENERAL COMMENTS 

As in prior years, we noted that the Parish has an unfunded pension obligation for judges' annuities by approximately $1.1 million as of December 31, 1997. As in past years, this amount is recorded as a liability in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group and will be funded by future provision from the General Fund. In 1997, the Parish did not obtain actuarial calculations to determine the required amount of funding needed to meet the obligation. 
Recommendation The amount should continue to be recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group and the Parish should obtain annual calculations as to the amount of funds needed until the obligation is fully funded. Response 
The Parish will include the underfunded amount in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Also, the Parish will continue to obtain actuarial calculations on the remaining judges' pensions to ensure that they are adequately funded. 
2. Comment As noted in prior years, retirees' bonuses are calculated manually 
Recommendation We recommend that procedures related to calculation of retirees' bonus checks be performed by computer. 
Response The Parish has incorporated the Parish payroll into the new computer system effective January 1, 1998. The Retirement Department has not yet incorporated retired employee bonuses as of the date of this response, but expects to do so by the end of 1998, thus eliminating the need for manual calculations. 



3. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH. L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GENERAL COMMENTS (Continued) 

Budget to actual comparisons which are available through the new computer system are an important tool in the Parish's procedures for monitoring expenditures. In our attempt to compare actual to budgeted amounts for grant programs, we noted that some of the budgeted amounts reported on "Budget-to- Actual" reports were incorrect. Recommendation 
We recommend that the procedures for monitoring posting of budgets to grant programs be amended to ensure that accurate budgets are recorded in the system. 
Response The computer was reprogrammed at the end of 1997 to rebudget available monies after the year end close-out to the next year (i.e., 1998). Journal entries made by accounting after close-out for 1997 adjusted the expenditures for 1997 but did not adjust the budgets. The budgets were adjusted once the problem was discovered and the reports were corrected. At year end, December 31, 1998, adjustments will be made prior to rebudgeting funds to 1999. 4. Comment During testing of interfund activity, we noted that a transfer from the General Fund (1001 O) to a Special Revenue Fund (21030) exceeded the amount budgeted for the grant. The transfer was to cover disallowed costs due to expenditures incurred after the grant period of availability had expired. The amount of disallowed expenditures was approximately $9,000. 
Recommendation We recommend that the Parish more closely monitor grant expenditures and grant budgets. 



Response 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISlANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GENERAL COMMENTS (Continued) 

Parish personnel have been activity related to periods requirements. 
5. Comment 

nstructed to more closely monitor grants of availability, transfers, and federa including matching 
We noted in our review of payroll procedures that the following employees appeared to have excessive overtime hours reported in 1997: Department 
Animal Shelter Animal Shelter Water Department General Services Parkways Department Recommendation 

Position O/T Worked Supervisor Supervisor Foreman Engineer Employee 
1,348 hours 1,711 hours 1,052 hours 1,062 hours 834 hours 

Based on the rate of pay for each of the above employees, it appears that it would be more efficient to hire additional employees rather than incur this many overtime hours. Response The Director of the Animal Shelter is aware of the status of overtime for the two employees and has budgeted additional monies for 1998 to cover this expense. The Animal Shelter has developed a new pay plan that it hopes will attract and retain more qualified applicants thus eliminating the need for excessive overtime. 
The Director of the Water Department is aware of the status of overtime for this employee. The Water Department must maintain a crew on standby status in case of emergencies. Crews are placed on standby once every six weeks in order to evenly distribute the overtime. However, the department allows employees to opt off the standby crew and provide their own replacements. The employee noted above has made himself available to other crew members opting out of standby. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH, LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS- CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
GENERAL COMMENTS (Continued) 

The General Services Director is aware of the overtime status for this employee. The additional hours were necessitated by several factors including: one employee was out for an extensive period due to an injury, and extended building hours caused by the additional work load of the court system. The department created a new position of "floating engineer" to help alleviate the additional overtime, but has had difficulties filling the position. The Parkways Director is aware of the overtime status for this employee. Regular overtime is necessary with this position. The additional hours were required due to the emergency situation caused by hurricane damage in Grand Isle, Louisiana. 
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1. Comment 

JEFFERSON PARISH, L OUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONTINUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS AFFECTING THE PARISH 

In March 1997, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 31 effective for periods beginning after June 15, 1997. Statement No. 31 establishes accounting and financial reporting guidelines for all invest- ments held by external investment pools, as well as provides guidance for invest- ments held in defined benefit plans and Internal Revenue Code Section 347 deferred compensation plans. Recommendation 
We recommend that the Parish review provisions are applied for the year ended Response 
We concur 2. Comment 

GASB Statement No. 31 so that its December 31, 1998. 

In October 1997, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457, Deferred Compensation Plans." GASB Statement No. 32 was issued in response to a change in Internal Revenue Code Section 457 on August 20, 1996. This Code Section now requires that all assets and income of the Deferred Compensation Plans established under Code Section 457 be held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Existing plans are required to comply with this requirement by January 1, 1999. Recommendation The Parish should evaluate the impact of GASB Statement No. 32 on its Deferred Compensation Plan and Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan will have to be amended by January 1, 1999, in order to comply with the change in the Code. 



 

JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS - CONT/NUED For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS AFFECTING THE PARISH (Continued) Response 
The Parish is in full compliance with this statement as of June 1998 3. Comment 
In 1997, the Internal Revenue Service issued revised guidance as to the classification of employees versus independent contract help. This area has been a significant area of compliance problems in the past for government entities. 
Recommendation We recommend that the Parish review this new guidance in order to assure proper classifications are made in the future. Response 
The Parish has requested a copy of the latest issue of this code and will review it in order to ensure compliance. 

The attached schedule of noncomp!ianc.e w!!h aws and regulations includes a finding J 



REBOWE & COMPANY* / HANFOR1) M. ltARRISON KUSHNER LAGRAIZE H+.P. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Members of the Parish Counc Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 
AUD/TORS" LETTER 

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated May11,1998. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Parish's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Our objective was not, however, to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. 
The attached schedule of noncompliance with laws and regulations includes a finding of noncompliance noted as a result of the items tested. We have already discussed this finding with various Parish personnel and have included their response. We will be pleased to discuss this comment with you in further detail at your convenience, or to perform any additional study of this matter. 
REBOWE & COMPANY/HANFORD M. HARRISON A Professional Corporation Rebowe & Company 
KUSHNER LAGRAIZE, L.L.P Kushner LaGraize, JL.L.p. 
Metairie, May 11, Louisiana 1998 
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JEFFERSON PARISH. LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF NONCOMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS For the Year Ended December 31, 1997 
. Finding As noted in prior years, the Garbage District Number 1 (Fund 22400) transferred funds to the Parkways Department (Fund 2221 O) for reimbursement for collecting litter along the Parish's roadsides, medians, roadways, drainage canals, abandoned lots, and for cleaning the screens at the various pump stations. In the past, these services were paid by the Streets Department as part of a ~-cent sales tax collection dedicated to construction and maintenance of roadways. Revenues for Garbage District Number 1 are derived from ad valorem taxes collected on properties throughout the district, and use of these funds for collection of litter on roadways does not appear to meet the intended purpose for these taxes. Response Garbage District and Pump Station revenues are used to reimburse the Park- ways Department for the cost of litter collection along Parish roadways, medians, etc. The Parish believes that these expenditures are legitimate uses of these funds, and reimbursement of such is proper. It is advantageous for the Parkways Department to employ personnel to perform these services for the Garbage and Pump Station Departments in their slack time, and to be reimbursed for these services rather than to have the Garbage and Pump Station Departments hire their own crews to perform these duties. The Garbage and Pump Station Departments pay for only those services provided to them by the Parkways Department. 


